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2008 was most eventful year for the

wider economy while Hysan returned

another year of good performance amidst

the changing conditions

To provide clear picture of Hysan in

2008 this Annual Report is divided

into four sections an overview of our

Company and business how we put

our strategy into action how we further

strengthened our governance and

our financial results We believe this

arrangement will help the reader to

better understand Hysan as whole and

our efforts during the year to develop

further as successful and responsible

business

11111

Cover Whie the designs of our huiIdng features evolve over time

their underlying quahty remains unchanged This commitment to

provide the best of products and services guides our way forward



THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are In any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken you should consult your

licensed securities dealer bank manager solicitor professional accountant or other professional adviser

If you have sold or transferred all your shares In Hysan Development Company LImited

you should at once hand this circular and the accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser or transferee or to the

bank licensed securities dealer or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission

to the purchaser or transferee

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information

with regard to the Company The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy

of the information contained in this circular and confirm having made all reasonable enquiries that to the best

of their knowledge and belief there are no other material facts not contained herein the omission of which would

make any statement contained in this circular misleading

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no

responsibility for the contents of this circular make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and

expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or

any part of the contents of this circular

_JHysan
HYSAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Incorporated under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap 32 with limited liability

Stock Code 00014

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

AND

PROPOSALS FOR

GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE AND TO REPURCHASE SHARE
AND

AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

notice convening the AGM to be held at Salon 5-6 JW Marriott Ballroom Level JW Marriott Hotel Hong

Kong Pacific Place 88 Queensway Hong Kong on Monday 18 May 2009 at 1200 noon is set out on pages to

of this circular

Whether or not you intend to attend the AGM you are advised to read this circular and to complete the

accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return the same to the

Companys registered office at 49th Floor Manulife Plaza The Lee Gardens 33 Hysan Avenue Hong Kong or

to the Companys Registrar Tricor Standard Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre 28 Queens Road East Wanchai

Hong Kong as soon as possible but in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding

of the AGM or any adjournment thereof Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from

attending and voting in person at the AGM or any adjournment thereof should you so wish

31 March 2009
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INVITATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

Hysan
HYSAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Incorporated under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap 32 with limited liability

Stock Code 00014

Chairman Registered Office

Peter Ting Chang LEE 49th Floor

Manulife Plaza

Independent non-executive Deputy Chairman The Lee Gardens

Sir David AKERS-JONES 33 Hysan Avenue

Hong Kong

Independent non-executive Directors

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN

Timothy John SMITH as his alternate

Fa-kuang HU

Raymond Liang-ming HU as his alternate

Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH

Non-executive Directors

Hans Michael JEBSEN

Kam Wing LI as his alternate

Anthony Hsien Pin LEE

Peter Ting Chang LEE as his alternate

Chien LEE

Dr Deanna Ruth Tak Yung RUDGARD

Peter Ting Chang LEE as her alternate

Executive Directors

Ricky Tin For TSANG

Wendy Wen Yee YUNG

31 March 2009

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board and management we invite you to attend Hysan Development Company Limiteds Annual

General Meeting to be held on Monday 18 May 2009 Detailed explanation on the business to be considered at

the Meeting together with Board Recommendations on the proposed resolutions are set out in this circular

We aim to continually enhance our corporate governance practices including the quality of our reporting and

communications with our shareholders

We regard annual general meetings as one of the principal channels to communicate with our shareholders We

look forward to seeing you at the Meeting If you are unable to attend the Meeting in person we encourage you

to appoint proxy to attend and vote on your behalf

Yours faithfully

PeterT.C LEE

Chairman



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of the members of Hysan Development Company

Limited will be held at Salon 5-6 JW Marriott Ballroom Level JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong

Pacific Place 88 Queensway Hong Kong on Monday 18 May 2009 at 1200 noon for the following purposes

To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2008 together with

the Reports of Directors and Auditor thereon

To declare final dividend together with scrip alternative for the year ended 31 December 2008

To re-elect Directors

To re-appoint Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as Auditor and authorise the Directors to fix their

remuneration

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions and

Special Resolution respectively

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

That

subject to paragraph general mandate be and is hereby unconditionally granted to the

Directors to exercise during the Relevant Period all the powers of the Company to allot issue and

dispose of additional shares in the Company and to make or grant offers agreements options

warrants or other securities which would or might require the exercise of such powers

the mandate in paragraph shall authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period to make or

grant offers agreements options and other securities which would or might require the exercise of

such powers after the end of the Relevant Period

the aggregate nominal value of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally

to be allotted whether pursuant to share option or otherwise by the Directors pursuant to the

mandate in paragraph otherwise than pursuant to Rights Issue or ii any share option

scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue to the eligible

participants of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company or iii any scrip dividend or

similar arrangement pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company from time to time shall

not exceed 10% where the shares are to be allotted wholly for cash and in any event 20% of the

aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing

this Resolution and the said mandate shall be limited accordingly and

for the purpose of this Resolution

Relevant Period means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the

earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is

required by law to be held and



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

iii the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary

resolution of the members in general meeting

Rights Issue means an offer of shares open for period fixed by the Directors to holders of shares

of the Company or any class thereof on the register on fixed record date in proportion to their

then holdings of such shares or class thereof subject to such exclusion or other arrangements

as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having

regard to any legal restrictions under the laws of or the requirements of any recognised regulatory

body or any stock exchange in any territory outside Hong Kong

That

general mandate be and is hereby unconditionally given to the Directors to exercise during

the Relevant Period all the powers of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire shares

of HK$5.00 each in the capital of the Company in accordance with all applicable laws and the

requirements of the Listing Rules provided that the aggregate nominal amount of shares so

purchased or otherwise acquired shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the

share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing of this Resolution and the said

mandate shall be limited accordingly and

for the purpose of this Resolution

Relevant Period means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the

earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is

required by law to be held and

iii the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary

resolution of the members in general meeting

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

That the Articles of Association of the Company be amended as follows

Article 77A be replaced by new Article 77A as follows

77A If it appears to the Chairman that the principal meeting place is inadequate to accommodate

all members entitled and wishing to attend the meeting is duly constituted and its

proceedings valid if the Chairman is satisfied that adequate facilities are available to ensure

that member who is unable to be accommodated is able to

participate in the business for which the meeting has been convened



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ii hear and see all persons present who speak whether by use of microphone

loud-speakers audio-visual communications equipment or otherwise whether in the

meeting place or elsewhere and

iii be heard and seen by all other persons so present in the same way

At any general meeting the Chairman of the meeting may make any arrangement and impose any

requirement or restriction he considers appropriate to ensure the security and orderly conduct of

meeting including without limitation adjourning the meeting to time date and place he decides

requirements for evidence of identity to be produced by those attending the meeting the restriction

of items that may be taken into the meeting place Members shall also comply with all requirements

or restrictions imposed by the owner of the premises at which the meeting is held person who

refuses to comply with any such arrangements requirements or restrictions may be refused entry

to the meeting

At any general meeting

in the case of resolution duly proposed as special resolution no amendment thereto

other than an amendment to correct patent error may be considered

ii in the case of resolution duly proposed as an ordinary resolution no proposal of nor

amendment thereto other than an amendment to correct patent error may be considered

or voted upon unless either

notice in writing of the terms of the amendment and intention to move the same has

been lodged at the registered office of the Company at least two business days prior

to the date appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which such

ordinary resolution is to be proposed or

in the Chairmans absolute discretion he decides that it may be considered or voted

upon

If the Chairman of meeting rules that proposed amendment to any resolution under

consideration is out of order in accordance with this article his determination shall be final

The Chairman shall at meeting take any such action as he thinks fit to promote the orderly

conduct of the business of the meeting as laid down in the notice of the meeting and the

Chairmans decisions on matters of procedure or arising incidentally from the business of the

meeting including ordering the exclusion or expulsion of any member or other person shall be

final as shall be his determination as to whether any matter is of such nature

By Order of the Board

Wendy W.V VUNG

Executive Director and Company Secretary

Hong Kong 31 March 2009
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Notes

member entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote

on his behalf The proxy need not be member of the Company

In order to be valid form of proxy must be returned to the Companys registered office at 49th Floor Manulife Plaza

The Lee Gardens 33 Hysan Avenue Hong Kong or to the Companys Registrar Tricor Standard Limited 26/F Tesbury

Centre 28 Queens Road East Wanchai Hong Kong together with the power of attorney or other authority if any

under which it is signed or notarially certified copy of that power or authority not less than 48 hours before the time

for holding the Meeting

The register of members will be closed from Thursday 14 May 2009 to Monday 18 May 2009 both days inclusive In

order to qualify for attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting and the proposed final dividend all transfer

documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Companys Registrar Tricor Standard

Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre 28 Queens Road East Wanchai Hong Kong not later than 400 p.m on Wednesday

13 May 2009

Further information on voting procedures is set out in the section Voting Information Frequently Asked Questions and

Answers in the circular to be sent to shareholders the Circular

Detailed information on the businesses to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is set out in the section

Business of the Meeting and Board Recommendations of the Circular

Pursuant to the Listing Rules any vote of members at general meeting must be taken by poll Accordingly at the

Annual General Meeting the Chairman of the Meeting will exercise his power under Article 78 of the Articles of

Association of the Company to put each of the resolutions set out in this notice to be voted by way of poll On poll

every member present in person or in the case of corporation by its corporate representative or by proxy shall have

one vote for each share of any class of which he is the holder

The English text of the amended Articles of Association shall prevail

As at the date of this notice the Board comprises Chairman Peter Ting Chang LEE Independent

non-executive Deputy Chairman Sir David AKERS-JONES Independent non-executive Directors

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN Timothy John SMITH as his alternate Fa-kuang HU Raymond Liang-ming

HU as his alternate and Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH Non-executive Directors Hans Michael JEBSEN

Kam Wing LI as his alternate Anthony Hsien Pin LEE Peter Ting Chang LEE as his alternate Chien LEE and

Dr Deanna Ruth Tak Yung RUDGARD Peter Ting Chang LEE as her alternate and Executive Directors

Ricky Tin For TSANG and Wendy Wen Yee YUNG



VOTING INFORMATION FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Your vote is important and you can exercise your right to vote whether you choose to attend the AGM or

not Find out how below

Am entitled to vote

You are entitled to vote if you are registered holder of Shares of Hysan Development Company Limited

as of 18 May 2009 the date of AGM

The register of members will be closed from Thursday 14 May 2009 to Monday 18 May 2009 both days

inclusive If you have recently purchased the Shares you must deliver to Tricor Standard Limited not later

than 400 p.m on Wednesday 13 May 2009 the share certificates share transfer form or relevant evidence

to establish that you own the Shares

What am voting on

You are voting on the resolutions as set out in the Notice of AGM on pages to and Business of the

Meeting and Board Recommendations on pages to of this circular

How can vote

Attending the AGM

You are entitled to attend the AGM and cast your vote in person To vote shares registered in the

name of corporation the corporation must have submitted properly executed form of proxy or

corporate representative authorisation to the Company

By Proxy

If you do not plan to attend the AGM you may cast your vote by proxy in one of the two ways Your

proxy must vote as you instruct in the form of proxy

You may authorise the Chairman of the Company named in the form of proxy to vote your

shares Please indicate how you would like your shares to be voted

You may appoint other person to attend the AGM and vote your shares on your behalf

Please print your appointees name in the blank space on the form of proxy and indicate

how you would like your shares to be voted proxy need not be shareholder of the

Company

When shall return my form of proxy

To be valid the original form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority if any

under which it is signed or notarially certified copy of the same must be completed and returned to the

Companys registered office at 49th Floor Manulife Plaza The Lee Gardens 33 Hysan Avenue Hong

Kong or to the Companys Registrar Tricor Standard Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre 28 Queens

Road East Wanchai Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the AGM or any

adjournment thereof Forms of proxy sent electronically or by any other data transmission process will

not be accepted



VOTING INFORMATION FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Who votes my shares and how will they be voted if return form of proxy

By properly completing and returning form of proxy you are authorising the person named in the form of

proxy to attend the AGM and to vote your shares The shares represented by your proxy must be voted as

you instruct in the form of proxy If you properly complete and return your form of proxy but do not specify

how you wish to cast your votes your proxy will vote at his discretion

Can revoke proxy or voting instruction

Completion and return of form of proxy will not preclude member from attending in person and

voting at the AGM should he so wish Therefore your attendance at the AGM will override your proxy

appointment

How will voting be taken at the AGM

Under the Listing Rules all votes at the AGM are required to be taken by poll Accordingly the

Chairman of the AGM will demand poll regarding the voting for all the resolutions set out in the

Notice of AGM

What are the procedures for voting by poll

On poll every member present in person or in the case of corporation by its corporate

representative or by proxy shall have one vote for each Share of which he is the holder All

shareholders corporate representatives or proxies who attend the AGM will be given voting papers

upon their registration at the AGM The resolutions will be printed on the voting papers You can

cast your votes either for or against each resolution in respect of the number of shares held under

your name The Registrar will collect all the voting papers after voting The results of the voting

by poll will be published on the website of the Company and the designated issuer website of the

Stock Exchange after market close on the day of the AGM

What if have question

If you have any question regarding the AGM please contact Hysans Legal and Secretarial Services

Department at 2895-5777



BUSINESS OF THE MEETING AND BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS

RESOLUTION NUMBERED RECEIVING 2008 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The full audited financial statements together with the Reports of Directors and Auditor thereon are set out on

pages 78 to 124 pages 59 to 65 and page 77 of the Annual Report 2008

The audited financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee report of the Audit Committee is

set out on pages 73 to 74 of the Annual Report 2008

RESOLUTION NUMBERED 2- DECLARATION OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008 of HK54 cents per Share

Subject to passing resolution numbered such final dividend is expected to be paid on or about June 2009

together with scrip dividend alternative to shareholders whose names appear on the Companys register of

members on 18 May 2009

circular containing details of the scrip dividend and the form of election will be sent to shareholders on or about

20 May 2009

The register of members will be closed from Thursday 14 May 2009 to Monday 18 May 2009 both days

inclusive In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM and the proposed final dividend all transfer

documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Companys Registrar Tricor

Standard Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre 28 Queens Road East Wanchai Hong Kong not later than 400 p.m

on Wednesday 13 May 2009

RESOLUTION NUMBERED 3- RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Under Article 114 of the Companys Articles of Association one-third or such other number as may be required

under applicable legislation of the Directors and where the applicable number is not an integral number

to be rounded upwards who have been longest in office shall retire from office by rotation and may offer

themselves for re-election In this light Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH Fa-kuang HU Hans Michael JEBSEN and

Deanna Ruth Tak Yung RUDGARD will retire and being eligible offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming AGM Their proposed re-election will be considered by separate resolutions

Details of the background information on the retiring Directors who are proposed for re-election are set out on

pages 10 to 11 of this circular

RESOLUTION NUMBERED 4- RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board which in turn endorsed the view that subject to

shareholders approval at the forthcoming AGM Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be re-appointed as the external auditor

of the Company for 2009

RESOLUTIONS NUMBERED AND GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE AND

REPURCHASE SHARES

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 May 2008 general mandates under Section 57B

of the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules were given to the Directors to issue and purchase Shares

in the Company These general mandates will lapse at the conclusion of the AGM Resolutions will therefore be

proposed at the AGM to renew the grant of these general mandates The relevant resolutions in summary are

an ordinary resolution resolution numbered to give the Directors general and unconditional

mandate to allot issue and dispose of additional Shares in the Company not exceeding 10% where the

Shares are to be allotted wholly for cash and in any event 20% of the Companys issued share capital as

at the date of passing the resolution for the period until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting

of the Company or such earlier period as stated in the resolution the Issue Mandate and
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an ordinary resolution resolution numbered to give the Directors general and unconditional

mandate to exercise all the powers of the Company to purchase Shares in the Company not exceeding

10% of the Companys issued share capital as at the date of passing the resolution for the period until

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company or such earlier period as stated in the

resolution the Share Repurchase Mandate

The full text of these resolutions is set out in the Notice of AGM As required under the Listing Rules an

explanatory statement providing the requisite information regarding the Share Repurchase Mandate is set out on

pages 12 to 14 of this circular

The Companys Articles of Association empower Directors to allot unissued shares Under the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance company issuing new equity for cash must offer its shareholders the first opportunity

to subscribe for such shares save where the shareholders have granted its general or specific approval The

Listing Rules further restrict the maximum number of shares to be allotted as not exceeding 20% of listed

issuers then issued share capital without differentiating between cash and non-cash issuances

The Board noted concerns expressed over cash issuance exercises in the market particularly as regards the

frequency and size of such issuances The Board aims to strike balance with business flexibility
and the need

to raise capital quickly in cost-effective way which in turn enhance the Companys growth

The Board therefore differentiates between the amount of equity securities to be issued for cash other

than in connection with rights issue and other exceptions set out in the AGM Notice to which shareholders

pre-emptive rights apply and ii for non-cash consideration This is in line with international best practices

The amount of equity securities to be issued for cash other than under the exceptions referred to above is

restricted to 10% of the existing issued ordinary share capital This is below the limit permitted under the Listing

Rules

The Company has not issued any new Shares pursuant to the Issue Mandate granted in previous general

meetings in the past 10 years other than pursuant to the scrip dividend alternative and ii the exercise of the

options granted under the Companys Share Option Schemes

The Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plan to issue any new Shares other than relating to scrip

dividends and exercise of employee share options as described above

RESOLUTION NUMBERED 7- AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The proposed amendments to the Articles of Association address and formalise some practical arrangements

of general meetings with the aim to facilitate their smooth running It provides for overflow arrangements to

ensure shareholder can still effectively participate in meeting if the principal meeting place is inadequate to

accommodate all attending members formalises arrangements whereby shareholder may propose amendments

to resolutions proposed introduces procedures for the Chairman to ensure the security and orderly conduct of

meeting

The Directors consider that the proposed amendments to the Articles and Association are beneficial to the

Company and the shareholders as whole Advice has been obtained from independent legal advisor that

these provisions comply with Hong Kong legal as well as Listing Rules requirements This special business

will be considered as special resolution at the AGM which requires not less than 75% of the votes cast by

shareholders attending and entitled to vote at the AGM

BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS

The Directors consider that the proposed resolutions as set out in the Notice of AGM including among other

things the proposed resolutions in relation to the granting of the Issue Mandate and Share Repurchase Mandate

and amendments to the Articles of Association are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as

whole Accordingly the Directors recommend shareholders to vote in favour of the proposed resolutions



INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

Information on Directors standing for re-election at the AGM is set out below

Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH

S.B.S M.B.E J.P

D.C.S MSc
F.C.I.O.B F.lnst.D

Independent
non-executive Director

Age 77

Interests in Shares

within the meaning

of Part XV of SF0

Director Board committee Emoluments received as at the Latest

since memberships for 2008 HK$ Practicable Date

Dr Yeh is former Chairman of Ham Chong Construction Group Ltd He was an independent non-executive director of China

Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited until 14 July 2007 He holds Bachelor of Science Degree from University of

Illinois and Master of Science Degree from Harvard University Dr Yeh was appointed Non-executive Director in 1979 and as

Independent non-executive Director in 2001

Dr Yeh has confirmed to the Board his independence as regard each of the factors referred to in Rule 3.131 to of the

Listing
Rules He has no relationship with any Directors senior management substantial or controlling shareholders of the

Company

Dr Yeh has served the Board for more than years The Board believes that independence is matter of judgment and

conscience but that in order to be independent non-executive Directors should be free from any business or other relationships

that might interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment Dr Yeh does not have any management role in the Group

Notwithstanding the length of his tenure the Board is satisfied that as well proven by the valuable independent judgment and

advice given by Dr Yeh over the years Dr Yeh is of such character integrity independence and experience commensurate with

office of an Independent non-executive Director The Board is not aware of any circumstance that might influence Dr Yeh in

exercising independent judgment

Dr Yeh received annual director fee of HK$100000 and fee of HK$40000 for serving as member of the Emoluments Review

Committee arid Nomination Committee respectively in 2008

Save as disclosed above there is no other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders or other

information that should be disclosed under Rule 13.51 of the Listing Rules

Mr Hu is Honorary Chairman of Ryoden Development Limited He was an independent non-executive director of i-CABLE

Communications Limited and retired effective from the conclusion of its annual general meeting held on 17 May 2007 He holds

Bachelor of Science Degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University He was appointed Non-executive Director in 1979 and

re-designated as Independent non-executive Director in 2008

Mr Hu has confirmed to the Board his independence as regard each of the factors referred to in Rule 3.131 to of the Listing

Rules He has no relationship with any Directors senior management substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company

Mr Hu has served the Board for more than years Mr Hu does not have any management role in the Group and he has clearly

demonstrated his willingness to exercise independent judgment and has been giving objective views to the Company There is

no evidence that length of tenure is having an adverse impact on his independence The Board is satisfied that Mr Hu has the

required character integrity independence and experience to fulfill the role of an Independent non-executive Director The Board

is not aware of any circumstance that might influence Mr Hu in exercising independent judgment

Mr Hu received annual director fee of HK$100000 and fee of HK$20000 for serving as member of the Emoluments Review

Committee in 2008

Save as disclosed above there is no other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders or other

information that should be disclosed under Rule 13.512 of the Listing Rules

1979 Member of

Emoluments Review

Committee and

Nomination Committee

140000

Note

265364 Shares

Personal interests

Director

since

1979Fa-kuang HU Member of 120000

G.B.S C.B.E J.P Emoluments Review Note

Independent Committee

non-executive Director

Age 85

Interests in Shares

within the meaning
of Part XV of SF0

as at the Latest

Practicable Date

200000 Shares

Corporate interests

10



INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

Interests in Shares

within the meaning
of Part XV of SF0

as at the Latest

Practicable Date

Mr Jebsen is Chairman of Jebsen and Company Limited as well as director of other Jebsen Group companies worldwide He

is also an independent non-executive director of The Wharf Holdings Limited He was appointed Non-executive Director in

1994

Mr Jebsen received annual director fee of HK$100000 and fee of HK$20000 for serving as member of the Investment

Committee in 2008

Mr Jebsen has no relationship with any Directors senior management substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company

Save as disclosed above there is no other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders or other

information that should be disclosed under Rule 13.51 of the Listing Rules

Dr Rudgard received Master of Arts Degree Bachelor of Medicine and of Surgery Degree from Oxford University She is

member of the founding Lee family and director of Lee Hysan Estate Company Limited substantial shareholder of the

Company She was appointed Non-executive Director in 1993

Dr Rudgard received annual director fee of HK$100000 for serving as Director in 2008

Save as disclosed above Dr Rudgard has no relationship with any other Directors senior management substantial or

controlling shareholders of the Company There is no other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders

or other information that should be disclosed under Rule 13.51 of the Listing Rules

Notes

The respective annual director fees for serving on the Board and on its committees were approved by the shareholders

in the 2005 annual general meeting held on 10 May 2005 having given consideration to the level of responsibility

experience and abilities required of the relevant Directors and the remuneration offered for similar positions in

comparable companies Details on Director emoluments are set out in Directors Remuneration and Interests Report

and notes to the financial statements set out in the Annual Report 2008 Save as disclosed above the Directors received

no other compensation from the Group in 2008

60000 Shares were held by Mr Hans Michael JEBSEN personally and 2432914 Shares were held by corporation in

which he was member entitled to exercise no less than one-third of the voting power at general meetings

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that

is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation

Director

since

Hans Michael JEBSEN

BBS
Non-executive Director

Age 52

1994

Board committee Emoluments received

memberships for 2008 HK$

Member of

Investment Committee
120000

Note

2492914 Shares

Personal and

corporate interests

Note

Director Board committee

since memberships

1993 NilDeanna Ruth Tak Vung 100000

RUDGARD Note

Non-executive Director

Age 69

Interests in Shares

within the meaning
of Part XV of SF0

Emoluments received as at the Latest

for 2008 HK$ Practicable Date

1871600 Shares

Personal interests
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON THE SHARE REPURCHASE MANDATE

This is an explanatory statement as required under the Listing Rules in connection with the resolution authorising

the Share Repurchase Mandate proposed to be considered and if thought fit passed by shareholders of the

Company at the AGM The Listing Rules provide that all repurchases of securities by company with its primary

listing on the Stock Exchange must be approved in advance by an ordinary resolution either by way of general

mandate to the directors of the company to make such repurchases or by specific approval in relation to specific

transactions This explanatory statement also constitutes the memorandum required under Section 49BA3 of

the Companies Ordinance

Share Capital

As at the Latest Practicable Date the issued share capital of the Company comprised 1041114578 Shares of

HK$5.00 each

On the basis that no further Shares are issued or repurchased prior to the AGM the Company would be allowed

under the Share Repurchase Mandate to repurchase maximum of 104111457 Shares

Reasons for Repurchase

The Directors believe that the Share Repurchase Mandate is in the best interests of the Company and its

shareholders

Such purchases may depending on market conditions and funding arrangements at the time lead to an

enhancement of the net assets and/or earnings per Share and will only be made when the Directors believe that

such purchase will benefit the Company and its shareholders

Funding of Repurchase

In repurchasing Shares the Company may only apply funds legally available for such purpose in accordance with

its Memorandum and Articles of Association and the Companies Ordinance The Companies Ordinance provides

that the amount of capital repaid in connection with share repurchase may only be paid from the distributable

profits of the Company and/or the proceeds of new issue of Shares made for the purpose of the repurchase to

such extent allowable under the Companies Ordinance

In the event that the proposed share repurchases were to be carried out in full at any time during the proposed

repurchase period the working capital or gearing position of the Company might be materially different as

compared with the position disclosed in the audited consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 December 2008

as contained in the Annual Report 2008 However the Directors do not propose to exercise the Share

Repurchase Mandate to such extent as would in the circumstances have material adverse effect on the

working capital requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are from

time to time appropriate for the Company

12



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON THE SHARE REPURCHASE MANDATE

Share Prices

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have traded on the Stock Exchange during each of the

previous 12 months before the printing of this circular were as follows

Highest Lowest

HK$ HK$

Year 2008

March 22.65 20.45

April
24.15 22.00

May
24.30 22.00

June
23.50 20.35

July
22.55 21.00

August
23.40 20.25

September
22.90 18.10

October
20.65 10.02

November 13.72 10.04

December 13.54 11.00

Year 2009

January
14.50 11.70

February
12.66 11.40

March upto the Latest Practicable Date 13.98 10.50

Undertaking

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange so far as the same may be applicable to exercise the

power of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to ordinary resolution numbered in accordance with the

Listing Rules the Companies Ordinance and any other applicable laws of Hong Kong

None of the Directors nor to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable enquiries their associates

have any present intention to sell any Shares to the Company under the Share Repurchase Mandate it such

mandate is approved by the shareholders

No connected person has notified the Company that he/she has present intention to sell Shares to the

Company or has undertaken not to do so in the event that the Share Repurchase Mandate is approved by the

shareholders

13



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON THE SHARE REPURCHASE MANDATE

Effect of the Takeovers Code

If on the exercise of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Share Repurchase Mandate shareholders

proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company increases such increase will be treated as an

acquisition and may give rise to an obligation to make mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the

Takeovers Code

As at the Latest Practicable Date Lee Hysan Estate Company Limited tHE and certain of its subsidiaries

are the substantial shareholders of the Company which are indirectly interested in approximately 41.60% of

the issued share capital of the Company Lee Hysan Company Limited being LHEs holding company is also

deemed to have same interests pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance In the event

that the Directors exercise in full the power to repurchase Shares which are proposed to be granted pursuant

to the Share Repurchase Mandate the shareholding of Lee Hysan Company Limited LHE and certain of its

subsidiaries would be increased to approximately 46.23%

Such increase will give rise to an obligation to make mandatory offer under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code The

Directors have no present intention to exercise the Share Repurchase Mandate to such an extent as would result

in takeover obligations

Save as disclosed above the Directors are not aware of any shareholder or group of shareholders acting

in concert who may become obliged to make mandatory offer under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code as

consequence of any purchases pursuant to the Share Repurchase Mandate

Share Purchase made by the Company

The Company had not repurchased any of its Shares whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise in the six

months preceding the date of this circular
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DEFIN ITIONS

In this circular the following expressions shall have the meanings set out below unless the context otherwise

requires

AGM or Annual General means the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at

Meeting or Meeting Salon 5-6 JW Marriott Ballroom Level JW Marriott Hotel Hong

Kong Pacific Place 88 Queensway Hong Kong on 18 May 2009 at

1200 noon or any adjournment thereof

means the articles of association of the Company as amended from

time to time

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

means the auditor for the time being of the Company

means the board of Directors or duly authorised committee of the

board of Directors

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

means the Companies Ordinance Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong

Kong

means Hysan Development Company Limited company incorporated

in Hong Kong with limited liability

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

means the directors from time to time of the Company

means the Company and its subsidiaries

means the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the Peoples

Republic of China

means Hong Kong dollars the lawful currency of Hong Kong

means 27 March 2009 being the latest practicable date prior to the

printing of this circular for ascertaining certain information for inclusion

in this circular

means the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as modified from time to time

Articles of Association

associate

Auditor

Board

business day

Companies Ordinance

Company

connected person

controlling shareholder

Directors

Group

Hong Kong

Latest Practicable Date

Listing Rules
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DEFINITIONS

Notice of AGM means the notice convening the AGM as set out on pages to of

this circular

Securities and Futures Ordinance means the Securities and Futures Ordinance Chapter 571 of the Laws

or SF0 of Hong Kong

Shares means ordinary shares of HK$5.00 each in the Company or of such

other nominal amount as comprising the ordinary share capital of the

Company as shall result from sub-division or consolidation of the

share capital of the Company from time to time

Stock Exchange means The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

subsidiary means company which is for the time being subsidiary within the

meaning of section 24 of the Companies Ordinance of the Company

substantial shareholder has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and

Takeovers Code means the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases

published by Securities and Futures Commission
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The Good Life held on 26th October 2008 was creative

fusion of family values good designs cutting-edge music and

green attitude The event which took place on Hysan Avenue and

Sunning Road aimed to generate positive thoughts at the time

when many were affected by the economic environment

An unprecedented Plu Sik procession In the heart of Causeway

Bay was the highlight of the programme This Is Chinese folk

performance with costumed children sitting on stilts The theme

of this modernised Phi 51k was the celebration of the six senses

of the human body represented by eyes ears nose tongue body

and mind

We hope that The Good Ufe theme can bring home the

message that simple things In life should be cherished Even after

the event the spirit and Chinese name of the programme live on

In major morale-boosting community campaign involving the

Hong Kong Council of Social SeMces the Community Chest and

number of other charItable groups In 2009

Contents
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Overview

Hysan incorporates its community contributions into

its daily business activities These are complemented

by the Companys hands-on involvement in

community projects

As company that strives to be successful and responsible Hysan takes pride in

incorporating our community contributions into our everyday business activities

major focus of our Corporate Responsibility Report 2008 is on how we make use

of our resources in an effective and sustainable manner

We mentioned in our main Annual Report that our future northern gateway at 500

Hennessy Road will be aiming for the highest environmental standards We care

about sustainability however not just in the future In the sub-sections on Energy

Conservation and Waste Management we highlight Hysans present efforts to

save resources both for the Group and for the planet through our normal business

conducts Sustainability also goes beyond green matters Hysans Health and

Safety drive including our cooperation on this front with our partners and contractors

are documented in the Corporate Responsibility Report while the Groups latest on

attracting retaining and developing strong workforce are recorded in the main Annual

Reports Human Resources section Last but not least is Hysans community

involvement and giving The Community section reports on the Group taking the lead

in range of meaningful programmes

For its Corporate Responsibility efforts Hysan is now included as constituent

member of FTSE4Good one of the best-known global indicies for socially responsible

investment Hysan is proud to be recognised for its responsible achievements and

hope our actions can set an example for others to follow

Looking ahead even under the challenging economic climate we will continue our

emphasis to contribute to the society through our daily business activities We look

forward to presenting our readers in the next Corporate Responsibility Report with more

information on 500 Hennessy Road and how it plans to reshape Causeway Bay through

its sustainable approach We will also continue to give to the community through

projects involving nothing less than our time expertise and manpower
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Hysans Corporate Responsibility Policy

Our Policy based on our corporate values sets the

framework for the way we manage our corporate

responsibilities

Maintain Focus on Health Contribute to Respect

Highest Ethical and Safety Communities Our Staff

Standards Health and safety We make positive We treat our staff

We aim to maintain issues are of contributions to with fairness

the highest ethical fundamental the communities in and respect and

standards in the concern to us which we operate maintain working

conduct of our environment to

business We realise their full

are committed to
Minimise Encourage potential

maintaining the
Environmental Partners to

highest standards Impact Set High

of corporate We aim to minimise Standards

governance the impact of our We encourage

activities on the our suppliers

environment and contractors

to embrace high

standards similar

to our own

Hysans Corporate Responsibility Model

Hysans Corporate

Responsibility Model

Contributions Through

Normal Business

Activities Including

Environment

Health Safety

Giving Through

Community Iflvohiement
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To build own and manage quality builthngs and being the

occupiers partner of choice in the provision of real estate

accommodation and services thereby delivering attractve

and sustainable returns to our shareholders

Largest Commercial Landlord

in Causeway Bay Hong Kongs pnme ofhcc nd retail distnt

Balanced Portfolio

of superior investment properties

Quality Client Base

with prominent multinational and trong local tennts

Sustainable Income

with high occupancy consistcntly achieved

Established Asset Enhancement Programme

with track recoid of adding value

Exceptional Services

with focus or our commercial and residcntial customors

Strong Balance Sheet

with debts of long maturity and diversified funding sources

Financial Prudence

to keep risk and return in balance

Effective Corporate Governance

with wi spread indu try ecognition ch won
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Year 2008 in Review

Recurring Underlying Profit

This is performance indicator

of the Groups core property

investment business It is

arrived at by excluding from

Underlying Profit gains/losses

from disposal of assets

impairment reversal recovery

and tax provisions for prior

years

This is arrived at by excluding

from Statutory Profit unrealised

fair value changes on

investment properties and

related deferred tax As

property investor the Groups

results are principally derived

from the rental revenues on

its investment properties The

inclusion of the unrealised fair

value change on investment

properties in the consolidated

income statement causes

an increase in fluctuation in

earnings and poses limitation

on the use of the unadjusted

earning figures financial ratios

trends and comparison against

prior periods Besides

deferred tax on such fair value

changes has to be provided for

despite the fact that no capital

gain tax liability will arise in

Hong Kong on disposal of the

Groups investment properties

Accordingly both of these two

items are excluded in arriving

at the Underlying Profit

Statutory Profit

This is the profit attributable to

equity holders of the Company

It is prepared in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards issued

by Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants

and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance

ASSET VALUE INDICATORS 2008 2007 CHANGE CHANGE

HK$ million HK$ mition HK$ million

Total assets 41536 40890 646 1.6%

31469 31652 183 -0.6%

34660 35072 412 -1.2%

Shareholders funds

1Adjusted
Shareholders Funds

Shareholders funds reflected contribution from operating results as well as decrease in fair value associated with listed securities

portfolio

Adjusted Shareholders Funds

This is arrived at by adding back the Groups share of cumulative deferred tax on property revaluation to shareholders funds

figure Deferred tax on property revaluation has to be provided for despite the fact that no capital gains tax liability
will arise in

Hong Kong on disposal of properties

Overview of the Groups Financial Performance

TURNOVER 2008 2007 CHANGE CHANGE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

Office 703 567 136 24.0%

Retail 608 505 103 20.4%

Residential 292 262 30 11.5%

Others 35 34 2.9%

1638 1368 270 19.7%

Group turnover rose by 19.7%

Office sector revenue saw healthy growth due mainly to positive rental reversion on renewals

Sales growth helped retail rental rate increases and contributed to turnover rent

PROFIT INDICATORS

Recurring Underlying Profit

Underlying Profit

Statutory Profit

2008

HK$ million

1066

1201

1594

2007

HK$ million

950

1158

3949

CHANGE

HK$ million

116

43

2355

CHANGE

12.2%

3.7%

-59.6%

Recurring Underlying Profit increased due to higher rental rate and good occupancy also reflected more prudent financial

investment strategy

Underlying Profit change reflected smaller gains from disposal of long-term equity investments during the year

Statutory Profit change reflected the impact of property revaluation

Underlying Profit
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Key Financial Data

PER SHARE DATA

Earnings per share based on

Recurring Underlying Profit

2008 2007 CHANGE

90.32

90.27

13.6%

13.6%

Basic HK cents 102.57

Diluted HK cents 102.56

Underlying Profit

Basic HK cents 115.56 110.09 5.0%

Diluted HK cents 115.55 110.04 5.0%

Statutory Profit

Basic HK cents 153.37 375.46 -59.2%

Diluted HK cents 153.36 375.25 -59.1%

Shareholders returns

Dividends per share HK cents 68.00 60.00 13.3%

Shareholders returns per share HK$ 9.11 2.42 N/A

Total shareholders returns per share HK$ 0.10 5.21 -98.1%

Assets value

Net assets value per share HK$ 30.23 30.51 -0.9%

Adjusted net assets value per share HK$ 33.29 33.81 -1.5%

Net debt per share HK$ 1.96 2.29 -14.4%

FINANCIAL DATA 2008 2007 CHANGE

Average finance costs 4.4% 5.6% -1.2pp

Net debt to equity 5.9% 6.8% -0.9pp

Net interest coverage times 10.2X 7.8X 2.4X

Floating rate debt on total debt 59.5% 60.1% -0.6pp

Average debt maturity 3.9 years 4.0 years N/A

Bank facilities Capital market issuance 24.9% 75.1% 24.7% 75.3% N/A

Non-financial Performance

AREAS ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Corporate Continued to be recognised by industry for excellence in corporate governance including the Diamond Award

Governance Non-Hang Seng Index Category in the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Best Corporate

Governance Disclosure Awards 2008 and also the Best Corporate Governance Practices in China Award for

2008 as presented by IR Global Rankings

Corporate Became constituent member of the FTSE4G00d Global Index one of the best known indices to track

Responsibility responsible business practices around the world
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ChairmansStatement

Overview

Hong Kong maintained steady growth during the first half of 2008 despite growing concerns

about the global economy The second half of the year saw marked worsening of the global

environment with the international financial system experiencing severe strain in the fourth

quarter Hong Kongs financial markets were adversely affected with the impact being felt in the

real local economy

Good Operating Performance and Strong Balance Sheet

Against this background Hysan achieved another year of good operating performance in our

core leasing business The Groups 2008 turnover was HK$1638 million an increase of 19.7%

from 2007 Office sector turnover growth was 24.0% while Retail followed closely at 20.4% and

Residential at 11.5%

Recurring Underlying Profit the key measurement of our core business performance was

HK$1066 million up 12.2% from HK$950 million in 2007 This reflected our more prudent

financial investment strategy in
light

of market conditions Earnings per share based on

Recurring Underlying Profit correspondingly rose to HK102.57 cents 2007 HK9O.32 cents

Underlying Profit which excludes unrealised changes in fair value of investment properties and

related deferred tax was HK$1201 million 2007 HK$1158 million Year 2007 recorded

substantial gains derived from the disposal of long-term securities

Statutory Profit was HK$1594 million 2007 HK$3949 million This reflected the impact of

property revaluation

We maintained strong balance sheet with improved net interest coverage 2008 10.2 times

2007 7.8 times and net debt to equity ratios 2008 5.9% 2007 6.8% signifying the Groups

financial strength

The external valuation of the Groups investment property portfolio was HK$35850 million

slight rise from HK$35711 million in 2007 Adjusted shareholders funds were HK$34660

million 2007 HK$35072 million

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of final dividend of HK54.0 cents per share

2007 HK48.0 cents Together with the interim dividend of HK14.0 cents per share 2007

HK12.0 cents there is an aggregate distribution of HK68.0 cents per share representing year

on-year increase of 13.3% Subject to shareholder approval the final dividend will be payable in

cash with scrip dividend alternative

Hysan achieved another

year of good operating

performance in our core

leasing business

10 Hysan Annual Report 2008



Building .fil.r t.he Futu.re

These are challenging times However with strong balance sheet as our platform we aim to

maintain our focus on building the future of our property investment business Our strengthened

management team will enable us to continue to provide high quality products and services to

tenants and visitors alike

We also took further steps to strengthen our internal controls and risk management These

measures are further described elsewhere in this years Annual Report

The development of 500 Hennessy Road the future northern gateway of our community in

Causeway Bay is in good progress We believe this building will remain compwtitive for long

time to come Environmental sustainability in particular has been key focus of our design and

planning considerations

a.nd Staff

would like to take this opportunity to express ray sincere thanks to Pauline Wong who retired

from the Company during the year having served the Board since 1991 would also like to

thank all our staff members for their dedication and hard work during the year

O.ttIook

The global economic outlook wtl remain negative in 2009 and Hong Eongs real economy is to

be further impacted Hysan will inevitably be affected by the overall environment However the

longecterm contractual nature of our core leasing business and our balanced tenant base with

no undue dependence on any particular business sector mean that we should be more resilient

during these challenging times

Peter TC LEE

Cha/rman

Hong Kong 10 March 2009
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The ovciall vacancy ate ieee to 9/ in 200$ On the rental of Ci ode office use ot 20 // was seen in the first three quarters

cf 2008 followed by drop of 11/ in the fourth quarter As result the oveiall average untal ose by in the full year of

2008 w/h Causeway Bay Wanchai increasing by 13 5/

ade Offer coi aplct ion 3680 432 302010

Central Giade Office vacancy rate 3.8%

CausewA Bay Wa ichai Grade Office vacancy ate 29%

Overall Grade Office van mry ide 6.9% 5.1

Chant overull Gi ado Office ients 21

Change in Causeway Ray Wanchai Grndc Of tine ii ns 135% 12

aqua Set rct

Sojr Joree art taS

Dun ag the first half of 2008 the growth in domestic consumpton and tourist ai ivals continued the upward trend of the pievious

year Retail sales improved by 16/ yeai on year in value during the six month penod The growth of retail sales slowed toO 8/

year on year in the fouith quarter of 2008 giving ise to an oveiall increase of It throughout the year

In the tourism market non Mainland arrivals registe ed drop of 5.92 year on yeai the second half of 2008 Mainla id visitors

have become strong suppo to the retail sector as they still recordcd conserutive increases in arrival numbers thioughout the

second halt of the year this oup of visitors accounted for a7 of the total arnvals 2008

For the year rentals tor prime street shops iecorded mild inciease of 41 while premium prime shopping cencren saw slight

dec inc of 0.1/ rentals

Retail ales value 106% 12

mi vsitn are 75 1% 11 .5

Mainland visitor airivals 8.9% 11.9

Changc in punie stieet shop ron 41% c17.9/

Change in premium pi me shopping centi ents 3% 5.3

5ource Jon ng Ce naus and 5tatsC cs Dr pot scrt id Hong Kong toiinnni Bn

Similar to tile office and ietaii sectors the Hong Kong iesidential leasing maiket perfoirned satisfactorily in tile ea ly part of 2008

After increasing by 10.4/ during the first half overall iuaury rents fell 18.77 in the second half of the year One of the major ieasons

of the decline was atinbutable to the reduced demand fromla expatriates Overall Ii xury rentals decreased by 10 2008

he potential supp for luxury units in tiaditional high end ctistnicts oii Hong Kong Island and Kowloon during 2009 is stil oit tile

low side wil ch helps to alleviate somrie piessure from the reduced demand

Change luxury residential rents 102% 11.6

15







Tu nover

IF hf it OV iii oc to 00 ii ci HK$1 638 aFfi in 20 ue pic tie

che Fr nrc co toe env ro mi Coo or HK$1 PP ii Uton last year th reptesi iteci an

ii 19 icr wite good Fr ir in ro tho Cr iup2 op rty porttoho

ofltabddy

11cr ii yirg tot ii of Ut On op ote leasing PlOt rtvcd

ii Lx ii rig 91 ttoto Pr Pt as Inc pi fro po iF of gtor

tR Ui iO to iv tOt Wd lo$ 05 nitif ott .i torn Fir $Oott iffi in

Fir tncr wa 21 ut ib hy fal it an Pc voc and good co nc rot

it it tait IL It ttp ctor iii ng the ii iFs refF or oorc di ft ann

Otr dig ght ol ttn cart ortdtttons

Urtd fit ii vc lit lug atut ir Ptofi Fl Ii ingi to CO 00 of

attic tp rrtet md it ri todd cit va HK$1 40 tilltin inc sed 37

toni totlt on tn 2007 Its ii It ctro cii ci mtr hot posa lot equtty

ct di tc ye it

rnotor iF ci rcd tr Ia inc tiLt Hr tin Kong itta iota Fir ioi ttn Fc it

HItI 94 tFlion di 00w Fr tti FIK$ 10 FF ot itt 00 Fn ear 20

rn attt tF fa Fo itt of HK$3 131 itt in wa cu lcd IF thr ext tIn ittoti of

or in ic to rift pottfolto Oc ly ncrn ed FFV$ iS 850 itilFio teat

in 2008 20 HK$ Fr nil ii op tnt oir ip aF up rtdtt Fit it sos me

oi lii ir at Tht Ft Ftp decri rn it
Fir valoe HK$ tFF ot

cc gt is in cttrc tdat co nc it in nt

Key Performance ndcators

tO ta ii itt ibo to to io tio nFtL to ov growth pat

at prop rt an tt cy dt iv ottp irta me Ff0

is is in it oft or tita iii ho Fi itt ie of tF cmi rtot iii

ilnitir Fr wa ati or rdatdthntr 3ntfcatn totFim txpate so on brOw

ZT IT cfIP1IIIEIIIRPII%WIRtIIIIrIIuIIItIIpDJI

ii nove Sri wttt Reritat reven ie 201 Reflects the combined flect

comparn to that in 2007 cha iges in rental rite and

occunanev mie

orientate oh totaF area Ka cc Rcntal revenue atid

to ten riO over tc tal lettibl tsmanagcment eon directly

area of car ft ector proportional to on cup incy rate

Optii uses revenue balancing

occupancy rate and eiutal level

rope ty sperm ml Principally bc in diict cost Meisunes the diiect costs

Pr ire on associated wilt dr ily oporat in currcd in managing the

unniovet of the Groups propn ty portfolio iroup prnperty pot tfolio

Calculated by dividing propc nty
An indication of the gross

soc cc by turnovci ii argin of our businc



L3usiness Urnts Review

For 1anagement purposes the Icas ng chvity of the Gioup is organised into thiee setois office retail and residentia Each

sector ha different tenant base and equires different marketing stiategies the to lowing discusses oui poittolio strategies

and peifoi nce of each sector

Description

Hysan owns and manages million gross squaie feet of high quality office bui drigs in the

core commercial district of Causeway Bay We offei range of first class premises with different

occupiei chaiacte istics attracting balanced broad based poittolio of tenants The diversity

means no one industry takes up moie than 05/ of he oveiall flooi area Hysan office lease

te ms are typically foi thiee years but in some cases up to six to ne yeai in durat on

2008 Highhghts

Office sector evenue saw healthy growth of 24.0 to HK$ 703 million 200 HK$367 million

ibm was attributable mainly to positive ental reversicn on ienewals throughout the year Othe

rontribc tars included new tenants as well as the expansion of existing te iants iequi ng more

space

the poitfolio had 975/ 2007 96 6o occupancy at the end of the yeai

Description

Hysan ietail portfolio approxunately 09 rnillon gross square fect s2e takes full advantage

of its position in Causeway Bay one of Hong Kongs prime retail aieas The tenants include

variety of reta and leisuin outlets housed in buildings ike The tee Gardens and Lee Gardens

Two with concentration of high end ands or fec Theatie Plaza area borne to lifestye shops

and renowned restauiants Retail leases norm ly run to thiee years but longei leases may be

signcd on case bycase basis These leases provide foi fixed nonthly rent wth turnover rent

in most cases

2008 Highlights

Retail sector ever ue grew 204/ ovei last yeai to HK$608 in Ilion 2007 HK$503 ru lion

Good local consumption growth throughout 7008 even though the giowth owed down

somewhat in the second half of the yeai

iounsts visiting Hong Kong especially from Ma nland China continued to increase in 2008

which supported the local retail market

Sales growth in turn helped the rental rate increases and contnhuted to turnovei iert

Occupancy rcmuined at 97 4/o 2007 97.8/ at the end of the year

Description

Our residential portfolio principa ly comprises of the Bamboo Giove iesidential development

located in Mid Levels We offer top quality facilities and personalised services Residential

leases are typically tar two yeais

2008 HighlIghts

Residential sector revenue increased t..5/ to HK$292 million 2007 HK$262 million

Demand for luxuiy residential propeities fiom expatriates especially from the financial secfor

weakened during the last quarter of the yeai

On irsidential portfnlia recorded 89.6/ 2007 90.2%f occupancy at the end of the year

amid such challenging environment

Turnover by Sector

Gross Floor Area by Sector

rxclnding Pmpci ty ter

indcveonmer

Capta Value by Sector
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Ree

Rerk

iv 2II 19



st ii an ial ate me

ft ibi ty to nercit hi ho 1w is prow lad

ft ir twi hot Ix nes the ipshi nftJpo xi for rain aid

ft ca ii nci ii positm rrou th idis all tempo nt if

ii ho cii it lb

rovi inf tion bou rh ou ii et im ri th roup fin nra Ii

orm nd Our in po to

rovid in arm ti bou th ip norm our co itrnl our fin Ira or

in on nd quitif ou liquidity lv rid urn to adapt

piovi infoim tion he to han in th nvironrn nt in whi mm

rout in fin ial pa iti ly out on nd

in nt umm he Grups ii rm nce Th flow nt umrrr ins th roup rh ng in

iyfn nialy Inform ton bou ourp miami noon finni Ipoition vry inni II hi infrmtini fit

nti inp riul urprfitbility rid rn inord rtr inrvi win ur rho tin ndfin non lvii

nhal in onomic sour th wr du in th portin or nd in providin to ui

to in th ii urn II ful in rn ing bili nd quiv nd our

jud ut ha if liven with which roup mi ht to ci ho II urth an ly un

mploy cliii urn II ci
ly ou on

pa

AANC

To at rn

Iv tm tpr rtr

tm in Avaria for nv

in nO In in rd

an
nk

ir iu
II Ct of

mv prop Ii
mv rO ft

Ii of .r

it mvm ad mvad

ion ym mit

non re

xl
tmt

thrm hr

dam
Ir nt

nd ton to rprh
ha

Mi
mty

me
Pro

lion

ft
ma if

ml

al Pm ma

Hyiau Ani mit port 200



Kei Accounting Pr ies
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Property Expenses

Property expenses are the costs of providing property services

directly associated with the daily operations of our investment

properties being primarily related to utilities costs front-line staff

wages repairs and maintenance agency fees government rents

and rates as well as other rent-related expenses

While the total property expenses increased slightly by HK$9

million or 4.3% to HK$217 million 2007 HK$208 million such

increase is significantly less than the relevant increase in turnovec

Property expenses to turnover ratio thus improved from 15.2%

to 13.2% against 2007 Our energy efficiency enhancement

programme led to continued savings in energy costs

Investment Income

Investment income of HK$63 million 2007 HK$98 million mainly

comprised dividend and interest income The decrease reflected

lower interest environment in 2008 and lower dividend income

derived from the Groups equity investments

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses dropped to HK$146 million from HK$302 million in 2007

The Group manages financial assets held as long-terre investments with the aim of balancing

their anticipated liquidity position funding needs capital gains as well as industry diversification

For these reasons certain available-for-sale equity investments were disposed ot during the year

resulting in realised gain of HK$186 million recognised in the consolidated income statement

The remaining available-for-sale investments portfolio will continue to he held as the Groups

long-term investments

In light
of the extreme volatility and uncertainty of the financial markets since September 2008

the Group has adopted more prudent strategy in its financial investment activities As at the

end of 2008 the Group had no outstanding position on held-for-trading investments Instead

the Group made investments in short-term government bills and notes which are the most liquid

and secure types of investment to maintain the Groups liquid assets

The Group has made use of derivatives to manage the volatilities or adjust the appropriate

risk profile of our treasury assets and liabilities As at year-end 2008 all of the outstanding

derivatives were related to the hedging of and are commensurate with our interest rate and

foreign exchange exposures

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased to HK$134 nrillion from HK$106 million in 2007 whctr

was principally due to higher staff costs as result of the Groups efforts to strengthen our

management team
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Interests in Associates

Interests in associates had incieased by HK$ 739 miflion to HK$2340 mfflion This main

iep es ited the Groups shaie of operating results change in fat values of investment

pioprities as w1l as exchange gan on tianslation in the Shanghai Grand Gateway projecte

dunng the year

Ii

Time Deposits Cash and Bank Balances

Time depos te tsh and bank halance amounted to

HK$ 0Th mdhon as year end 2008 2007 HK$48d

mitior The ne ease prior ipaly atti ibutab funds from

new bank loan and issuance of fixed rate notes before the

credd market detenoiated in the last quartei ot 2008 These

new funds prepaed the Group to bettei deal with the 0SS ble

ghtened credit tuabon in 2009

Held4oiVlaturity Debt Securites

Appi oxmiately HK$700 million funds were maintained at

government bills and notes at year end 2008 to preserve

the Grouos lipuidity in this most liquid and secure form of

investment

Borrowings

The carrying amount of the Groups borrowings stood at HK$3751 niillion at yeai end 2008 an

increase fiom HK$2861 million as at year end 2001 The increase is mainly due to US$25.6

million equivalent to HK$200 mil ion new bank loan and issuance of HK$565 million fixed rate

notes during the year

Taxation

Provision tor taxation aggregation of curient tax ano oererreo taxi aecreased tu Hk$3999

ttill on in 2008 2007 HK$4180 million which was principally due to HK$223 million

taxation credit on deteried tax iesulting from the change in tax ate Such deciease was offset

by ret increase in cuire it tax of HK$83 mi lion wh ch was made up of HK$192 million

charge foi the year prior year tax provision of HK$72 million and tax payment less efu tds of

HK$183 million

Shareholders Funds

The contribution to shaieholdeis funds from operating iesults was largey offset by thc deciease

in air sa ue assoe atd with th hstd sm iii ties oortfo io resulting in slight decrease in

shareholders funds from HK$31 652 million in 2007 to HK$31469 million in 2008 Adjusted

shareholders funds were also reduced slightly from HK$35072 million in 2007 to HK$34660

million in 2008

Minority nterests

The ice of HK$75 Ilion in ninoiity interests to HK$1241 million 2007 HK$1t96 million

was attributable to profit contribution as well as ievtluation surplus from cc Gardens Two
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Our Strategy in Action Managements Discussion and Analysis

Operating actMties

Cash generated from operations

Net tax paid

Investing activities

Payments in respect of

investment properties

Disposals of available-for-sale

Investments

Proceeds upon maturity placement

of pnncipal-protected deposits

Interest and dividends received

Receipts from overseas projects

Purchase of propert plant and

equipment

Financing actMties

Dividends paid

Finance costs

Increase in borrowings

Proceeds on exercise of share options

Share repurchase

Net Incmase In cash and

cash equIvalents

345 125 220 176.0

272 394 122 -31.0

78 197 275 N/A

60 87 27 -31.0

140 134 -95.7

66.7

296 230 -77.7

144 29.0

22 -13.6

765 N/A

15 13 -86.7

513 -100.0

1143 -98.8

1231 99 1132 1143.4

Operating Activities

There was an increase of HK$219 million net cash from operations over the previous year which

was in line with the growth in the Groups core business operating results Tax payments less

refund of HK$183 million was also made during the year

Investing Activities

There was decrease in net cash from investing activities to HK$66 million 2007 HK$296

million This principally reflects increased capital expenditure including the re-development of

Hennessy Centre during the year Year 2007 also recorded substantial proceeds from disposal

firstly
of available-for-sales investments and secondly of all the remaining units in the Groups

Singapore joint-venture residential project

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was HK$14 million decrease of HK$1143 million from last

year This was mainly due to new borrowings of HK$765 million comprising bank loan of HK$200

million and fixed rate notes of HK$565 million issued under the Medium Term Notes Programme

No share repurchase was undertaken during the year

2008 2007 CHANGE CHANGE

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

1362 1100 262 23.8

183 140 43 30.7

1479 960 219 22.8

66

641

140

765

14

497

162

513

1157

28 Hysan Annual Report 2008



Beyond Financial Statements

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has underwritten its associates on cash calls to finance working capital requirements

Based on currently available information management does not anticipate any major call for

cash contributions in the foreseeable future

Capital Expenditure and Management

The Group is committed to enhancing the asset value of our

investment property portfolio through selective re-tenanting

refurbishment repositioning and redevelopment The Group

also has in place portfolio-wide whole-life cycle maintenance

programme as part of its ongoing strategy to pro-actively review

and implement maintenance activities

Total cash outlay of capital expenditure excluding purchase

of plant and equipment during the review year was HK$345

million The graph on the right illustrates capital expenditure

patterns during the last five years

The Group has an internal control system for scrutinising capital

expenditures Detailed analysis of expected risks and returns

is submitted to unit heads Executive Directors or the Board for consideration and approval

depending on strategic importance cost/benefit and the size of the projects The criteria for

assessment of financial feasibility are generally based on net present value pay back period and

internal rate of return from projected cash flow

At year-end the Group had HK$3550 million undrawn committed bank facilities These facilities

together with the Medium Term Notes Programme available-for-sale investments and positive

cash flows from local and overseas operations provide adequate financial resources to fund the

level of planned capital expenditure including the Hennessy Centre redevelopment project

Hennessy Centre Redevelopment

The former Hennessy Centre at 500 Hennessy Road redevelopment project will be completed

at the end of 2011 Sub-structure works are in progress and the Group has proceeded to

awarding the main construction contract The 36-storey mixeduse office and retail building with

four additional levels of basement will have gross floor area of approximately 710000 square

feet 500 Hennessy Road will be the future northern gateway to Hysans community in Causeway

Bay It aims to attain the highest international standards in architectural design including

environmental sustainability

Capital Expenditure

I-IK$ million

400

320

240

ii160

80

04 05 06 07 08
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Our Strategy in Action Managements Discussion and Analysis

Financial Policy

The global financial markets experienced unprecedented turmoil in 2008 In addition to the

volatility in most markets around the world the supply of credit contracted markedly which

translated into wider credit spreads even to borrowers with good credit ratings Despite the

extensive measures rolled out by governments of major countries the global financial system

remains under stress Therefore maintaining sufficient liquidity is the key to ensure financial

strength In the wake of the collapse of some major financial institutions counterparty risk has

also become highly important issue that requires constant monitoring

Hysan adheres to policy of financial prudence Our objectives are to

maintain strong balance sheet by actively managing debt level and cash flow

secure diversified funding sources from both banks and capital markets

minimise refinancing and liquidity risks by attaining healthy debt repayment capacity maturity profile and availability of banking

facilities with minimum collateral on debt

manage the exposures arising from adverse market movements in interest rates and foreign exchange through appropriate

hedging strategies

monitor counterparty risks by imposing proper counterparty limits and reduce financial investment risks by holding quality

marketable securities

Average Finance Costs

PEIFORMJuJEINOICA1O HirrISMEASuRED SiGNJRCANCE1O1I tW

Bank Facilities

Capital Market Issuance

Average Debt Maturity

Floating Rate Debt

on Total Debt

Interest expenses divi by average Our treasury aim to manage and optimise

borrowing for the year finance costs

2008 4.4% 2007 5.6% HIBOR was genei ly lower in 2008 as compared

to 2007

The proportion of the trowings from banks As measure of iversification of funding

and from capital market elative to th total sources

borrowings
No significant cha ge

2008 24.9% 75.1%

2007 24.7% 75.3%

The weighted average emaining mturity
An indicator of thi pressure for iellnancing or

period of the Groups bO4owings repaying the exist ig borrowirs in the near term

2008 3.9 years 20O .0 years The average mati ty remains broadly the same

Debt effectively in flôath interest rat measure to catc late the percentage of

divided by total debt borrowings subject to fluctuation In market

2008 59.5% 2007 1% interest rates

No significant ch ge

Gross profit less admirratIve experi4es
It represents the roup financial strength from

before depreciation dividôd by net inteest operating activitie to meet its interest payment

expenses obligations

2008 10.2 times 2007 7.8 times Improved ratio ret ts higher gross profit and

lower average fina cost

Net Interest Coverage

Net Debt to Equity Borrowings less cash and cash equivaents
benchmark as t4 the heattI debt level as well

divided by adjusted shamholders
fund

as an indicator of he Groups abthty to raise

2008 5.9% 2007 6.8%

Improvement pnn paHy due to lower net debt

evel
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Credit Ratings

Moodys 2008 Baal 2007 Baal

Standard and Poors 2008 BBB 2007 BBB

Investment-grade ratings

unchanged

The Treasury policy manual lays down the acceptable range of operational parameters and gives

guidance on the above areas in order to achieve the objective of financial prudence

Treasury has an overall objective of optimisation of borrowing costs and management of the

associated risks that is to minimise finance costs subject to the constraints of the operational

parameters The cost of financing was 4.4% for 2008

Debt Management

During 2008 the credit market in Hong Kong tightened significantly due to the deleveraging

activities and shrunken balance sheets of many financial institutions Therefore prudent

approach to managing our debt portfolio is particularly crucial While the Group always strives to

lower the borrowing margin the more important consideration in the current environment is to

ensure sufficient available facilities to diversify the funding sources and to maintain suitable

maturity profile relative to the overall duration of the use of such funds

The Group managed to secure total of HK$765 million of new borrowings comprising

US$25.6 million bank loan and HK$565 million of notes issued from the Medium Term Notes

Programme before the credit market nearly dried up in the fourth quarter of 2008 This new

financing is precautionary measure taken by the Group in case the credit market remains

tight or deteriorates further in 2009 The new financing raised will be sufficient to refinance

the maturing debts in 2009 amounting to HK$550 million As at 31 December 2008 the

outstanding gross debt of the Group was about HK$3698 million 2007 HK$2921 million

All the outstanding borrowings are on an unsecured and committed basis

In order to diversify our funding sources the Group has

established long-term relationships with number of local

and overseas banks At present 10 local and overseas banks

have provided bilateral banking facilities to the Group and such

bank borrowings accounted for about 24.9% of the Groups

outstanding gross debt Notes issued from the Medium Term

Notes Programme serve as an important source of funding

for the Group The Programme allows the Group to access

broad investor base in the local and international debt capital

markets These markets are more flexible with respect to the

longer-tenor debts For instance the three notes that the Group

issued in 2008 have maturities ranging from to 12 years As

at the end of 2008 about 75.1% of the Groups outstanding

gross debts were sourced from the debt capital markets

The graph on the right shows the percentages of total

outstanding gross debts sourced from banks and the debt

capital markets in the past five years

Sources of Financing at Year-end

HK$ million

6000

4800

3600

2400

1200

capital Market Issuances

Bilateral Bank Loans
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Our Strategy in Action Managements Discussion and Analysis

The Group also strives to maintain an appropriate maturity profile and reduce the concentration

of debts maturing in the near term The average maturity of the debt portfolio was about 3.9

years As at 31 December 2008 only about HK$620 million or 16.8% of the outstanding debts

will be due in less than two years Therefore there will not be significant refinancing pressure

on the Group in the near term especially when the level of cash and the undrawn committed

facilities available to the Group are taken into account

The debt maturity profile of the Group is as follows

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Maturing in not exceeding one year 550

Maturing in more than one year but not exceeding two years 70 550

Maturing in more than two years but not exceeding five years 2270 2140

Maturing in more than five years 808 231

Total Gross Debt 3698 2921

Total gross debt at the end of 2008 was HK$3698 million increased by around HK$777 million

as compared to 2007

Liquidity Management

To cope with the tightening credit market the maintenance of sufficient liquidity is of utmost

importance to all businesses The Group always places great emphasis on liquidity management

Benefited from the strong recurring cash flows from its business the Group stands in

favourable position to withstand the liquidity crunch As at 31 December 2008 the Group had

cash and bank deposits totalling about HK$1015 million 2007 HK$484 million All the

deposits are diversified with banks of strong credit ratings and the counterparty risk is monitored

on regular basis

Apart from bank deposits the Group also invested in short-term government bills and notes

issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and US Treasury thereby preserving the Groups

liquidity in the most liquid and secure form of investment As at 31 December 2008 the

outstanding balance of funds invested in these government bills and notes amounted to about

HK$700 million Additional liquidity reserve is maintained in the form of highly liquid securities

listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong The market value of these securities amounted to

HK$982 million as at the end of 2008

Further liquidity if needed is available from the undrawn committed facilities offered by the

Groups relationship banks These facilities which amounted to HK$3550 million as at 31

December 2008 essentially allow the Group to obtain the same level of liquidity as holding the

equivalent amount of cash

Interest Rate Management

Interest expenses account for significant proportion of the Groups total expenses

Therefore the Group closely monitors its interest rate exposures Depending on our medium

term projections of interest rates an appropriate hedging strategy is adopted to manage the

exposure
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Since the second half of 2008 when the economic outlook

worsened and inflation pressure subsided most of the central

banks in the advanced economies have introduced strong

measures to cut policy rates In tandem with the slash of the

Fed Fund target rate the 3-month Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered

Rate HIBOR has dropped from its yearly peak of 4.44%

in October 2008 to 0.95% at the end of 2008 However the

benefit of the rate reduction was partially offset by the widened

credit spreads on the new borrowings

As at 31 December 2008 about 59.5% of the Groups debts

were at floating rates that can reap the full benefit of the lower

interest rate environment As result the Groups average cost

of financing lowered from 5.6% in 2007 to 4.4% in 2008

Foreign Exchange Management

The Group aims to have minimal mismatches in currency and does not speculate in currency

movements With the exception of the US$182 million 10-year notes and the US$25.6 million

bank loan which have been hedged by appropriate hedging instruments all of the Groups other

borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars On the investment side US$27 million

of held-to-maturity debt securities were denominated in US dollars and the investments have

also been fully hedged against foreign exchange exposure Other foreign exchange exposure

relates to our investments in overseas project in Shanghai These foreign exchange exposures

amounted to the equivalent of HK$2340 million or 5.6% of our total assets

Use of Derivatives

As at 31 December 2008 all of the outstanding derivatives were related to and commensurate

with the hedging of interest rate and foreign exchange exposures The Group has made use of

derivatives to manage the volatilities or adjust the appropriate risk profile of our treasury assets

and liabilities To prevent the Group from being exposed to undue risks arising from the use of

derivatives all such transactions have to strictly follow our internal guidelines

Before entering into any hedging transaction the Group will ensure that the counterparty

possesses strong investment-grade ratings so that the transaction will not expose the Group

to undue credit risk As part of our risk management limit on maximum risk-adjusted credit

exposure is assigned to each counterparty The level of the limit is basically in line with the credit

quality of the counterparty

Debt Levels and Average Finance Costs

HK$ million

The diagram on the right shows the Groups debt levels and

average finance costs in the past five years

04 05 06 07 08

Year-end Gross Debt

Year-end Net Debt

Gross debt less cash and cash equivalents

Average Finance costs
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Our Strategy in Action

Internal Controls and Risk Management

Responsibility

Our Board of Directors has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound and effective internal

controls are maintained while management is charged with the responsibility to design and

implement an internal controls system to manage risks sound system of internal controls is

designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and

can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance

Hysans Internal Controls Model

Our internal controls model is based on that set down by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organisations of the U.S Treadway Commission COSO and has components namely

Control Environment Risk Assessment Control Activities Information and Communication and

Monitoring In developing our internal controls model based on the COSO principles we have

taken into consideration our organisation structure and nature of business activities

Control Environment this is very important as it sets the tone for internal controls in

company Hysan is tightly-knit organisation with around 500 staff members The actions

of management and its demonstrated commitment to effective governance and control are

therefore very transparent to all We have strong tradition of good corporate governance

and corporate culture based on good business ethics and accountability We have in place

formal Code of Ethics which is communicated to all staff including new recruits Our

whistle-blowing system is monitored by an independent third party service provider with

direct reporting to Audit Committee Chairman We aim to build risk awareness and control

responsibility into our culture and regard this as the foundation of our internal controls system

kontro1

Manag.m.nt Risk M.nag.m.nt

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Business/Unit Heads Executive Director Finance

business management treasury tax controlling

operations and accounting

Executive Director and

Company Secretary

compliance

human resources
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Control Activities our core property leasing and management business involves well-

established business processes Control Activities have traditionally been built on senior

management reviews segregation of duties and physical controls Nonetheless we recognise

that an appropriate level of further formalisation commensurate with the complexity of

business processes is beneficial for the continual development of the Group There is also

the general desire to move towards management style based on systematic and structured

control principles In this light we conducted an entity-wide exercise to map all key control

processes to appropriate objectives Process owners in business and support units were

identified to document the relevant policies and are responsible to ensure controls exist and

are in operation We shall continually review and refine these policies

Summary of Key Developments in 2008

Important developments from risk management perspective that took place in 2008 and steps

taken by management include

In the fourth quarter of the year the global financial markets experienced unprecedented

turmoil It led to volatility
in most markets in the world as well as contraction in supply of

credit

We adhered to the principle of financial prudence

We accelerated our financing plans and pre-arranged funding in advance of re-financing due

in 2009

We further strengthened our regular review system of counterparty risks as regards banking

and investment activities

We adopted prudent financial investment activities and orderly disposed of listed securities

held for trading purposes The proceeds were invested in short-term government bills and

bonds secure and liquid form of investment

Further details are described in the sections Managements Discussion and Analysis

Financial Policy and Corporate Governance Report Focus in 2008

Specify Corporate

Objective$
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Our Strategy in Action Internal Controls and Risk Management

Worsened economic conditions led to reduced demand in the Hong Kong leasing markets in

general and intensified competition among landlords

We refined our scenario planning approach in preparing budget and forecasts in

anticipation of more challenging economic environment This will enable us to take

appropriate cost management measures in timely manner in response to any significant

changes in budgeted revenue

We started phased project to review our procurement system to further enhance cost

efficiency as well as control effectiveness Steps have been taken to enhance procurement

processes including contractor selection contract terms and conditions appropriate in-

sourcing as well as having in place additional checks-and-balances

In general we further strengthened our management team with the view to better

understanding and providing solutions to changing tenant needs Skills in customer

relationships management sales and marketing as well as property services were further

strengthened Levels of authority were also reviewed following the arrival of new senior staff

balancing effective delegation and control

Hennessy Centre re-development

Management proceeded to fully develop the design and tendering of the main construction

contract The demolition of the existing structure was completed during the year

Our internal project management team complemented by specialist advisers reviewed the

tendering process from the risk perspective Various aspects including tender award criteria

and process terms and conditions were covered in this review

The Finance Division is also involved in the tendering process to ensure appropriate checks-

and-balances and input from the finance perspective There is periodic reporting to senior

management and the Board

2008 Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness

The Board is responsible for the Companys system of internal controls and for reviewing its

effectiveness Internal Audit and management conduct reviews of the effectiveness of the

Companys system of internal controls The Audit Committee reviews the findings and opinion

of Internal Audit and management on the effectiveness of the Companys system of internal

controls at least once each year and reports annually to the Board on such reviews

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2008 the Board considered the internal controls

system effective and adequate No significant areas of concern which might affect the

operational financial reporting and compliance functions of the Company were identified

Way Forward

We recognise that the strengthening of internal controls is continuing process We shall

continually review our business processes and control activities Most importantly an effective

internal controls system does not stop at senior management level We shall further strengthen

risks and controls awareness among our staff across the organisation
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsible Business as the Guiding Priniciple

Hysan aims to be financially successful as well as responsible business In our quest to

deliver long-term sustainable value to our shareholders we have to understand the context

in which we operate and make decisions that balance the needs of various stakeholders To

our shareholders this is translated into commitment to maintaining the highest standards

of corporate governance The cornerstones of our corporate governance practices are

accountability transparency and integrity

To us therefore good corporate governance is not an exercise in compliance Nor is this

restricted to the Board process The Board must delegate to other executives who in turn

implement policies across the organisation It is therefore crucial to reinforce our corporate

culture and values which emphasise good business ethics and responsible behaviour in general

Statement of Compliance with The Code on Corporate Governance

Practices

Hysan meets the requirements of the Code Provisions contained in the Code on Corporate

Governance Practices the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited the Stock Exchange except that its Emoluments Review Committee established

since 1987 has the responsibility for determining executive Director compensation The Board is

of the view that in light of the current organisational structure and the relatively simple nature of

Hysans business activities the current arrangements for the Emoluments Review Committee to

determine executive Director compensation is appropriate The Board will continue to review this

arrangement in light of the needs of the Group The Companys Corporate Governance Guidelines

provide for separate roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Peter Ting Chang LEE serves

as the Chairman An open search is currently underway for new Chief Executive Officer

Shar.holdrs

Responible
Community
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Exceeded Best Practices in Corporate Governance in Place at Hysan

Code Provisions

The Board first established formal Corporate Governance Policy in 2004

The Board has designated Senior Independent non-executive Director Sir David AKERS-JONES Independent non

executive Deputy Chairman

The Board has established formal mandates and responsibilities for itself with clear division of roles with

management

The Board has established formal criteria and requirements for non-executive Director appointments

Newly appointed Non-executive Directors are given formal letters of appointment

Board evaluation Chairman and Non-executive Directors meet at regularly scheduled sessions without presence of

management

Over one-third of the Board is represented by Independent non-executive Directors

All Corporate Governance Committees Audit Emoluments Review and Nomination have at least majority of

Independent non-executive Directors There is 100% Independent non-executive Director membership for the

Emoluments Review Committee Terms of Reference of such Committees provide for in-camera meetings without

management presence to further encourage objective and independent discussions and assessment

The Group has written Code of Ethics applicable to all staff and Directors Monitoring of the whistle-blowing

mechanism has been outsourced to an external independent third party provider to further enhance independence

Such service provider has direct reporting access to the Audit Committee

The Group has established Code for Securities Dealing applicable to those employees likely to have access to

unpublished price-sensitive information

The Group has established Corporate Disclosure Policy to guide its communications with its stakeholders and

determination of price sensitive information in order to ensure consistent and timely disclosure and fulfillment of the

Groups continuous disclosure obligations

The Group has established an Auditor Services Policy to identify areas of conflicts and prohibits engagement of

auditors in such areas to ensure objectivity and independence

The Group has demonstrated its commitment to transparency in shareholder reporting by publishing separate

Corporate Governance Report since 2001 It also publishes the following reports

Audit Committee Report

ii Directors Remuneration and Interests Report and

iii Report on Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Group has formal Corporate Responsibility Policy and publishes separate annual Corporate Responsibility

Report

Since 2004 the Group has operated new form of annual general meeting AGM that goes beyond discharging of

statutory business by including detailed business review session led by the Chairman

The Group has initiated and funded programme inviting major nominee companies to proactively forward

communication materials to ultimate beneficial shareholders at its expense

The Group continually enhances the use of its corporate website as means of communication with shareholders

Principal corporate governance policies guidelines and terms of reference of related committees are posted

Detailed policies/terms of reference are available on the Companys website www.hysan.com.hk

The Group has early adopted certain changes in requirements of the Listing Rules effective for financial year 2009 and proposed

changes set out in recent Stock Exchange consultation conclusions in pursuant of good governance

Early Adoption Best Practices in Corporate Governance in Place at Hysan

The Company has conducted all voting at AGM5 by poll since 2004

The Group published its annual results within 73 days for 2008 well within the proposed change being months of

the end of accounting period

The Group has Qualified Accountant as defined under the Listing Rules throughout 2008 The Audit Committee

also reviewed the adequacy of resources qualification/experience of staff of the Groups accounting and financial

reporting function and their training/budget
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Focus in 2008

Further strengthening of our internal controls system was key focus area in 2008 This was

particularly important in light of the global financial markets turmoil during the fourth quarter

and the generally worsened local economic conditions We adhered to the principle of financial

prudence and further strengthened our financial and treasury management budgetary planning

and costs control In particular we further enhanced our regular review system of the Groups

counterparty risks in banking and investment activities Our management team was further

strengthened generally Further details are set out in the separate Internal Controls and Risk

Management Report

The Board noted recent incidents in Hong Kong and elsewhere associated with the lack of

transparency in the management of business activities including where some companies had

taken steps that stray from their core competencies There were Board discussions on the

general principles The Board and management unanimously agreed as to the significance of

providing timely and accurate information to the full Board They fully supported the monitoring

function of Independent non-executive Directors These are further described under The Board

in this report

In general we further improved the quality of corporate governance reporting and disclosure

generally In this Annual Report we aim to provide comprehensive yet user-friendly information

on all material matters regarding performance of the Group We seek to explain the drivers

risks and strategy behind our financial performance

Operations Review Page 18

Financial Policy Page 30

Human Resources Page 37

As regards governance-related aspects enhanced disclosure in internal controls and risk

management executive compensation was made in particular The relevant reports are

Internal Controls and Risk Management Page 34

Directors Remuneration and Interests Report Page 66

We recognise the significance of electronic communications Detailed information on our

governance framework is set out in our corporate website www.hysan.com.hk

BoadcOnMt.es Corporate Governance New approach to AGMs Continual corporate

Report 2001 2004 social responsibility

a7 Audit Committee Report Self funded programme to
efforts as an integral

2003 facilitate transmission of part of good corporate

Directors Remuneration corporate communication governance admission

and Interests Report
materials to ultimate

toFTSE4Good Index

2004 shareholders 2005
Company-wide briefing

Internal Controls and
of Code of Ethics and

Risk Management
outsourcing of whistle

Report 2006
blowing to independent

Corporate Responsibility third party 2008
Report 2007 Continual Group-wide

reinforcement of

corporate values and

culture

_\ WAYFORWARD
ESTABLISH THE INFRASTRUCTURE DISCLOSURE SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS MQRE TH$N

BARDPOcESS

Evolution of Hysans Corporate Governance Framework
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Our Corporate Governance Practices Governance Model

and Framework

Governance Model

Hysans governance model is based on an effective combination of family ownership and

professional management Our founding shareholding family remains major shareholder today

We take the view that this element of family ownership can enable managers to take long-term

view in decision-making balancing the need to produce short-term results or earnings targets In

general family owners also have more direct interest in the outcome of decisions made

This family ownership model is combined with commitment to apply the principle of meritocracy

in human resources management across the Group Recruitment of professional management

staff from outside the controlling shareholder base ensures that wide net is cast for talent

Appropriate checks-and-balances are also built into our governance structure These include the

designation of Senior Independent non-executive Director and the establishment of appropriate

Board Committees The roles and responsibilities of the Board Non-executive Directors and

Board Committees are clearly delineated

Governance Framework

There are many guidelines policies and procedures that support the governance framework at

Hysan The following constitute key components of Hysans governance framework They are

posted on the Companys website www.hysan.com.hk

Corporate Governance Guidelines

Board of Directors Mandate

Roles requirements of Non-executive Directors

Terms of Reference of various corporate governance-related Board Committees

Audit Emoluments Review and Nomination Committees

Code of Ethics for Employees

Auditor Services Policy

Corporate Disclosure Policy

The Board reviews its corporate governance practices annually
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Our Corporate Governance Practices The Board

Focus in 2008

In addition to extensive discussions on Group leasing strategy projects and performance the

Board also focused on the following areas

Group human talent was an area of attention There was general review and refinement of

core skill requirements in light
of the changing market environment and competition Regular

updates on progress in continually strengthening the Groups human resources were provided

to the Board

The Chairman ensures that the Directors receive accurate timely and clear information This

was particularly important in light of global financial markets turmoil during the last quarter

of the year Updated information on the Groups counterparty risks in banking/investment

activities and steps taken to manage such risks was supplied to non-executive Directors in

timely manner Moving forward management will further strengthen the provision of regular

updates to the Board of our business performance in addition to detailed reports presented

in quarterly Board meetings Please refer to the separate Internal Controls and Risk

Management Report for more details

The Board noted recent incidents in Hong Kong and elsewhere associated with the lack of

transparency in the management of business activities including where some companies had

at times taken steps that stray from their core competencies There were Board discussions

on the general principles The Board and management unanimously agreed on the significance

of firstly the provision of timely and accurate information to the full Board and secondly the

monitoring function of Independent non-executive Directors to ensure compliance with the

disclosure and other legal requirements

Objectivity of Independent non-executive Directors was further stressed in this light They have

special contribution as Board members as they offer critical insight into operations The

Board carried out detailed review of the independence of non-executive Directors during

the year

The Board and Management

The roles of the Board and of the management are separate and distinct The Boards

responsibility is firstly to formulate strategy and secondly to monitor and control operating

and financial performance in pursuit of Groups strategic objectives On the other hand

the responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Groups business activities and the

implementation of the Groups policies remains vested in management

The Board and management fully appreciate their respective roles and are supportive of the

development of healthy corporate governance culture
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These are governed by formal Board of Directors

Mandate Details are available on the Companys website

www.hysan.com.hk which sets out the key responsibilities of

the Board in
fulfilling

its stewardship roles

detailed list of Matters Reserved For Board Decisions is in

place setting out key matters that are to be retained for full

Board decision These matters include extension of Group

activities into new business areas annual budgets preliminary

announcements of interim and final results dividends material

banking facilities material acquisitions and disposals and

connected transactions

Where applicable the materiality thresholds are set at

appropriate levels to ensure proper control while allowing for

smooth day-to-day operations to be carried out by management

The schedule is reviewed periodically at least once year It

was last formally reviewed by the Board in March 2009

Four Board meetings were held in 2008 and the meetings were

structured to allow open discussion Details of Directors Board

attendance records are as follow

Hysan has always

believed in the need to

have outside directors..

majority of the public

companys first board

of directors were from

outside the Lee family

There has been

significant evolution in

the role of the outside directors as well Now they still

bring their world of experience into our board room

and these are especially invaluable during discussions

on strategies and plans for the future They are also

watchdogs to ensure the strict requirements of the

law and regulatory controls are observed They make

our management team much more aware of corporate

governance requirements and are more alert to our

responsibilities

Peter T.C LEE

Chairman

DIREcToRs ATTENDANCE/

TOTAL BOARD MEETINGS

Executive

Peter Ting Chang LEE 4/4

Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG 2/2

Stepped down on the conclusion of AGM held in May 2008

Ricky Tin For TSANG Appointed on April 2008 3/3

Wendy Wen Yee YUNG Appointed on April 2008 3/3

Independent Non-executive

Sir David AKERS-JONES 4/4

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN 3/4

Fa-kuang HU 3/4

Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH 3/4

Non-executive

Hans Michael JEBSEN 4/4

50% by alternate

Anthony Hsien Pin LEE 4/4

Chien LEE 4/4

Dr Deanna Ruth Tak Yung RUDGARD 4/4
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Division of Responsibilities

The Groups corporate governance model aims to effectively combine family control and

professional management In this light the Board has established clear specification of duties

under our Board structure to ensure proper division of responsibilities and balance of power

The Groups Corporate Governance Guidelines provide for separate roles of Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer Peter Ting Chang LEE serves as the Chairman An open search is currently

underway for Chief Executive Officer

Sir David AKERS-JONES acts as the Independent non-executive Deputy Chairman of the Board

His role as the Senior Independent non-executive Director is formalised in the Groups Corporate

Governance Guidelines The presence of an Independent non-executive Deputy Chairman is

designed to ensure that the Board functions effectively and is independent of management

where appropriate

The Non-executive Directors play key role in protecting shareholders interests They bring an

external dimension to the Board whilst complementing the skills and experience of the executive

Directors through their range of knowledge experience and insight from other sectors

The principal roles of the Senior Independent non-executive Director and Non-executive Directors

are set out below

SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

To be available to shareholders and fellow Directors if they have concerns relating to matters

that contact through the normal channels of Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer has

failed to resolve or for which such contact is inappropriate

Our Senior Independent non-executive Director currently chairs two of Hysans corporate

governance-related committees namely the Audit Committee and the Emoluments Review

Committee

For detalis piease refer to the companys corporate Governance Guidehnes at the companys website

www.hysan.com.hk

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

They have four key roles in addition to those applicable to all Directors

Strategy constructively challenge hence help develop proposals on strategy

Performance scrutinise performance of management in meeting agreed goals and objectives

Risk to satisfy themselves about the integrity of financial information and the robustness of

controls and systems of risk management

People determine appropriate levels of remuneration for Executive Directors and to

undertake succession planning

For detaiis piease refer to the companys corporate Governance comphance Report at the companys website

www.hysan.com.hk
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Balance and Independence

The Board currently comprises of executive and non-

executive Directors including independent non-executive

Directors The Board continually reviews its composition and

is actively engaged in succession planning issues for both

executive and non-executive roles

Directors biographies are set out on pages 41 and 42 and are

also available on the Companys website www.hysan.com.hk

The Board has established independence standards as

contained in the Corporate Governance Guidelines It considers

independence as matter of judgment and conscience

Director is considered independent only where he is free from

any business or other relationship that might interfere with the

exercise of his independent judgment

The Board makes determination concerning the

independence of Director each year at the time the Board

approves Director nominees for inclusion in the AGM circular

If Director joins the Board mid-year the Board makes

determination on the new Directors independence at that time

Currently the Group has Independent non-executive Directors

who are identified in our Annual and Interim Reports and other

communications with shareholders

The independent and

non-executive parts

of the title describe my
role very well am full

member of the Board

but am not member of

the executive staff of the

Company

The independent directors look at the company from

the outside We try and see it from the viewpoint

of the general shareholding public We take an

independent view of the business operations using

our own experience as the basis The independent

directors of Hysan for example have world of

experience and are from different walks of life We

can bring much to the Company We are certainly not

cyphers

Sir David AKERS-JONES

Independent non-executive Deputy Chairman

The Board last carried out detailed review of director independence in March 2009 It

concluded that each of the Independent non-executive Directors is independent and will keep

under review whether there are relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect or could

appear to affect independence

Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH and Mr Fa-kuang HU will stand for re-election at this years AGM

While they have served the Board for more than years they have clearly demonstrated their

respective willingness to exercise independent judgment and to provide objective challenges to

management There is no evidence that length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their

independence The Board therefore considers that they remain independent notwithstanding the

length of their respective tenure Please refer to the accompanying Circular to Shareholders for

more details on their respective independence considerations
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INDEPENDENCE STATUS

Not Morch 2009 Revew

Name Management Independent Independeit Reoson for independence Stotus

Peter Ting Chang LEE

Sir David AKERS-JONES No business or other

relationships with the Group

or management

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN No business or other

relationships with the Group

or management

Fa-kuang HU No business or other

relationships with the Group

or management

Hans Michael JEBSEN

Anthony Hsien Pin LEE

Chien LEE

Dr Deanna Ruth Tak Yung

RUDGARD

Picky Tin For TSANG

Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG

up to May 2008

Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH No business or other

relationships with the Group

or management

WendyWenYeeYUNG

Director Appointments and Re-Election

Requirements

There is formal rigorous and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors

to the Board The Board has established the Nomination Committee with the responsibility

for recommending candidates to the full Board for consideration The Committee and in turn

the Board reviews the skill set of the Director candidates as well as the Board as whole

The Committee met in March 2008 to consider the appointment of new Executive Directors

Ricky Tin For TSANG and Wendy Wen Yee YUNG Their remuneration where determined by the

Emoluments Review Committee please refer to the separate Directors Remuneration and

Interests Report on pages 66 to 72 There are formalised role requirements for Non-executive

Directors who have additional key roles as well as those requirements applicable to all

Directors Details are available on the Companys website www.hysan.com.hk

52 Hysari Annuai Report 2008



Term

Non-executive Directors are appointed for term of years New Directors are required to

submit themselves for re-election at the first AGM following their appointment The Groups

Articles of Association contains provisions regarding rotation of Directors so that every Director

will be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every years Retiring Directors are

subject to re-election at the general meeting at which he retires There is no cumulative voting

in Directors elections Election on each candidate is by separate resolution Details of the

Directors standing for re-election in the forthcoming AGM are set out in the accompanying

Circular to Shareholders

Evaluation

Hysan has in place process of Board evaluation in the form

of meetings between the Chairman and Non-executive Directors

without management being present meetings were held in

2008

Supply of Information

Supply and access to Information

The Board receives detailed quarterly reports from management

in respect of their areas of responsibility Appropriate key

performance indicators are used to facilitate benchmarking

and peer group comparison Financial plans including budgets

and forecasts are regularly discussed at Board meetings

From time to time the Board also receives presentations

including from non-Board management members on issues of

significance or on new opportunities for the Group Directors

are also kept updated of any material developments from time

to time through notifications and circulars giving them the

relevant background and explanatory information Directors

also have access to non-Director management staff where

appropriate These ensure that the Board will be given the

answers it needs

Independent Advice

Hysans 2007 annual

report achieved

good balance between

the depth and range of

information and readability and It reflected

overall high standard of corporate governance

combining family ownership and professional

management

Judges Report

Best Corporate Governance

Disclosure Awards 2008

Non-Hang Seng Index

Category Diamond Award

top award

Organised by The Hong Kong

Institute of Certified

Public Accountants

The Board recognises that there may be occasions when one or more Director feel it is necessary

to take independent legal and/or financial advice at the Companys expense There is an agreed

procedure to enable them to do so as laid down in our Corporate Governance Guidelines
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Induction and Update

On their appointment Directors are advised on the legal and other duties and obligations they

have as directors of listed company Newly appointed Directors receive comprehensive

induction package designed to provide general understanding of the Group its business

operation of the Board and main issues it faces as well as an overview of the responsibilities of

Non-executive Director of the Group Discussion sessions with key management personnel will

also be held

Directors are also updated on any developments or changes affecting through notifications

circulated to them from time to time where appropriate

Our Corporate Governance Practices Board Committees

Focus in 2008

The workings of these governance-related Board Committees were further strengthened during

the year The Emoluments Review Committee now has 100% Independent non-executive

Director membership There is majority of Independent non-executive Directors for the Audit

and Nomination Committees Terms of reference of these Committees were revised to provide

for in-camera meetings of Independent non-executive Directors only to further encourage

objective and independent discussions and assessment

In order to provide effective oversight and leadership and pursuant to its Corporate Governance

Guidelines the Board has established governance-related Board Committees In common

with the Board each Committee has access to independent advice and counsel as required and

each is supported by Executive Director and Company Secretary The terms of reference of these

Committees are available on the Company website

Audit Committee

Composition and Meetings Schedule

Hysans Audit Committee is chaired by Sir David AKERS-JONES Independent non-executive

Deputy Chairman Its other members are Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN and Chien LEE with

an overall majority of Independent non-executive Directors All members have experience in

reviewing or analysing audited financial statements of public companies or major organisations

The Audit Committee meets no less than twice year Meetings are also attended by

management by invitation including Executive Director Finance

Roles and Authority

Hysan believes that crucial to the effective functioning of an audit committee is clear

appreciation of the separate roles of management the external auditors and Audit Committee

members Hysan management is responsible for selecting the appropriate accounting policies

and the preparation of the financial statements The external auditors are responsible for auditing

and attesting to the Groups financial statements and evaluating the Groups system of internal

controls to the extent that they consider necessary to support their audit report The Audit

Committee as the delegate of the full Board is responsible for overseeing the entire process

54 Hysan Annual Report 2008



The Audit Committee also has the responsibility to review the Groups whistle-blowing

procedures for its employees to raise concerns in confidence or anonymously about possible

breaches of its Code of Ethics and to ensure that these arrangements allow proportionate and

independent investigation of such matters and appropriate follow up action

Activities and Report in 2008

Full details are set out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 73 and 74 meetings were

held in 2008 with full attendance for the meetings for considering the Groups annual and

interim results

Emoluments Review Committee

Composition and Meetings Schedule

The Group set up an Emoluments Review Committee in 1987 to review executive Director

compensation The Committee is chaired by Sir David AKERS-JONES Independent non-executive

Deputy Chairman Its current members are Fa-kuang HU and Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH

Independent non-executive Directors There is 100% Independent non-executive Director

membership The Committee generally meets at least once every year

Roles and Authority

Management makes recommendations to the Committee on Hysans framework for and cost of

executive Director remuneration and the Committee then reviews these recommendations No

Director nor any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration

Activities and Report in 2008

Full details are set out in the Directors Remuneration and Interests Report on pages 66 to

72 One meeting was held in March 2008 with full attendance to consider Executive Director

compensation

Nomination Committee

Composition and Meetings Schedule

The Board established Nomination Committee in 2005 It is chaired by Peter Ting Chang LEE

Chairman of the Board and its other members are Sir David AKERS-JONES and Dr Geoffrey

Meou-tsen YEH The Committee has majority of Independent non-executive Directors The

Committee meets when it is considered necessary

Roles and Authority

The Committee has the responsibility of nominating for Board approval candidates to fill Board

vacancies as and when they arise and of evaluating the balance of skills knowledge and

experience of the Board It is clearly set out in the terms of reference of the Committee that

the Chairman of the Board shall not chair the Committee when it is dealing with the matter of

succession of the chairmanship

Activities and Report in 2008

The Committee met in March 2008 with full attendance to consider the appointment of Ricky Tin

For TSANG and Wendy Wen Yee YUNG as new Executive Directors as from April 2008
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Our Corporate Governance Practices Shareholders

Focus in 2008

We are committed to continually enhancing our communication with shareholders There is

currently no requirement in Hong Kong providing for mandatory forwarding of shareholder

communication materials by nominee companies to beneficial shareholders We operate

self-funded programme to proactively forward shareholder communication materials via

nominee companies and continue to expand coverage of the same during the year We noted

recent Listing Rules changes which subject to legal requirements of the issuers place of

incorporation provide for deemed shareholder consent to receive shareholder communications

via electronic means While we support the wider use of electronic communications in

todays environment we aim to strike balance to ensure effective communications with all

shareholder segments as far as practicable We therefore plan to continue our self-funded

communication programme for important areas including Notice of AGM and key information

to enable shareholders to vote

In general we enhanced the quality of disclosure in our corporate communication materials

including this Annual Report

The Board and management fully recognise the significance in having governance framework

that protects shareholder rights and their exercise of the same At the same time we aim to

continually improve our communications with shareholders and obtain their feedback

Communication with Shareholders

Accountability to Shareholders and Corporate Reporting

Disciplined measurement of our performance is an important aspect of our strategy to achieve

long-term success Reporting financial and non-financial results in transparent fashion

is critical recognising that we are accountable to our stakeholders number of formal

communication channels are used to account to shareholders for the performance of the

Group These include the Annual Report and Accounts Interim Report and Accounts and press

releases/announcements

Hysan has its company website which provides an additional channel for shareholders

and other interested parties to access the Groups information The Groups key corporate

governance policies and supporting documents including terms of reference of the various

Board Committees as well as the Groups financial reports press releases and announcements
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Corporate Governance Report

Shareholder Rights

Self-funded Programme to Proactively Forward Shareholder Communication Materials via

Nominee Companies

Shareholders must be furnished with sufficient and timely information concerning the Company

and any material developments There is currently no requirement in Hong Kong providing

for mandatory forwarding of shareholder communication materials by nominee companies to

beneficial shareholders Since 2005 we have initiated and funded programme inviting major

nominee companies to proactively forward communication materials to shareholders at our

expense Coverage of the programme has more than doubled since inception

Provision of Sufficient and Timely Information

We recognise the significance of providing information to shareholders to enable them to make an

informed assessment in voting Copies of the Annual Report and financial statements and related

papers were dispatched to shareholders at over 30 days prior to the AGM statutory requirement

21 days Comprehensive information on each resolution to be proposed is also provided

voting

We recognise shareholders right in exercising their control proportionate to their equity

ownership and support the principle of voting by poll The Company has conducted all voting

at general meetings by poll since 2004 The poll is conducted by the Companys Registrars

and scrutinised by the Groups auditors Procedures for conducting poii are included in the

Circular to Shareholders accompanying the Notice of AGM and again explained to the general

meeting prior to the taking of the poll Poll results are announced and posted on both the Stock

Exchanges and the Companys websites

Relevant Provisions in Articles of Association and Hong Kong Law

Under the Articles of Association of the Company and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

shareholders holding not less than 5% of the paid up capital of the Company may convene an

extraordinary general meeting by requisition stating the objects of the meeting and depositing

the signed requisition at the Companys registered office

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance also provide for shareholder approval of decisions concerning

fundamental corporate changes including amendments to the Articles of Association and

extraordinary transactions including the transfer of all or substantial part of companys assets

There are no limitations imposed by Hong Kong law or the Articles of Association on the right

of non-residents or foreign persons to hold or vote on the Companys shares other than those

limitations that would generally apply to all shareholders
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Directors Report

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 which were

approved by the Board of Directors the Board on 10 March 2009

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group continued throughout 2008 to be property investment management and development Details of

the Groups principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31 December 2008 are set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively to the financial

statements

The turnover and results of the Group are principally derived from leasing of investment properties located in Hong Kong accordingly no

segment financial analysis is provided detailed review of the development of the business of the Group during the year and likely future

developments is set out in Chairmans Statement and Managements Discussion and Analysis of this Annual Report

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 78

An interim dividend of HK14 cents per share amounting to HK$146 million was paid to shareholders during the year

The Board recommends the payment of final dividend of HK54 cents per share with scrip alternative to the shareholders on the

register of members on 18 May 2009 absorbing HK$562 million The ordinary dividends proposed and paid in respect of the full year

2008 will absorb HK$708 million the balance of the profit will be retained

Reserves

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group and the Company are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

on pages 82 and 83 and note 32 to the financial statements respectively

Investment Properties

All of the Groups investment properties were revalued by an independent professional valuer as at 31 December 2008 using the fair

value model Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial

statements

Details of the major investment properties of the Group as at 31 December 2008 are set out in the section under Schedule of Principal

Properties of this Annual Report

Property Plant and Equipment
Details of movements during the year in the property plant and equipment of the Group and the Company are set out in note 15 to the

financial statements

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance and save as otherwise stated and explained in the

Corporate Governance Report has complied throughout the year with the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practice

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities the Listing Rules on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the Stock Exchange

Further information on the Companys corporate governance practices is set out in the following separate reports

Corporate Governance Report pages 44 to 58 it gives detailed information on the Companys compliance with the Corporate

Governance Code and adoption of local and international best practices

Directors Remuneration and Interests Report pages 66 to 72 it gives detailed information of Directors remuneration and

interests including information on Directors compensation service contracts Directors interests in shares contracts and

competing business

Audit Committee Report pages 73 and 74 it sets out the terms of reference work performed and findings of the Audit

Committee for the year

Internal Controls and Risk Management pages 34 to 36 it sets out the Companys framework on internal controls and risks

assessment including control environment control activities work done during the year and further steps to be done and

Corporate Responsibility Report it sets out the Companys Corporate Responsibility Policies and Practices reflecting its

commitment to maintaining high standard of corporate governance

The Board

The Board currently comprises Peter Ting Chang LEE Chairman Ricky Tin For TSANG Executive Director Finance and Wendy Wen

Yee YUNG Executive Director and Company Secretary and eight other Non-executive Directors Sir David AKERS-JONES acts as the

Independent non-executive Deputy Chairman also chairing two corporate governance-related committees namely the Audit Committee

and the Emoluments Review Committee

Ricky Tin For TSANG and Wendy Wen Yee YUNG were appointed as Executive Directors effective April 2008

Pursuant to the Companys Articles of Association Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG retired from the Board by rotation as from the conclusion

of the annual general meeting held on 14 May 2008 She remained as Senior Advisor to the Company until 31 December 2008 when she

retired from the Company Save otherwise mentioned the Directors whose names and biographies appear on pages 41 and 42 have been

Directors of the Company during the year

Raymond Liang-ming HU Kam Wing LI Timothy John SMITH and V-nee YEH resigned on 20 January 2009 also served as alternate

Directors throughout the year

Under Article 114 of the Companys current Articles of Association one-third or such other number as may be required under applicable

legislation of the Directors and where the applicable number is not an integral number to be rounded upwards who have been longest

in office shall retire from office by rotation retiring Director is eligible for re-election

Particulars of Directors seeking for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting 2009 AGM are set out in the accompanying

circular to shareholders

The Company has received from each Independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence as regard each of

the factors referred to in Rule 3.13 to of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of them to be independent

Directors Interests in Shares

Details of the interests and short positions of the Directors and alternate Directors in the shares underlying shares or debentures of the

Company and its associated corporations are set out in Directors Remuneration and Interests Report on pages 66 to 72
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2008 the interests or short positions of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company in the shares

and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance SF0 or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows

Aggregate long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

of the

Number issued

of ordinary share

Name Capacity shares held capital

Note

Lee Hysan Estate Company Limited Beneficial owner and interests 433130735 41.60

of controlled corporations Note

Lee Hysan Company Limited Interests of controlled 433130735 41.60

corporations Note

Silchester International Investors Limited Investment manager 83513000 8.02

Notes

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2008 i.e 1041114578

ordinary shares

These interests represent the same block of shares of the Company 270118724 shares were held by Lee Hysan Estate Company Limited LHE
and 163012011 shares were held by certain subsidiaries of LHE LHE is wholly-owned subsidiary of Lee Hysan Company Limited

Apart from the above no other interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 336 of the SF0 as at 31 December 2008

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as Related Parties under applicable accounting principles These

mainly relate to contracts entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business which contracts were negotiated on normal

commercial terms and on an arms length basis Further details are set out in note 37 to the financial statements

Some of these transactions also constitute Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules as identified below

Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain transactions entered into by the Group constituted continuing connected transactions the Transactions under Rule 14A.34 of

the Listing Rules during the year Details of the Transactions required to be disclosed are set out as follows

Lease granted by the Group

The Lee Gardens 33 Hysan Avenue Hong Kong The Lee Gardens

The following lease arrangement was entered into by Perfect Win Properties Limited wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and

property owner of The Lee Gardens as landlord with Oxer Limited Oxer formerly known as Bonde Limited company controlled by

Michael Tze Hau LEE former Managing Director of the Company Details of the lease arrangement are set out below

Connected person Date of agreement Terms Premises Annual consideration

Note

Oxer Limited 30 August 2007 years commencing Rooms 3703 2008 HK$ 1458060

Note Lease and from July 2007 and 3704 and 2009 HK$ 1464144

Supplemental for Room 3703 and carparking space 2010 HK$ 732072

Lease 35 months commencing on pro-rata basis

from August 2007 Note

for Room 3704

July 2007 34 months commencing

Carpark Licence from September 2007

Agreement for carparking space
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Continuing Connected Transactions continued

Lease granted by the Group continued

Lee Gardens Two 28 Yun Ping Road Hong Kong Lee Gardens Two
The following lease arrangements were entered into by Barrowgate Limited Barrowgate 65.36% subsidiary of the Company and

property owner of Lee Gardens Two as landlord with the following connected persons

Connected person Date of agreement Terms Premises Annual consideration

Note

years commencing

from September 2007

Office units

on the 28th

30th and

31st Floors

2008 HK$ 20582424

2009 HK$ 20692488

2010 HK$ 13794992

on pro-rata basis

Note

ii HangSengBank

Limited

Note

June 2006

Note

years commencing

from October 2006

Shop G13 on the

Ground Floor and

portion of Lower

Ground Floor

Shops 11-12

2008 HK$ 1643808

on pro-rata basis

iii Hang Seng Bank

Limited

15 October 2007

Note

72 months commencing

from 15 October 2007

for Shops 2-10 on the

Lower Ground Floor

68 months commencing

from 15 February 2008

for Shop G13A on the

Ground Floor and

Shops 11-12 on the

Lower Ground Floor

Note

Shop G13A on the

Ground Floor and

Shops 2-10 and

11-12 on the

Lower Ground Floor

2008 HK$ 10578491

2009 HK$ 12526488

2010 HK$ 9866293

on pro-rata basis upto

14 October 2010

Notes and

iv Pearl Investments 23 May 2008

HK Limited Lease

Note

18 May 2007

Carpark Licence

Agreement and

supplemental

letter dated

June 2007

years commencing

from 15 May 2008

years commencing

from June 2007

Room 1401C on

the 14th Floor

carparking space

2008 HK$ 1307578

on pro-rata basis

for the Lease

2009 HK$ 2049156

2010 HK$ 2011356

on pro-rata basis

for the Carpark

Licence Agreement

2011 HK$ 736132

on pro-rata basis

for the Lease

Note

Jebsen and

Company

Limited

Note

29 June 2007
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Continuing Connected Transactions continued

Lease granted by the Group continued

Bamboo Grove 74-86 Kennedy Road Hong Kong Bamboo Grove

The following lease arrangement was entered into by Kwong Wan Realty Limited wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and property

owner of Bamboo Grove as landlord with Atlas Corporate Management Limited Atlas wholly-owned subsidiary of Lee Hysan Estate

Company Limited substantial shareholder of the Company holding 41.60% interest Details of the leases are set out below

Connected person Date of agreement Terms Premises Annual consideration

Note

Atlas Corporate January 2006 years commencing Penthouse 01 2008 HK$ 72494

Management Note from 16 January 2006 on the 29th and on pro-rata basis

Limited 30th Floors and

carparking spaces

One Hysan Avenue Causeway Bay Hong Kong One Hysan Avenue

The following lease arrangements were entered into by OHA Property Company Limited wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and

property owner of One Hysan Avenue with Atlas Details of the leases are set out below

Connected person Date of agreement Terms Premises Annual consideration

Note

Atlas Corporate November 2005 years commencing Whole of 21st Floor 2008 HK$ 1169800

Management from November 2005 on pro-rata basis

Limited

ii Atlas Corporate 14 November 2008 years commencing Whole of 21st Floor 2008 HK$ 416598

Management Note from November 2008 on pro-rata basis

Limited 2009 HK$ 2505684

2010 HK$ 2505684

2011 HK$ 2088070

on pro-rata basis

Note

II Provision of leasing and property management services to non wholly-owned subsidiary regarding Lee Gardens Two

The following management agreements were entered into by Hysan Leasing Company Limited and Hysan Property Management Limited

both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company with Barrowgate for the provision of services to Lee Gardens Two including

leasing marketing and lease administration services and ii property management services

Connected person Date of agreement Terms Premises Annual consideration

Barrowgate Limited 25 February 2004 and years commencing Whole premises of HK$13004618

two Supplemental from April 2004 Lee Gardens Two and

Appointment Letters renewed for HK$2324977 ii

of 19 July 2004 and further years Note

February 2007
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Continuing Connected Transactions continued

Notes

The annual considerations are based on current rates of rental operating charges for retail premises promotional levies and for carparking spaces

licence fees for each of the relevant financial years The rental operating charges promotional levies and licence fees as the case may be are

payable monthly in advance

Oxer was considered connected person by virtue of its being company controlled by Mr Michael Tze Hau LEE former Managing Director of the

Company until May 2007 It has ceased to be connected person upon expiry of 12 months on May 2008

The monthly operating charges were revised with effect from January 2009 while the rental promotional levies and licence fees as the case may be

remained unchanged

Jebsen and Company Limited Jebsen and Company and Hang Seng Bank Limited Hang Seng are beneficial substantial shareholders of

Barrowgate having equity interest of 10% and 24.64% respectively in Barrowgate

Barrowgate entered into surrender agreement with Hang Seng on 15 October 2007 whereby Hang Seng agreed to surrender the premises mentioned

under lbii above with effect from 14 February 2008

Barrowgate and Hang Seng entered into an agreement for lease dated 15 October 2007 formal lease agreement and supplemental deed in

respect of the premises mentioned under lbiii above were entered into between Barrowgate and Hang Seng on 15 February 2008 and 13 May 2008

respectively

The term of the lease mention under lbiii exceeds years and according to Listing Rules requirement an independent financial adviser to the Board

was engaged and it formed the view that the term of this lease with duration longer than years was required and it was normal business practice for

leases of this type to be of such duration

The rent for the period from 15 October 2010 to 14 October 2013 will be reviewed at the then prevailing
market rent and to be agreed by Barrowgate

and Hang Seng

Pearl Investments HK Limited is connected person by virtue of its being an associate of Mr Chien LEE Non-executive Director of the Company

This lease expired on 15 January 2008 and was not renewed

1k This is renewal of the lease mentioned under ldi above

These represent the actual considerations for the year ended 31 December 2008 calculated on the basis of the fee schedules as prescribed in the

respective management agreements

All the Transactions were entered in the ordinary and usual course of business of the respective companies after due negotiations on an

arms length basis with reference to the prevailing market conditions

Announcements were published regarding the Transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules The Stock Exchange has granted

waiver for the Transactions referred to in section II above by virtue of Rule 14A.42 from strict compliance with the requirements of Rules

14A.35 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules on condition that details of the Transactions be included in the Companys subsequent

published annual report for financial years in which the relevant Transactions are subsisting The Company confirms that it has complied

with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they are applicable

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules the Board engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures

in respect of the Transactions of the Group to assist the Directors to evaluate whether the Transactions

have received the approval from the Board

were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company where the Transactions involve provision of goods and services by the

Company

have been entered into in accordance with the agreement governing such Transactions and

have not exceeded the cap stated in the relevant announcements

The auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to the Board that the samples the auditor selected for the Transactions

were in agreement in respect of items above and that according to the samples the auditor selected in respect of item the

rent charged to the connected persons were either the same or fell within the range of rentals offered to independent third parties All

Independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the Transactions and the report of the auditor and confirmed that the

respective contracts and terms of the Transactions are

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company

on normal commercial terms and

in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the commercial interests of

the Group as whole
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Interest in Contracts of Significance

The ease arrangement between Barrowgate non wholly-owned subsidiary and Jebsen and Company of which Hans Michael JEBSEN is

director and shareholder also constitutes contract of significance due to the annual consideration of the lease having percentage

ratio of 1.26% from the calculation of the revenue test the percentage ratios for assets ratio and consideration ratio are 0.05% and

0.16% respectively as at 31 December 2008 Details of the transaction are set out under lbi of Continuing Connected Transactions

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year both the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Groups largest suppliers and the aggregate amount of

turnover attributable to the Groups largest customers were less than 30% of total purchases and turnover of the Group respectively

Purchase Sale or Redemption of the Companys Listed Securities

During the year neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased sold or redeemed any of the Companys listed securities

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors the Company has

maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules

Donations

During the year the Group made donations of approximately HK$2 million to charitable and non-profit-making organisations

Auditor

resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the 2009 AGM

On behalf of the Board

Peter T.C LEE

Chairman

Hong Kong 10 March 2009
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Directors Remuneration and Interests Report

Director Compensation
Emoluments Review Committee

The Board recognises the significance of having in place transparent and objective process for determining executive Director

compensation particularly in light of the fact that the Companys founding family is major shareholder The Emoluments Review

Committee was first established in 1987 to review and determine the remuneration of executive Directors

The Committee is currently chaired by Sir David AKERS-JONES Independent non-executive Deputy Chairman Its other members are

Fa-kuang HU and Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH It has 100% Independent non-executive Director membership

Management makes recommendations to the Committee on the Companys framework for and cost of executive Director remuneration

and the Committee then reviews these recommendations On matters other than those concerning him the Chairman or Chief Executive

Officer may be invited to Committee meetings No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration

Remuneration Policy

The Groups remuneration policy aims to provide fair market remuneration in form and value to attract retain and motivate high quality

staff At the same time such awards must be aligned with shareholder interests

The following principles had been established

Remuneration package will consist of several components fixed part base salary and benefits ii performance-based

bonus iii long-term incentives executive share options The structure will reflect fair system of reward for all the participants

emphasizing performance

Remuneration packages are set at levels to ensure comparability and competitiveness with Hong Kong-based companies competing

within similar talent pool with particular emphasis on the property industry Independent professional advice will be sought to

supplement internal resources where appropriate

The Committee will determine the overall amount of each component of remuneration taking into account both quantitative and

qualitative assessment of performance

Remuneration policy and practice will be as transparent as possible

Executive Directors will develop significant personal shareholding pursuant to the executive share options in order to align their

interests with those of shareholders

Pay and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group will be taken into account especially in setting annual salary increases

The remuneration policy for executive Directors will be reviewed regularly independently of executive management

2008 Review

The Committee met in March 2008 to review executive Director compensation packages It also considered packages for two new

executive Directors Advice of independent advisers was taken in consideration All members attended the meeting without any executive

Director presence Details are set out in note to the financial statements The most recent meeting of the Committee held in March 2009

was attended by Sir David AKERS-JONES and Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH to review executive Director compensation packages

Details of Directors including individual executive Directors emoluments and options are set out in notes and 38 respectively to the

financial statements

Non-executive Director emoluments

Director fees are subject to shareholder approval at general meeting Key elements of our non-executive Director remuneration policy

include

Remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain first class non-executive talent

Remuneration of non-executive Directors is subject to shareholder approval set by the Board and should be proportional to their

contribution towards the interests of the Company

Remuneration practice should be consistent with recognised best practice standards for non-executive Directors remuneration

Remuneration should be in the form of cash fees payable annually

Non-executive Directors do not receive share options from the Company
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Director Compensation continued

Non-executive Director emoluments continued

Taking into consideration the level of responsibility experience and abilities required of the Directors and fees offered for similar positions

in comparable companies the fee structure of Directors approved at annual general meeting the AGM held on 10 May 2005 is as

follows

Per annum
HK$

Board of Directors

Chairman 140000

Deputy Chairman 120000

Director 100000

Audit Committee

Chairman 60000

Member 30000

Other Committees

Chairman
30000

Member 20000

The Non-executive Directors received no other compensation from the Group except for the fees disclosed above

None of the Non-executive Directors receives any pension benefits from the Company nor do they participate in any bonus or incentive

schemes

The Non-executive Directors including the Independent non-executive Directors received fees totalling HK$1100000 and the

Independent non-executive Deputy Chairman received total annual fee of HK$230000 for 2008 Please refer to note to the financial

statements

Long-term incentives Share Option Schemes

The Company has granted options under executive share option schemes The purpose of both schemes was to strengthen the

link between individual staff and shareholder interests The power of grant to executive Directors is vested in the Emoluments Review

Committee and endorsed by all Independent non-executive Directors as required under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities the

Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the Stock Exchange The Chairman or the Managing Director may make

grants to management staff below executive Director level

Key terms of the share option schemes of the Company are summarised as follows

The 1995 Share Option Scheme the 1995 Scheme

The 1995 Scheme was approved by shareholders on 28 April 1995 and had term of 10 years It expired on 28 April 2005 All

outstanding options granted under the 1995 Scheme will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the provisions of the

1995 Scheme

As at 31 December 2008 shares issuable under options granted under the 1995 scheme was 189000 representing less than 0.02% of

the issued share capital of the Company

The maximum entitlement of each participant is substantially below the limit set out under the scheme rules being 25% of the maximum

number of shares in respect of which options may at any time be granted under the 1995 Scheme For the options granted under the

1995 Scheme currently outstanding the basis for determining the exercise price is the highest of the closing price of the shares as

stated in the Stock Exchanges daily quotations sheet on the date of grant ii the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in

the Stock Exchanges daily quotations sheets for the business days immediately preceding the date of grant and ui the nominal value

of the shares Consideration on each grant of option was HK$1 and was paid within 30 days from the date of grant of option with full

payment for exercise price to be made on exercise of the relevant option
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Director Compensation continued

Long-term incentives Share Option Schemes continued

The 2005 Share Option Scheme the 2005 Scheme
The Company adopted the 2005 Scheme at its ACM held on 10 May 2005 which has term of 10 years and will expire on May 2015

together with the 1995 Scheme are referred to as the Schemes

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2005 Scheme and any other share option scheme

of the Company shall not exceed such number of shares as required under the Listing Rules currently being 10% of the shares in issue

as at 10 May 2005 the date of the ACM approving the 2005 Scheme being 104996365 shares Under the Listing Rules listed

issuer may seek approval by its shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the scheme The limit on the number

of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2005 Scheme and any

other share option scheme of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time or such number of shares as

required under the Listing Rules No options may be granted if such grant will result in this 30% limit being exceeded

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2005 Scheme must not during any 12-month period exceed such number

of shares as required under the Listing Rules which is 1% of the total shares in issue as at the date of shareholder approval being

10499636 shares The exercise price shall be at least the highest of the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock

Exchanges daily quotations sheet on the date of grant the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock

Exchanges daily quotations sheets for the business days immediately preceding the date of grant and iii the nominal value of the

shares Consideration on each grant of option is HK$1 and is required to be paid within 30 days from the date of grant of option with full

payment for exercise price to be made on exercise of the relevant option

Grant and vesting structures

Grants made prior to March 2005 had holding period of years and vesting period of years

With effect from March 2005 the Board has approved new grant and vesting structure Grants will be made on periodic basis

Vesting period is years in equal proportions Size of grant will be determined by reference to base salary multiple and job grades

clear performance criterion will be key driver The Board will review the grant and vesting structures from time to time

Movement of share options

During the year total of 903000 shares options were granted under the 2005 Scheme

As at 31 December 2008 an aggregate of 1981000 shares are issuable for options granted under the Schemes representing

approximately 0.19% of the issued share capital of the Company

As at the date of this Report 98808765 shares are issuable under the Schemes representing 9.49% of the issued share capital

Details of options granted exercised cancelled/lapsed and outstanding under the Schemes during the year are as follows

Changes during the year

Exercise Balance Balance

price Exercisable as at Cancelled/ as at

Name Date of grant HK$ period 1.1.2008 Granted Exercised lapsed 31.12.2008

Note

1995 Scheme

Executive Directors

Ricky Tin For TSANG 30.3.2005 15.850 30.3.2005 120000 40000 80000

Noteb 29.3.2015 Note

Wendy Wen Yee YUNG 30.3.2005 15.850 30.3.2005 96000 96000

Note 29.3.2015

Eligible employees 30.3.2005 15.850 30.3.2005 87667 74667 13000

Note 29.3.2015 Note
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Long-term incentives Share Option Schemes continued

Movement of share options continued

Changes during the year

Exercise Balance Balance

price Exercisable as at Cancelled/ as at

Name Date of grant HK$ period 1.1.2008 Granted Exercised lapsed 31.12.2008

Note

2005 Scheme

Executive Directors

Peter Ting Chang LEE 6.3.2007 21.380 6.3.2007 235000 235000

5.3.2017

13.3.2008 21.450 13.3.2008 260000 260000

Notee 12.3.2018

Ricky Tin For TSANG 30.3.2006 22.000 30.3.2006 120000 120000

Note
29.3.2016

30.3.2007 21.250 30.3.2007 95000 95000

29.3.2017

31.3.2008 21.960 31.3.2008 100000 100000

Note 30.3.2018

Wendy Wen Yee YUNG 26.6.2006 20.110 26.6.2006 110000 110000

Note 25.6.2016

30.3.2007 21.250 30.3.2007 95000 95000

29.3.2017

31.3.2008 21.960 31.3.2008 100000 100000

Note 30.3.2018

Pauline Wah Ling 6.3.2007 21.380 6.3.2007 108000 108000

YU WONG Note 30.6.2009

Eligible employees 30.3.2006 22.000 30.3.2006 99000 32000 67000

Note 29.3.2016 Note

30.3.2007 21.250 30.3.2007 132000 2000 57000 73000

29.3.2017 Note Note

31.3.2008 21.960 31.3.2008 178000 14000 164000

Note 30.3.2018 Note

2.5.2008 23.900 2.5.2008 95000 95000

Note 1.5.2018

9.9.2008 21.300 9.9.2008 85000 85000

Note 8.9.2018

2.10.2008 20.106 2.10.2008 85000 85000

Note 1.10.2018

1297667 903000 116667 103000 1981000
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Director Compensation continued

Long-term incentives Share Option Schemes continued

Movement of share options continued

Notes

Save otherwise stated all options granted have vesting period of years in equal proportions

Ricky Tin For TSANG and Wendy Wen Yee YUNG were appointed as Executive Directors on April 2008

Eligible employees are working under employment contracts that are regarded as continuous contracts for the purposes of the Employment

Ordinance

Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG retired from the Board of the Company by rotation as from the conclusion of 2008 AGM held on 14 May 2008 She

remained as Senior Advisor to the Company until 31 December 2008 when she retired from the Company and her outstanding options remain

exercisable until 30 June 2009

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of 12 March 2008 was HK$22100

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of 28 March 2008 was HK$21950

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of 30 April 2008 was HK$22600

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of September 2008 was HK$21300

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of 30 September 2008 was HK$19980

The weighted average closing price
of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$22700

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$22.337

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$22950

The options lapsed during the year upon resignations of certain eligible employees

Apart from the above the Company had not granted any share option under the Schemes to any other persons as required to be

disclosed under Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules

Particulars of the Schemes are set out in note 38 to the financial statements

Value of share options

Pursuant to Rule 17.08 of the Listing Rules the value of the share options granted during the year is as follows to be expensed through

the Groups income statement over the three-year vesting period of the options

The fair values of share options granted by the Company were determined by using Black-Scholes option pricing model the Model The

Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of an option The variables and assumptions used in computing

the fair value of the share options are based on the managements best estimate The value of an option varies with different variables of

number of subjective assumptions Any change in the variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an

option The inputs into the Model were as follows

Date of grant 2.10.2008 9.9.2008 2.5.2008 31.3.2008 13.3.2008

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$19.160 HK$21300 HK$23900 HK$21800 HK$21450

Exercise price HK$20.106 HK$21300 HK$23900 HK$21.960 HK$21450

Risk free rate Note 2.936% 2.833% 2.668% 2.607% 2.486%

Expected life of option Note 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years

Expected volatility Note 38.86% 38.19% 35.51% 34.25% 33.03%

Expected dividend per annum Note HK$0.463 HK$0463 HK$0463 HK$0463 HK$0463

Estimated fair values per share option HK$6.940 HK$8130 HK$8990 HK$7390 HK$6970

Notes

Risk free rate being the approximate yields of 10-year Exchange Fund Notes traded on the date of grant matching the expected life of each option

Expected life of option being the period of 10 years commencing on the date of grant based on managements best estimates for the effects of

non-transferability exercise restriction and behavioural consideration

Expected volatility being the approximate historical volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company in the past one year immediately before

the date of grant

Expected dividend per annum being the approximate average annual cash dividend for the past financial years
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Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is not

determinable by the Group within year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation

Directors Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2008 the interests and short positions of the Directors and alternate Director in the shares underlying shares or

debentures of the Company and its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

SF0 as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SF0 or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the Model Code are set out

below

Aggregate long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of ordinary shares held

Personal Family Corporate Other of the issued

Name Interests Interests Interests Interests Total share capital

Note

Peter Ting Chang LEE 3370708 3370708 0.324

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN 10000 10000 0.001

Fa-kuang HU 200000 200000 0.019

Note

Hans Michael JEBSEN 60000 2432914 2492914 0.239

Note

Chien LEE 800000 800000 0.077

Deanna Ruth Tak Yung RUDGARD 1871600 1871600 0.180

Ricky Tin For TSANG 40000 40000 0.004

Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH 265364 265364 0.025

Wendy Wen Vee YUNG 28000 28000 0.003

V-nee YEH 43259 43259 0.004

alternate to Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH

Note

Notes

This percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue i.e 1041114578 ordinary shares as at

31 December 2008

Such shares were held by company which was wholly-owned by Fa-kuang HO and he was deemed to have beneficial interest in all these shares

Such shares were held through corporation in which Hans Michael JEBSEN was member entitled to exercise no less than one-third of the voting

power at general meeting

V-flee YEH resigned as alternate Director to Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH effective from 20 January 2009

Certain executive Directors of the Company have been granted share options under the Schemes details are set out in the section

headed Long-term incentives Share Option Schemes above These constitute interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the

Company under the SF0

Aggregate long positions in shares of associated corporations

Listed below is Directors interest in the shares of Barrowgate Limited Barrowgate 65.36% subsidiary of the Company

Number of ordinary shares held

Corporate Other of the issued

Name interests interests Total share capital

Hans Michael JEBSEN 1000 1000 10

Note

Note Jebsen and Company Limited Jebsen and Company held 10% interest in the issued share capital in Barrowgate through wholly-owned

subsidiary Hans Michael JEBSEN was deemed to be interested in the shares of Barrowgate by virtue of being controlling shareholder of Jebsen

and Company
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Directors Interests in Shares continued

Aggregate long positions in shares of associated corporations continued

Apart from the above no other interest or short position in the shares underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated

corporations as at 31 December 2008 were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SF0 or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

Compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors

securities transactions All Directors have confirmed following specific enquiry by the Company that they have complied with the required

standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year

Directors Interests in Contracts

During the year certain Directors are parties to contracts with the Group These contracts constitute Related Party Transactions

Connected Transactions or Contracts of Significance under applicable accounting or regulatory rules details are disclosed in the

Directors Report

Directors Interests in Competing Business

The Group is engaged principally in the property investment development and management of high quality investment properties in Hong

Kong The following Directors excluding Independent non-executive Directors are considered to have interests in other activities the

Deemed Competing Business that compete or are likely to compete with the said core business of the Group all within the meaning

of the Listing Rules For the reasons stated below and coupled with the diligence of the Groups Independent non-executive Directors and

the Audit Committee the Group is capable of carrying on its business independent of and at arms length from the Deemed Competing

Business

Peter Ting Chang LEE Anthony Hsien Pin LEE Chien LEE and Dr Deanna Ruth Tak Yung RUDGARD are members of the founding Lee

family whose range of general investment activities include property investments in Hong Kong and overseas In light of the size and

dominance of the portfolio of the Group such disclosed Deemed Competing Business is considered immaterial

ii Hans Michael JEBSEN and his alternate Kam Wing LI hold the offices of directors in each of Jebsen and Company and Jebsen China

Services Limited and some of their subsidiaries of which their business activities include inter alia investment holding and property

investment in both the Peoples Republic of China and Hong Kong Mr Jebsen is also substantial shareholder of the companies

Mr Jebsen is an independent non-executive director of The Wharf Holdings Limited whose business includes inter alia property

investment development and management in both the Peoples Republic of China and Hong Kong

iii Chien LEE is an independent non-executive director of Swire Pacific Limited whose business includes inter alia property investment

and trading in Hong Kong the Peoples Republic of China and the United States of America

Fa-kuang HU and his alternate Raymond Liang-ming HU are directors and have an indirect substantial interest in Designcase Limited

and its subsidiaries which are engaged in investment holding property investment and development property agency and management

and project management in both the Peoples Republic of China and Hong Kong Mr Hu was re-designated as Independent non-executive

Director effective 27 March 2008

The Companys management team is separate and independent from that of the companies identified above In addition save and except

Peter Ting Chang LEE the relevant Directors have non-executive roles and are not involved in the Companys day-to-day operations and

management

By Order of the Board

Wendy W.Y YUNG

Executive Director and Company Secretary

Hong Kong 10 March 2009
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee has members and is chaired by Sir David AKERS-JONES Independent non-executive Deputy Chairman The

Committee has majority of Independent non-executive Directors namely Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN Independent non-executive Director

and Chien LEE Non-executive Director Under its terms of reference the Committee oversees the Companys financial reporting process

it also reviews the Companys internal controls and risk management systems and its relationship with external auditor Effective from

January 2009 the Committees terms of reference was revised in light of the changes to the Listing Rules The Committee also has the

responsibility to review the adequacy of resources qualifications and experience of staff of the Groups accounting and financial reporting

function and their training programmes and budget The Committee presents report to the Board on its findings after each Committee

meeting

The Committee held meetings during 2008 on February 12 March and August The meetings held in March and August 2008 were

attended by all members to consider the financial statements for the annual and interim reports respectively An additional meeting held

in February 2008 was attended by Sir David AKERS-JONES and Chien LEE to consider matters relating to the new Internal Audit function

The Committee last met on March 2009 to consider the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008

Details of the meetings held in February and March 2008 were set out in the 2007 Annual Report Significant matters as reviewed and

discussed in the other meetings include the following

Financial Reporting

In the process of financial reporting management is responsible for the preparation of Group financial statements including the selection

of suitable accounting policies The external auditor is responsible for auditing and attesting to Group financial statements and evaluating

Groups system of internal controls in such regard The Committee oversees the respective work of management and the external auditor

to endorse the processes and safeguards employed by them

August 2008 The Committee reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the unaudited financial statements

for the first months of 2008 prior to public announcement and filing The Committee received reports

from and met with the external auditor to discuss the scope of their review and findings The Committee had

discussions with management on significant judgments affecting Groups financial statements

March 2009 The Committee reviewed and discussed with management and the external auditor the 2008 financial

statements included in the Annual Report 2008 prior to public announcement and filing
The Committee

received reports from and met with external auditor and internal auditor to discuss the general scope of their

respective work and findings The Committee had discussions with management with regard to significant

judgments affecting the Group financial statements Based on these review and discussions and the report

of the external auditor the Audit Committee recommended to the Board approval of the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2008 with the Independent Auditors Report thereon

Review of Internal Controls and Risk Management Systems

August 2008 The Committee considered the report of internal audit including status in implementing recommendations

following 2007 annual internal controls review and was satisfied

March 2009 For 2008 annual internal controls review the Committee considered reports from and upon receiving

confirmation of management and internal audit was satisfied as to the effectiveness of the Companys

internal controls system including the adequacy of resources qualifications and experience of staff of the

Groups accounting and financial reporting function and their training programmes and budget There were

no matters of material concern relating to financial operational or compliance controls
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Audit Committee Report continued

Relationship with External Auditor

March 2008 and The Committee reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the external auditor in respect of the

August 2008 2008 interim results reviews and 2008 annual audit and the related results announcement and annual

confirmation

March 2009 The Committee assessed the auditors independence and objectivity Factors considered include the

arrangement for lead audit partner rotation and the provision of non-audit services by the auditor The

Committee recommended to the Board that the shareholders be asked to re-appoint Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as the Groups external auditor for 2009

For the year ended 31 December 2008 external auditor received total fee of HK$2104000 audit

services HK$1800000 and non-audit services HK$304000

Members of the Audit Committee

David AKERS-JONES Chairman

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN

Chien LEE

Hong Kong 10 March 2009
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Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the end of the financial year and of their respective profit or loss for the year

then ended In preparing the financial statements the Directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and apply them on consistent basis making judgments and estimates that are prudent fair and

reasonable

state the reasons for any significant departure from accounting standards and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company and the

Group will continue in business for the foreseeable future

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the Group and

for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities
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Independent Auditors Report

Deloitte

To the Members of Hysan Development Company Limited

incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability

We have audited the financial statements of Hysan Development Company Limited the Company and its subsidiaries collectively

referred to as the Group set out on pages 78 to 132 which comprise the consolidated and Companys balance sheets as at 31

December 2008 and the consolidated income statement the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash

flow statement for the year then ended and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes

Directors responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance This responsibility includes designing implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to

the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due

to fraud or error selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you as

body in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong

Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Those standards require that we comply with

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements The

procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entitys

preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31

December 2008 and of the Groups profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

10 March 2009
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ConsolidatedIncome Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Turnover

Property expenses

Gross profit

Investment income

Other gains and losses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Change in fair value of investment properties

Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

Notes

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

1638 1368

217 208

10

11

12

12

13

13

1421 1160

63 98

146 302

134 106

155 175

212 3131

590 452

1719 4862

745

1718 4117

1594 3949

124 168

1718 4117

644 549

562 498

153.37 375.46

153.36 375.25

Dividends

Paid

Proposed

Earnings per share expressed in HK cents

Basic

Diluted

78 Hysan Annual Report 2008



ConsolidatedBalance Sheet
At 31 December 2008

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Investments in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Other financial assets

Other receivables
______________________________

Current assets

Accounts receivable and other receivables 21

Amount due from an associate 23

Other financial assets 20

Short-term investments 24

Time deposits
25

Cash and bank balances 25

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals

Other financial liabilities

Rental deposits from tenants

Amounts due to minority shareholders

Borrowings

Taxation payable
______________________________

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

Other financial liabilities

Rental deposits from tenants

Deferred taxation

Notes

14 35850 35711

15 80 73

16 123 123

18 1750 1011

19 1022 2479

20 242 235

29 22

39096 39654

94 66

590 590

41

700 95

964 478

51

2440 1236

320 278

40

158 124

327 327

550

351 270

1706 1039

734 197

39830 39851

3201 2861

41 17

230 215

3648 3910

7120 7003

32710 32848

26

20

27

28

28

20

30

Net assets
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Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

Total equity

31 5206

26263

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 132 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 March

2009 and are signed on its behalf by

Peter T.C LEE

Director

David AKERS-JONES

Dire ctor

Consolidated Balance Sheet continued

At 31 December 2008

Notes

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

5187

26465

31469 31652

1241 1196

32710 32848
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Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Other receivables

Current assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Time deposits

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Other payable and accruals

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Taxation payable

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

2008

Notes HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

The financial statements on pages 78 to 132 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 March 2009 and

are signed on its behalf by

Peter T.C LEE

Director

David AKERS-JONES

Director

Balance Sheet
At 31 December 2008

15

17

18

19

22

25

25

22

31

32

12869 12781

100

41

13013 12789

31 19

59 42

40 50

130 111

12883 12678

12891 12686

5206 5187

7685 7499

12891 12686
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ConsolidatedStatement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Share

capital premium
HK$ million HK$ million

Share Investments

options revaluation

reserve reserve

HK$ million HK$ million

At January 2007

Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments

Surplus on revaluation of properties held for own use

Deferred taxation arising on revaluation of properties held for own use

Exchange differences on translation of an overseas associate

Change in fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedge

Net income recognised directly in equity

Transfer to profit and loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments

Transfer to profit and loss for cash flow hedges

Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expenses for the year

Issue of shares pursuant to scrip dividend schemes

Issue of shares under share option schemes

Cancellation upon repurchase of own shares

Expenses for repurchase of own shares

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments

Forfeiture of share options

Interim dividend declared for 2007

Dividends paid during the year note 12

At 31 December 2007

Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments

Surplus on revaluation of properties held for own use

Deferred taxation arising on revaluation of properties held for own use

Share of reserve of an associate

Change in fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedge

Net expense recognised directly in equity

Transfer to profit and loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments

Transfer to profit and loss for cash flow hedges

Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expenses for the year

Issue of shares pursuant to scrip dividend schemes

Issue of shares under share option schemes

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments

Forfeiture of share options

Dividends paid during the year note 12

At 31 December 2008

5276 1453 1313

1192

1192

382

810

25 79

121

5187 1541 2123

1165

1165

186

1351

18 63

5206 1606 772
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Properties

revaluation

reserve

HK$ million

General

reserve

HK$ million

100

Minority

Total interests

HK$ million HK$ million

Capital

Hedging Translation redemption

reserve reserve reserve

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

155

Dividend Retained

reserve profits

HK$ mfflion HK$ million

422 19099

Total

HK$ million

27828 1080 28908

1192 1192

1198 1198

382 382

3949 3949 168 4117

3949 4763 168 4931

104 104

15 15

121 511 511 511

127 127

549 549 52 601

276 100 22410 31652 1196 32848

1165 1165

155 155 155

31 31 31

31 155 1038 1038

186 186

1594 1594 124 1718

28 155 1594 373 124 497

81 81

644 644 79 723

12 27 154 276 100 23361 31469 1241 32710
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ConsolidatedCash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for

Other gains and losses

Finance costs

Change in fair value of investment properties

Share of results of associates

Dividend income

Interest income

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect of investment in an associate

Depreciation of property plant and equipment

Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Increase decrease in accounts receivable and other receivables

Increase in held-for-trading investments

Increase in accounts payable and accruals

Decrease in equity derivatives

Increase in rental deposits from tenants

Cash generated from operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Hong Kong profits tax refund

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Dividends received from available-for-sale investments

Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale investments

Proceeds upon maturity of principal-protected deposits

Repayment from associates

Repayment from investees

Payments in respect of investment properties

Purchases of property plant and equipment

Additions to principal-protected deposits
______________________________

Net cash from investing activities

1719

146

155

212

590

48
15

4862

302

175

3131

452

53
30
11

1298 1069

17
56 102

23 58

65 18

49 54

1362 1100

189 141

1179 960

12 34

48 53

272 394

78 81

132

345 125

278

66 296
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Financing activities

Interest paid

Bank charges

Medium Term Note Programme expenses

Payment for front-end fees

Payment for hedging expenses

Dividends paid

Time deposits

Cash and bank balances

125

562

79
200

565

2007

HK$ million

151

445

52

2008

H14$ million

Dividends paid to minority shareholders of subsidiary

New bank loan

Issue of fixed rate notes

Consideration paid for repurchase of shares

Expenses paid for repurchase of shares

Proceeds on exercise of share options

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

Held-to-maturity debt securities maturing within three months

511

15

14 1157

1231 99

484 385

1715 484

700

964 478

51

1715 484
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Significant Accounting Policies
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments which

are measured at revalued amounts or fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out below

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance In addition these financial statements include

applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited The

principal accounting policies adopted are as follows

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company its

subsidiaries Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to

obtain benefits from its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective

date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as appropriate

Where necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those

used by other members of the Group

All intra-group transactions balances income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the Groups equity therein Minority

interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and the minoritys

share of changes in equity since the date of the combination Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minoritys interest in the

subsidiarys equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has binding obligation and is

able to make an additional investment to cover the losses

Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Companys balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss The results of

subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable during the year

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group or the Company has significant influence and that is neither subsidiary nor an interest

in joint venture Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies

The results assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of

accounting Under the equity method investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for

post-acquisition changes in the Groups share of the net assets of the associate less any identified impairment loss When the Groups

share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate which includes any long-term interests that in substance

form part of the Groups net investment in the associate the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses An additional

share of losses is provided for and liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations

or made payments on behalf of that associate

Any excess of the Groups share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of

acquisition after reassessment is recognised immediately in profit or loss

Where group entity transacts with an associate of the Group profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Groups interest in

the relevant associate

Investments in associates are included in the Companys balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss The results of

associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable during the year
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Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental and/or for capital appreciation

On initial recognition investment properties are measured at cost including any directly attributable expenditure Subsequent to initial

recognition investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair value model Gains or losses arising from changes in

the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future

economic benefits are expected from its disposals Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset calculated as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in

which the item is derecognised

Property Plant and Equipment
Property plant and equipment are stated at cost or fair value less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes are stated in the balance sheet

at their revalued amounts being the fair values at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any

subsequent accumulated impairment losses Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not

differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of buildings is credited to the properties revaluation reserve except to the extent that it

reverses revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an expense in which case the increase is credited to the

consolidated income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation

of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance if any on the properties revaluation reserve relating

to previous revaluation of that asset On the subsequent sale or retirement of revalued asset the attributable revaluation surplus is

transferred to retained profits

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of items of property plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and

after taking into account of their estimated residual values using the straight-line method

An item of property plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from

the continued use of the asset Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset calculated as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is

derecognised

Prepaid Lease Payments
The land and buildings elements of lease of land and buildings are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification To the

extent that the allocation of the lease payments between the land and buildings elements can be made reliably the leasehold interests

in land are classified as prepaid lease payments which are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses and is amortised to the consolidated income statement on straight-line basis over the terms of relevant land leases

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each balance sheet date the Group and the Company review the carrying amounts of their assets to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its

carrying amount the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss unless the relevant asset is carried at revalued amount in which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation

decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable

amount but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss

unless the relevant asset is carried at revalued amount in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as revaluation

increase
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Significant Accounting Policies continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when group entity becomes party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities as appropriate on

initial recognition Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss

Financial assets

The Groups financial assets are classified into one of the four categories including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL loans and receivables Hi held-to-maturity investments and iv available-for-sale financial assets The Companys financial

assets are classified into loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets The classification depends on the nature and

purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets

are recognised and derecognised on trade date basis Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets

that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace The accounting policies

adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set out below

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL

financial asset is classified as held for trading if it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future or it is

derivative that is not designated and effective as hedging instrument

financial asset other than the one held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if it contains one or more

embedded derivatives and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract asset or liability to be designated as at FVTPL

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any

dividend or interest earned on the financial asset

ii Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables including accounts receivable other receivables

amounts due from subsidiaries amount due from an associate time deposits and bank balances are carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method less any identified impairment losses see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below

iii Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Groups

management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity The Group designated listed debt securities which are denominated

in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars see note 24 to the financial statements as held-to-maturity investments At each balance sheet

date subsequent to initial recognition held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

less any identified impairment losses see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below

iv Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as such or not classified as financial assets at F\ITPL

loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments The Group and the Company designated investments in equity securities and club

debentures if any as available-for-sale financial assets At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition available-for-sale

financial assets including certain equity securities investments and club debentures are measured at fair value Changes in fair value

are recognised in equity in the investments revaluation reserve until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired

at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss see

accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be

reliably measured they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial

recognition see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is method of calculating the amortised cost of financial asset and of allocating interest income over

the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts including all fees paid or

received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate transaction costs and other premiums or discounts through the expected

life of the financial asset or where appropriate shorter period

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets at FVTPL of which

interest income is included in net gains or losses
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Financial Instruments continued

Financial assets continued

vi Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at FVTPL are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are

impaired when there is objective evidence that as result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial

asset the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted

For an available-for-sale equity investment significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is

considered to be objective evidence of impairment

For all other financial assets objective evidence of impairment could include

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation

For certain categories of financial asset such as accounts receivable assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are

subsequently assessed for impairment on collective basis Objective evidence of impairment for portfolio of receivables could include

the Groups past experience of collecting payments an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average

credit period observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables

For financial assets carried at amortised cost an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the

asset is impaired and is measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future

cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate

For financial assets carried at cost the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the assets carrying

amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for similar financial

asset Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of

accounts receivables and amount due from an associate where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account

if any Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss When an account receivable or amount

due from an associate is considered uncollectible it is written off against the allowance account Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss

For financial assets measured at amortised cost if in subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease

can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised the previously recognised impairment loss is

reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date of impairment is reversed does not exceed

what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods Any increase

in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity For available-for-sale debt investments impairment losses

are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss

vii Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire the financial assets are transferred and

the Group or the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets On derecognition of

financial asset the difference between the assets carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the

cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by group entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual

arrangements entered into and the definitions of financial liability and an equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Group or the Company after deducting all of its

liabilities The Groups financial liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and ii other financial liabilities The

Companys financial liabilities are generally classified into other financial liabilities The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below
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Significant Accounting Policies continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Financial Instruments continued

Financial liabilities and equity continued

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL that are held for trading comprise derivatives that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any

interest paid on the financial liabilities

ii Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including accounts payable accruals other payable amounts due to subsidiaries amounts due to minority

shareholders and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

iii Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs

Consideration paid to repurchase the Companys own equity instruments are deducted from equity No gain or loss is recognised in profit

or loss

iv Effective interest method

The effective interest method is method of calculating the amortised cost of financial liability and of allocating interest expense over

the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life

of the financial liability or where appropriate shorter period

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for financial liabilities other than those financial liabilities at FVTPL of which

the interest expense is included in net gains or losses

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged cancelled or expires The

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to

their fair values at each balance sheet date The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is

designated and effective as hedging instrument in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of

the hedge relationship The Group designates certain derivatives to hedge its exposure against interest rate and foreign exchange rate

fluctuation

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not

closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised

in profit or loss

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments as either fair value hedge or cash flow hedge

At the inception of the hedging relationship the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item

along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions Furthermore at the inception of

the hedge and on an ongoing basis the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in hedging relationship is highly

effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit or loss immediately

together with any changes in the fair values of the hedged items that are attributable to the hedged risk The adjustment to the carrying

amount of the hedged item for which the effective interest is used is amortised to profit or loss when the hedged item ceases to be

adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged The adjustment is based on recalculated effective interest

rate at the date the amortisation begins

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship the hedging instrument expires or is sold terminated

or exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting
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Financial Instruments continued

Hedge accounting continued

ii Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are deferred in equity

hedging reserve The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss as other gains or losses

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship the hedging instrument expires or is sold terminated

or exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity at that time remains in equity and

is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss When forecast transaction is no longer expected to

occur the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss

10 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable

Rental income is recognised on straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Management fee income and security service income are recognised when services are rendered

Dividend income from investments including financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the shareholders right to receive payments has

been established

Interest income from financial asset excluding financial assets at FVTPL is accrued on time basis by reference to the principal

outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts

through the expected life of the financial asset to that assets net carrying amount

11 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated income statement on straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased

asset and recognised as an expense on straight-line basis over the lease term

The Company as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases including the leasehold interests in land are charged to profit or loss on straight-line basis

over the term of the relevant lease Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as

reduction of rental expense over the lease term on straight-line basis

12 Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that

entity foreign currencies are recorded in its functional currency i.e the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity

operates at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date monetary items denominated

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items and on the translation of monetary items are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences arising on monetary item that forms part of the Groups

net investment in foreign operation in which case such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated financials

statements

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements the assets and liabilities of the Groups foreign operations

are translated into the presentation currency of the Group i.e Hong Kong dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance

sheet date and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the yea unless exchange rates fluctuate

significantly during the period in which case the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used Exchange differences

arising if any are recognised as separate component of equity the translation reserve Such exchange differences are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of
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Significant Accounting Policies continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

13 Borrowing Costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they are

incurred

14 Retirement Benefit Costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to

the contributions

15 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income

statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that

are never taxable or deductible The Groups or the Companys liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the

corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method Deferred

tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and liabilities

are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition other than in business combination of

other assets and liabilities in transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates except

where the Group or the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised

Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity

16 Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment Transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on

straight-line basis over the vesting period with corresponding increase in equity share options reserve

At each balance sheet date the Group and the Company revise their estimates of the number of options that are expected to ultimately

vest The impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period if any is recognised in profit or loss with corresponding

adjustment to share options reserve

At the time when the share options are exercised the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share

premium When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date the amount previously

recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained profits
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008

General

The Company is public listed company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited the Stock Exchange The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in

the Shareholder Information section of the Annual Report

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the Group are property investment management

and development

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars which is the same as the functional currency of the Company

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HKFRSs
In the current year the Group and the Company had adopted for the first time the following amendments and new interpretations new
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants which are or have become effective

HKAS 39 and HKFRS Amendments

HKIFRIC INT 11

HKIFRIC INT 12

HKIFRIC INT 14

Reclassification of Financial Assets

HKFRS Group and Treasury Share Transactions

Service Concession Arrangements

HK.AS 19 The Limit on Defined Benefit Asset Minimum Funding Requirements and

their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRS5 had no material effect on how the Groups or the Companys results and financial position for the current

or prior accounting years have been prepared and presented Accordingly no prior year adjustment has been required

The Group and the Company have not early applied the following new and revised standards amendments or interpretations that have

been issued but not yet effective

HKFRS5 Amendments

HKAS Revised

HKAS 23 Revised

HMS 27 Revised

HKAS 32 and HI4AS Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment
HKFRS and HKAS 27 Amendments

HKFRS Amendment
HKFRS Revised

HKFRS

HKIFRIC INT 13

HKIFRIC INT 15

HKIFRIC INT 16

HKIFRIC INT 17

HKIFRIC INT 18

Improvements to HKFRS5

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Eligible Hedged Items

Cost of an Investment in Subsidiary Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellation

Business Combinations

Operating Segments

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

Hedges of Net Investment in Foreign Operation

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Transfer of Assets from Customers

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS effective for annual periods beginning on or after

July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after October 2008

Effective for transfers on or after July 2009

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these new and revised standards amendments or interpretations will have

no material impact on the results and the financial position of the Group or the Company

Hysan Annual Report 2008 93



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Groups accounting policies which are described in the Significant Accounting Policies section the management

of the Company are required to make judgements estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that

are not readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other

factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the

period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods

Critical judgment in applying the Groups accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment apart from those involving estimates see below the management has made in the process of

applying the Groups accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements

Held-to-maturity investments

The management of the Company has reviewed the Groups held-to-maturity investments in the light of its capital maintenance and

liquidity requirements and has confirmed the Groups positive intention and ability to hold those assets to maturity The carrying amount

of the held-to-maturity investments is HK$700 million 2007 nil Details of these assets are set out in note 24

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date

that have significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year

Fair value of investment properties

At the balance sheet date the Groups investment properties are stated at fair value of HK$35850 million 2007 HK$35711 million

based on the valuation performed by an independent qualified professional valuer In determining the fair value the valuers have based

on market value basis which involves inter-alia certain estimates including comparable market transactions appropriate capitalisation

rates and reversionary income potential and redevelopment potential In relying on the valuation management has exercised their

judgment and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions

Fair values of financial instruments

Financial instruments such as interest rate swaps cross currency swaps foreign exchange derivatives and equity derivatives are carried

in the balance sheet at fair value as disclosed in note 20 The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market where

quoted prices are not available for particular financial instrument the Group uses the fair values determined by independent financial

institutions or internal or external valuation models to estimate the fair value The use of methodologies models and assumptions in

pricing and valuing these financial assets and liabilities is subjective and requires varying degrees of judgment by management which

may result in significantly different fair values and results Details of the assumptions used and of the results of sensitivity analyses

regarding these assumptions are provided in the Financial Risk Management section

Turnover

Turnover represents gross rental income from investment properties for the year

The Groups principal activities are property investment management and development As the Group did not have any active development

projects during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 and its turnover and results are principally derived from investment

properties located in Hong Kong no business or geographical segment analysis is presented
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Investment Income

Investment income comprises

Dividends from

2008

HK$ million

listed investments 47

unlisted investments

Interest income

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect of investment in an associate

Sundry income

Loans and receivables including time deposits and bank balances 15

Available-for-sale equity investments

Investment income earned on non-financial assets

Investment income recognised in respect of financial assets designated as at FVTPL is disclosed in note

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses comprise

Gains on fair value change of financial assets designated as at FVTPL

Losses on fair value change of financial assets or financial liabilities classified

as held for trading

Recycling of gains from reserve on disposal of available-for-sale equity investments

Gains on hedging instruments under fair value hedge

Losses on hedged items under fair value hedge

Directors fees

Other emoluments

Basic salaries housing and other allowances

Bonus

Share-based payments note 38

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

48

2008

Hl4$ million

2007

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

15

Investment income earned on financial assets analysed by category of asset is as follows

41

12

30

11

63 98

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

24

60

63 84

14

63 98

Directors Emoluments

52
186

124

112

99
382

41

28

146 302

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

10

17 13
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Directors Emoluments continued

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors of the Company for the two years ended 31 December 2008 calculated with

reference to their employment as Directors of the Company are set out below

Non-executive Directors

Hans Michael JEBSEN

Anthony Hsien Pin LEE

Chien LEE

Dr Deanna Ruth Tak Yung RUDGARD

Independent non-executive Directors

Sir David AKERS-JONES

Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN

Fa-kuang HU

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Non-executive Directors

Hans Michael JEBSEN

Anthony Hsien Pin LEE

Chien LEE

Dr Deanna Ruth Tak Yung RUDGARD

Fa-kuang HU

Independent non-executive Directors

Sir David AKERS-JONES

Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN Note

Per JORGENSEN Note

For the year

Basic salaries

housing

Directors and other

fees allowances

HK$000 HK$000

Note

Share-based

Bonus payments

HK$000 HK$000

Note

862

396

Retirement

benefits

scheme

contributions

HK$000

230

140

85

46

Basic salaries Retirement

housing benefits

Directors and other Share-based scheme

fees allowances Bonus payments contributions

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Executive Directors

Peter Ting Charig LEE Note

Ricky Tin For TSANG Note

Wendy Wen Yee YUNG Note

Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG Note

Note Note

Total

HK$000

190 4454 1457 1395 12 7508

75 2085 526 638 3333

75 2085 526 656 3351

37 1040 608 96 104 1885

120 120

130 130

130 130

100 100

230 230

140 140

130 130

120 120

1477 9664 3117 2785 134 17177

ended 31 December 2007

Executive Directors

Peter Ting Chang LEE Note

Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG

Michael Tze Hau LEE Note

Total

HK$000

190 4304 1183 12 6551

100 2925 344 273 4038

42 1215 38 1300

120 120

130 130

130 130

100 100

120 120

230

140

85

46

1433 8444 1565 1258 290 12990
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Directors Emoluments continued

Notes

Breakdown of Directors fees of each of the Directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 is set out below

Emoluments

Audit Review

Board Committee Committee

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Executive Directors

Peter Ting Chang LEE 140 20 30 190 190

Ricky Tin For TSANG Note 75 75

Wendy Wen Yee YUNG Note 75 75

Pauline Wah Ling YIJ WONG Note 37 37 100

Michael Tze Rau LEE Note fl
42

Non-executive Directors

Hans Michael JEBSEN 120

Anthony Hsien Pin LEE 130

Chien LEE 130

Dr Deanna Ruth Tak Yung RUDGARD 100

120

Independent non-executive Directors

Sir David AKERS-JONES 120 60 30 20 230 230

Dr Geoffrey Meou-tsen YEH 100 20 20 140 140

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN Noteg 100 30 130 85

Fa-kuang RU 100 20 120

Per JORGENSEN Note
____________________________________________________________________________

Share-based payments are the fair values of share options granted to Directors which are determined at the date of grant and expensed over the

vesting period regardless of whether the Directors exercise the share options or not during the year

Year 2008 The Emoluments Review Committee reviewed his 2008 fixed base salary and determined his 2007 performance-based bonus in March

2008 It was decided to make an increment on his base salary as from April 2008 Accordingly his fixed base package including housing allowance

which amount remains unchanged paid during the year was HK$4454000 The stated bonus figure includes adjustment for 2007 bonus accrued

in 2007 accounts following finalisation of bonus by the Emoluments Review Committee in March 2008 and 2008 target bonus figures pending

finalisation by the Emoluments Review Committee after year-end in March 2009

Year 2007 The Emoluments Review Committee reviewed his 2007 fixed base salary and determined his 2006 performance-based bonus in March

2007 It was decided to make an increment on his base salary as from April 2007 Accordingly his fixed base package including housing allowance

which amount remains unchanged paid during the year was HK$4304000 The stated bonus figure includes adjustment for 2006 bonus accrued

in 2006 accounts following finalisation of bonus by the Emoluments Review Committee in March 2007 and 2007 target bonus figures pending

finalisation by the Emoluments Review Committee after year-end in March 2008

Ricky Tin For TSANG and Wendy Wen Yee YUNG were appointed as Executive Directors on April 2008 The figures stated refer to their respective

emoluments received or receivable as Executive Directors The stated bonus figures are 2008 target bonus figures pending finalisation by the

Emoluments Review Committee after year-end in March 2009

Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG retired from the Board of the Company by rotation as from the conclusion of 2008 Annual General Meeting held on 14 May

2008 She remained as Senior Advisor to the Company until 31 December 2008 when she retired from the Company The figure stated refers to her

emoluments received as Executive Director

Michael Tze Hau LEE stepped down as Managing Director as from the conclusion of 2007 Annual General Meeting held on May 2007

Year 2007 The Emoluments Review Committee reviewed his 2007 fixed base salary and determined his 2006 performance-based bonus in March

2007 Accordingly his fixed base package including housing allowance which amount remains unchanged paid during the year was HK$1215000

The stated bonus figure includes adjustment for 2006 bonus accrued in 2006 accounts following finalisation of bonus by the Emoluments Review

Committee in March 2007

Tom BEHRENS-SORENSEN was appointed as Independent non-executive Director as from the conclusion of 2007 Annual General Meeting held on

May 2007

Per JORGENSEN stepped down as Independent non-executive Director as from the conclusion of 2007 Annual General Meeting held on May 2007

Investment Nomination 2008 2007

Committee Committee Total Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Fa-kuang HU

100 20 120

100 30 130

100 30 130

100 100

46

1147 120 70 70 70 1477 1433
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Employees Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group four 2007 two are Directors of the Company including three directors

appointed or resigned during the year details of whose emoluments as Directors are included in note above The emoluments of all of

the five individuals with the highest emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 were as follows

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Basic salaries housing and other allowances

Bonus

Incentive paid on joining

Share-based payments Note
______________________________

Note Share-based payments are the fair values of share options granted to Directors and eligible employees which are determined at the date of grant

and expensed over the vesting period regardless of whether the Directors or eligible employees exercise the share options or not during the year

Their emoluments are within the following bands

Number of individuals

2008 2007

HK$2000001 to HK$2500000

HK$3500001 to HK$4000000

HK$4000001 to HK$4500000

HK$5000001 to HK$5500000

HK$6500001 to HK$7000000

HK$7500001 to HK$8000000
__________________________

Finance costs comprise

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable within five years

Interest on floating rate notes wholly repayable within five years

Interest on fixed rate notes wholly repayable within five years

Interest on fixed rate notes not wholly repayable within five years

Imputed interest on zero coupon notes not wholly repayable within five years

Total interest expenses

Net interest receipts on interest rate swap and cross currency swaps

designated as fair value hedges

Recycling of losses gains from reserve on financial instruments designated

as cash flow hedges

Bank charges

Medium Term Note Programme expenses

Other finance costs

15 15

26 21

Finance Costs

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

27

17

99

ii

12

35

26

100

12

166 173

29

155 175
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10 Taxation

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Current tax

Hong Kong profits tax

current year
166 130

26underoverprovision in prior years

prior years tax provision Note

Deferred tax note 30

Change in fair value of investment properties

Other temporary differences

Attributable to change in tax rate

72 58

264 185

28 540

12 20

223

263 560

745

Profit before taxation

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% 2007 17.5%

Tax effect of share of results of associates

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes

Tax effect of estimated tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised

Reversal of previously recognised taxable temporary differences

Utilisation of estimated tax losses previously not recognised

Effect of change in tax rate

Underoverprovision in prior years

Prior years tax provision

Others

Taxation for the year

In addition to the amount charged to the consolidated income statement deferred tax relating to the revaluation of the Groups buildings

held for own use has been charged directly to equity see note 30

Note As disclosed in the annual and interim reports published in previous years the Group has over the past few years been in dispute with the Hong

Kong Inland Revenue Department IRD on interest deductions made in years of assessment dated back to 1995/96 Taking into consideration

professional advice and recent development the Group has been in discussions with IRD to settle the claims formal proposal was submitted to

IRD at the end of December 2008 to settle the claims at HK$450 million inclusive of tax principal
interest and all amount payable Full provision for

such estimated exposure has been made at the balance sheet date of which HK$31 million and HK$41 million were provided in the first and second

half of the year respectively Total cash exposure net of tax reserve certificates already purchased amounted to HK$268 million will be satisfied out

of cash deposits and credit facilities

The Group expects to settle the claims in the region of such amount within the next few months

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% 2007 17.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year In June 2008 the Hong Kong

profits tax rate was decreased from 17.5% to 16.5% with effect from the 2008/09 year of assessment The effect of this decrease has

been reflected in the calculation of current and deferred tax balances as at and for the year ended 31 December 2008

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

1719 4862

284 851

97 79
11

51 85
21 20

24
24 12

223
26

72 58

14

745
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments note 16

Depreciation of property plant and equipment

Gross rental income from investment properties

Less

Direct operating expenses arising from properties that generated rental income

Direct operating expenses arising from properties that did not generate rental income

Staff costs comprising

Directors emoluments note

Share-based payments

Other staff costs

Share of income tax of an associate included in share of results of associates

1638 1368

214 205

1421 1160

17 13

126 111

145 127

181 81

12 Dividends

Dividends recognised as distributions during the year

2008 interim dividend paid HK14 cents per share

2007 interim dividend paid HK12 cents per share

2007 final dividend paid HK48 cents per share

2006 final dividend paid HK4O cents per share

2008

HK$ million

146

498

2007

H$ million

127

422

644 549

Scrip dividend alternatives were offered to the shareholders in respect of the above dividends These alternatives were accepted by the

shareholders as follows

2008 interim dividend 2007 interim dividend

Cash payment

Share alternative

2007 final dividend 2006 final dividend

Cash payment

Share alternative

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

11 Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging crediting

Auditors remuneration

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

135

11

428

70

99

28

346

76

644 549
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12 Dividends continued

Dividends proposed after the balance sheet date

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Final dividend proposed HK54 cents per share 2007 HK48 cents per share 562 498

The 2008 final dividend of HK54 cents per share 2007 HK48 cents per share has been proposed by the Directors on 10 March 2009

and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting Such dividend is not recognised as liability

as at 31 December 2008

The proposed 2008 final dividend will be payable in cash with scrip dividend alternative

13 Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based on the following

data

Earnings

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company 1594 3949

Number of shares

2008 2007

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

for the purpose of basic earnings per share 1039339066 1051770437

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

Share options issued by the Company 73471 607460

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 1039412537 1052377897

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of certain of the Companys outstanding share options as

the exercise prices are higher than the average market price per share
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

13 Earnings per Share continued

Adjusted basic earnings per share

For the purpose of assessing the performance of the Groups principal activities i.e leasing of investment properties the management

is of the view that the profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company should be adjusted in the calculation of basic

earnings per share as follows

Basic Basic

earnings earnings

Profit per share Profit per share

HK$ million cents HK$ million HK cents

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders

of the Company

Change in fair value of investment properties

Effect of deferred taxation on change in

fair value of investment properties

Effect of minority interests shares

Share of change in fair value of investment

properties net of deferred taxation of an associate

Underlying profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company

Prior years tax provision

Gain on disposal of investment properties

of an associate

Net realised gain on disposal of available-for-sale

investments

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect

of investment in an associate

Recurring underlying profit

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for basic earnings per share

14 Investment Properties

Fair value

The Group

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

At January

Additions

Transfer to property plant and equipment

Net change in fair value

At 31 December

35711 32473

355 107

6240

29610

6200

29511

2008 2007

1594 153.37 3949 375.46

212 20.40 3131 297.69

236 22.71

43 4.14

540

111

51.34

10.55

412 39.64 311 29.57

1201 115.56 1158 110.09

72 6.93 58 5.52

41 3.95

166 15.97 255 24.24

11 1.05

1066 102.57 950 90.32

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above comprises

212 3131

35850 35711

Leasehold land in Hong Kong

Medium-term lease

Long lease

The Group

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

35850 35711
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14 Investment Properties continued

The fair value of the Groups investment properties at 31 December 2008 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out

on that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited an independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group Knight Frank Petty

Limited has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations The Groups

investment properties have been valued individually on market value basis which conforms to Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation

Standards on Properties The valuation was mainly arrived at by reference to comparable market transactions for similar properties and

on the basis of capitalisation of the net income with due allowance for the reversionary income and redevelopment potential

All of the Groups property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation purposes are measured

using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties

Furniture

Buildings in fixtures and

Hong Kong equipment

HK$ million HK$ million

Cost or Valuation

At January 2007

Additions

Disposals

Surplus on revaluation

At 31 December 2007

Additions

Transfer from investment properties

Disposals

Surplus on revaluation

At 31 December 2008

Comprising

At cost

At valuation 2008

Accumulated Depreciation

At January 2007

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals

Eliminated on revaluation

At 31 December 2007

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals

Eliminated on revaluation

At 31 December 2008

Carrying Amounts

At 31 December 2008
__________________________________________________________________

At 31 December 2007

15 Property Plant and Equipment

The Group

Motor

computers vehicles Total

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

55 51 21 128

62 53 21 137

68 56 22 147

56 22 79

68 68

68 56 22 147

43 15 59

46 17 64

48 19 67

68 80

62 73
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Furniture

fixtures and

equipment

HK$ million

Cost

At January 2007

Additions

Disposals
________________________________________________________________

At 31 December 2007

Additions

Disposals
________________________________________________________________

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated Depreciation

At January 2007

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals
_____________________________________________________________

At 31 December 2007

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals
_____________________________________________________________

At 31 December 2008

Carrying Amounts

At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007

The above items of property plant and equipment are depreciated on straight-line basis at the following rates per annum

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or 40 years

Furniture fixtures and equipment 20%

Computers 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

The Groups buildings were revalued at 31 December 2008 by Knight Frank Petty Limited an independent qualified professional value

on market value basis by reference to comparable market transactions for similar properties and on the basis of capitalisation of net

income with due allowance for the reversionary income The surplus of HK$4 million 2007 HK$8 million arising on revaluation have

been credited to the properties revaluation reserve

Had the Groups buildings been measured on historical cost basis their carrying amounts would have been HK$53 million 2007

HK$50 million at the balance sheet date

Furniture fixtures and equipment of the Group include assets carried at cost of HK$20 million 2007 HK$19 million and accumulated

depreciation of HK$18 million 2007 HK$17 million in respect of assets held for leasing out under operating leases Depreciation

charges in respect of those assets for the year amounted to HK$1 million 2007 HK$1 million

There is no property plant and equipment of the Company held for renting out under operating leases for the year or at the balance sheet

date

16 Prepaid Lease Payments
The Groups prepaid lease payments represent leasehold land in Hong Kong held under long lease and are amortised on straight-

line basis over the terms of leases The amortisation of prepaid lease payments for the year was approximately HK$163000 2007

HK$163000

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

15 Property Plant and Equipment continued

The Company

Motor

Computers vehicles Total

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

21 20 42

22 20 43

22 21 44

20 14 35

21 16 38

21 18 39
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17 Investments in Subsidiaries

The Companys investments in subsidiaries are the interest in unlisted shares stated at cost

The table below lists the principal subsidiaries of the Group at 31 December 2008 and 2007

Name of subsidiary

Admore Investments Limited

Golden Capital Investment Limited

HD Treasury Limited

Hysan MTN Limited

Hysan China Holdings Limited

Hysan Leasing Company Limited

Hysan Property Management Limited

Hysan Treasury Limited

Kwong Hup Holding Limited

Kwong Wan Realty Limited

Minsal Limited

Mondsee Limited

Stangard Limited

Teamfine Enterprises Limited

Tohon Development Limited

Bamboo Grove Recreational Services

Limited

Earn Extra Investments Limited

Gearup Investments Limited

HD Investment Limited

Kochi Investments Limited

Lee Theatre Realty Limited

Leighton Property Company Limited

Main Rise Development Limited

OHA Property Company Limited

Perfect Win Properties Limited

Silver Nicety Company Limited

Barrowgate Limited

Place of

incorporation/

operation

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2

US$1

HK$1

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2

HK$1

HK$1000

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2

HK$1

HK$1

HK$1

HK$1

HK$10

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2

HK$2

HK$20

HK$10000

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

65.36%

Principal activities

Investment holding

Investment holding

Treasury operation

Treasury operation

Investment holding

Leasing administration

Property management

Treasury operation

Investment holding

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Provision of

security services

Investment holding

management

Property investment

Property development

Investment holding

Capital market

investment

Property investment

Property investment

Investment holding

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

The Directors are of the opinion that complete list of all subsidiaries and their particulars will be of excessive length and therefore the

above table contains only those subsidiaries which materially contribute to the net income of the Group or hold material portion of the

assets or liabilities or otherwise are operating subsidiaries of the Group Other than floating rate notes fixed rate notes and zero coupon

notes issued by Hysan MTN Limited as disclosed in note 28 none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the balance

sheet date

Proportion of

nominal value of

issued share capital

Issued held by the Company

share capital directly indirectly

Hong Kong HK$300000

Property investment

100% Resident club
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

Cost of unlisted investments

Share of post-acquisition profits and

reserves net of dividend received

Loan to an associate

Share of post-acquisition losses and

reserves net of dividend received

Loan to an associate of HK$106 million 2007 HK$112 million is unsecured and interest-free In the opinion of the Directors the loan

is considered as part of the Groups net investment in the associate and accordingly the loan is included in the amount of investments in

associates

At 31 December 2007 the Companys investment in an associate was the interest in unlisted shares stated at cost of approximately

HK$3000 The associate was dissolved during the year and net gain of approximately HK$36000 was recognised in income statement

Details of the Groups associates at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

Country Link Enterprises Limited Private limited

company

Hong Kong Ordinary share 26.3% Investment holding

China

US$140000 23.7%

Parallel Asia Engineering

Company Limited

Private limited

company

Hong Kong Ordinary share 25.0% Under liquidation in

2007 and dissolved

on 29 May 2008

Indirectly held

Registered capital

18 Investments in Associates

The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

1744 999

1747 1002

106 112

103 103

1750 1011

Place of Class of Effective

Form of registration share held/ interest held

Name of associate business structure and operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities

Wingrove Investment Pte Ltd Private company Singapore Ordinary share 25.0% Property

limited by shares development

Shanghai Kong Hui Property

Development Co Ltd

Shanghai Grand Gateway Plaza

Property Management Co Ltd

and investment

and being inactive

in 2008

5mb-Foreign equity

joint venture

Sino-Foreign equity

joint venture

US$165000000The Peoples

Republic of

China

The Peoples

Republic of

24.7% Property

development

and leasing

Property

management
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18 Investments in Associates continued

The summarised financial information in respect of the Groups associates based on the unaudited management accounts for the year

ended 31 December 2008 is as follows

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Groups share of net assets of associates

Turnover

Profit for the year

Groups share of results of associates for the year

11968 8445

19 Available-for-Sale Investments

Available-for-sales investments comprise

Listed investments

The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at fair value

Unlisted investments

Equity securities in overseas at cost

Less Impairment loss recognised

Club debentures at fair value

982 2439

93 93

55 55

38 38

1022 2479

The equity securities in overseas represent the Groups investments in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in

Singapore These private entities are engaged in property investment and development activities in Singapore They are measured at cost

less any identified impairment loss at each balance sheet date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that

the management is of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably

During the year ended 31 December 2007 the Group disposed of an unlisted equity security at its carrying amount of HK$19 million

which had been carried at cost less impairment before the disposal

5182 4272

6786 4173

1750 1011

952 1055

2240 1723

590 452
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

Derivatives under hedge accounting

Cash flow hedges

Foreign exchange derivatives

Cross currency swap

Fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps

Cross currency swaps

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL

Principal-protected deposits

Total

Other financial liabilities

Derivatives under hedge accounting

Cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps

Other derivatives classified as held for trading

not under hedge accounting

Foreign exchange derivatives

Equity derivatives

The fair values of principal-protected deposits equity derivatives and the interest rate swap designated as fair value hedge for zero coupon

notes are determined based on market values derived from prevailing market data and provided by the counterparty financial institutions

using valuation models developed from valuation techniques commonly applied by the market participants The fair values of principal-

protected deposits are calculated using valuation models developed from discounted cash flow analysis based on observable market

data such as the quoted interest rates and quoted spot and forward foreign exchange rates The fair values of equity derivatives are

calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with observable market prices and rates such as the strike price and the market

price of the underlying equities as input The fair values of the interest rate swap and other derivatives are calculated using discounted

cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates and quoted spot and forward foreign exchange

rates

Cash flow hedges

Foreign currency risk

The Group designates forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency swap as cash flow hedges to manage its foreign currency

exposure The forward foreign exchange contracts are used to hedge the foreign currency exposure in relation to the semi-annual coupon

payments of the US$65 million HK$507 million equivalent out of the US$182 million fixed rate notes The cross currency swap is to

convert the US dollar interest and principal payments of the US$26 million HK$200 million equivalent bank loan into Hong Kong dollar

by matching the loan amount interest rate fixing basis and the interest and principal payment dates The interest of US$26 million bank

loan is paid on quarterly basis and the principal will be paid upon maturity in 2013 The principal terms of the forward foreign exchange

contracts and the cross currency swap have been negotiated to match the principal terms of the hedged items and the management

considers that the hedges are highly effective The amount deferred in equity is recognised in profit or loss over the period that the

interest expense is recognised and impacts profit or loss

20 Other Financial Assets/Liabilities

Other financial assets

The Group

current Non-current

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

71

83 30

157 32

40 85 203

41 242 235

31

10 17

38

38 10 17

40 41 17Total
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20 Other Financial Assets/Liabilities continued

Cash flow hedges continued

Foreign currency risk continued

At the balance sheet date the maturity periods of the forward foreign exchange contracts and the cross currency swap at notional

amounts were as follows

The Group

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Within one year
34 34

More than one year but not exceeding five years

Cross currency swap

More than one year but not exceeding five years

84 118

118 152

200

As at 31 December 2008 fair value gains of HK$4 million 2007 HK$3 million from the forward foreign exchange contracts and the

cross currency swap have been deferred in equity and are expected to be recognised in profit or loss at various dates when the hedged

items are recognised in profit or loss

During the yea the Group had recycled gains of approximately HK$3 million 2007 HK$1 million on forward foreign exchange contracts

and the cross currency swap from the hedging reserve to profit or loss as finance costs

ii Interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate changes of the quarterly interest payments of the HK$325

million 2007 nil bank loans and the interest rate changes in relation to the semi-annual or quarterly floating-interest-rate payments of

certain financial instruments with notional amount of HK$400 million 2007 HK$200 million For the year ended 31 December 2007

the Group also used interest rate swaps which matured during the year to manage its exposure to interest changes of HK$460 million

floating rate notes The interest rate swaps match the major terms of the hedged underlying items such that the management considers

that the interest rate swaps are highly effective hedging instruments The amount deferred in equity is recognised in profit or loss over the

period that the interest expense is recognised and impacts profit or loss

At the balance sheet date the maturity periods of interest rate swaps at notional amount were as follows

The Group

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

660Within one year

More than one year but not exceeding five years 725

725 660

As at 31 December 2008 the floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps locked in the interest rates ranging from 2.78% to 3.83% 2007 4.31%

to 4.71% per annum

As at 31 December 2008 fair value losses of HK$31 million 2007 HK$2 million from the interest rate swaps under cash flow hedges

have been deferred in equity and are expected to be recognised in profit or loss at various dates during the lives of the swaps when the

hedged interest expense is recognised and impacts profit or loss

During the year the Group had recycled losses of approximately HK$6 million 2007 gains of approximately HK$1 million on interest rate

swaps from the hedging reserve to profit or loss as finance costs
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20 Other Financial Assets/Liabilities continued

Fair value hedges

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Group designates an interest rate swap as fair value hedge to minimise its interest rate risk

exposure in relation to the zero coupon notes note 28d and designates cross currency swaps as fair value hedges to manage interest

rate and foreign currency risk in relation to the principal and coupon payments of the US$117 million HK$913 million equivalent out of

the US$182 million fixed rate notes During the year ended 31 December 2008 the Group has also designated an interest rate swap as

fair value hedge to minimise its interest rate risk exposure in relation to the HK$300 million fixed-rate notes note 28c The principal

terms of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps match the corresponding notes and the management considers that the swaps

are highly effective hedging instruments

At the balance sheet date the maturity periods of the swaps at notional amounts were as follows

The Group

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Interest rate swaps

More than five years

Cross currency swaps

More than one year but not exceeding five years

539 227

913 913

As result of the hedge accounting the carrying amount of the fixed rate notes as at 31 December 2008 was adjusted by losses of

approximately HK$22 million 2007 gains of approximately HK$54 million while the carrying amount of the zero coupon notes as at 31

December 2008 was adjusted by losses of approximately HK$36 million 2007 HK$72000 The changes in fair values of the notes for

the hedged risk were included in profit or loss at the same time that the changes in fair value of the swaps were included in profit or loss

The fixed-to-floating interest rate swap hedging the zero coupon notes converted fixed rate of 5.19% per annum to Hong Kong Interbank

Offered Rate HIBOR plus 0.69% per annum for both years and the other interest rate swap hedging HK$300 million fixed rate notes

converted fixed rate of 4.18% per annum to HIBOR in 2008 The cross currency swaps hedging the 7% USD fixed rate notes converted

the USD coupon payments into Hong Kong dollars at HIBOR plus 1.93% per annum in average for both years

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL

The Group entered into certain contracts of structured deposits with certain financial institutions The structured deposits are principal-

protected at the maturity dates and contain embedded derivatives which are not closely related to the host contract The interest rates of

such deposits vary in relation to the relative movements of the underlying such as foreign exchange rates The entire combined contracts

have been designated as financial assets at FVTPL on initial recognition

At the balance sheet date the maturity periods of the structured deposits at notional amount were as follows

The Group

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

40

During the year the Group has early redeemed structured deposit at notional amount of HK$78 million

Within one year

More than one year but not exceeding five years 80 198

120 198
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20 Other Financial Assets/Liabilities continued

Other derivatives classified as held for trading not under hedge accounting

At the balance sheet date the notional amounts and the maturity periods of other derivatives classified as for held for trading not under

hedge accounting are as follows

The Group

Derivatives

Equity derivatives

2008

Notional amount Maturity

2007

Notional amount Maturity

As at 31 December 2008 the forward foreign exchange contracts are mainly used for managing the foreign currency exposure of listed

debt securities denominated in US dollar As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Group entered into net basis swaps to minimise the

foreign currency exposure in relation to the principal of the US$65 million of the US$182 million fixed rate notes As at 31 December

2007 the equity derivatives were call options of certain listed securities in Hong Kong

21 Accounts Receivable

Rents from leasing of investment properties are normally received in advance At the balance sheet date accounts receivable of the

Group with carrying amount of HK$10 million 2007 HK$10 million mainly represented rents receipts in arrears which were aged less

than 90 days

22 Amounts due from/to Subsidiaries

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured interest-free and repayable on demand

23 Amount due from an Associate

The amount due from an associate is unsecured interest-free and repayable on demand

24 Short-Term Investments

At the balance sheet date the Groups short-term investments were as follows

Held for trading marketable securities at market value

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

Held-to-maturity debt securities maturing within one yea at amortised cost

Market value of held-to-maturity debt securities

Debt securities listed in Hong Kong

Debt securities listed in overseas

The Group

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

95

At the balance sheet date the effective yield of the debt securities ranged from -1.34% to 0.06% per annum with maturity of three months

or less

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Net basis swaps

US$32 million

US$65 million

2009 US$6 million

2012 US$65 million

HK$147 million

2008

2012

2008

Debt securities listed in Hong Kong

Debt securities listed in overseas

491

209

700

700 95

491

209

700
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25 Time Deposits/Cash and Bank Balances

Time deposits cash and bank balances comprise cash and short-term bank deposits carrying effective interest rates ranging from 0.01%

to 1.54% 2007 0.88% to 3.45% per annum with an original maturity of three months or less

26 Accounts Payable

At the balance sheet date accounts payable of the Group with carrying amount of HK$90 million 2007 HK$69 million were aged less

than 90 days

27 Amounts due to Minority Shareholders

The amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured interest-free and repayable on demand

28 Borrowings

The analysis of the carrying amounts of borrowings is as follows

The Group

Current Non-current

2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

Unsecured bank loans 920 720

Floating rate notes 550 549

Fixed rate notes 2003 1362

Zero coupon notes 278 230

550 3201 2861

Unsecured bank loans

The unsecured bank loans of HK$920 million 2007 HK$720 million are guaranteed as to principal and interest by the Company and are

repayable as follows

The Group

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

More than one year but not exceeding two years 70

More than two years but not exceeding five years
850 720

920 720

At the balance sheet date all the Groups unsecured bank loans are variable-rate borrowings with effective interest rates which are

also equal to contracted interest rates ranging from 0.79% to 5.11% 2007 3.94% to 4.17% per annum As at 31 December 2008

and 2007 bank loans of HK$720 million are denominated in Hong Kong dollars Out of the HK$720 million bank loan HK$325 million

is hedged as to its interest rate risk exposure arising from the quarterly interest payments until maturity of the bank loans in 2011 by

interest rate swaps as detailed in note 20aii As at 31 December 2008 bank loans of HK$200 million equivalent are denominated in

US dollars The foreign currency risk related to the interest and the principal payments have been hedged by cross currency swap as

detailed in note 20aO Interest rate is normally re-fixed at every one to six months

Floating rate notes

In 2004 HK$550 million five-year floating rate notes were issued by Hysan MTN Limited wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company The

notes are guaranteed as to principal and interest by the Company bear effective interest rates which are equal to contracted interest

rates ranging from 1.30% to 4.04% 2007 3.98% to 5.08% per annum at the balance sheet date and are repayable in full in 2009

During the year ended 31 December 2007 the Group entered into interest rate swaps that matured in 2008 to hedge against the

interest rate risk of certain floating rate notes see note 20aii
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28 Borrowings continued

Fixed rate notes
The Group

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Fixed rate notes 1981 1416

Add Net loss gain attributable to hedged risks

Zero coupon notes

Zero coupon notes

Add Net loss attributable to hedged risk

22 54

2003 1362

In February 2005 15-year zero coupon notes of nominal amount of HK$430 million were issued at an issue price of around 46.37% of

the nominal amount by Hysan MTN Limited The notes are guaranteed as to nominal amount by the Company bear an effective yield

which is equal to contracted yield at the rate of 5.19% per annum and are repayable at par in February 2020 Hysan MTN Limited has

the option to redeem the notes on February 2015 at price of about 77.4% of the nominal amount

The Group has entered into an interest rate swap to hedge against the interest rate risk of the zero coupon notes under fair value hedge

see note 20b

The net loss of approximately HK$36 million 2007 HK$72000 represented changes in fair value attributable to the hedged interest

rate risk of the zero coupon notes under fair value hedge

In February 2002 Us$200 million 10-year fixed rate notes were issued by Hysan MTN Limited The notes are guaranteed as to principal

and interest by the Company bear an effective interest rate which is equal to contracted interest rate of 7% per annum The coupon

payments are paid on semi-annual basis and the principal are repayable in full in February 2012 During the year ended 31 December

2006 total nominal amount of US$18 million was repurchased and cancelled The outstanding nominal amount of the notes at the

balance sheet dates was US$182 million

During the year HK$300 million and HK$100 million 7-year fixed rate notes were issued in August and HK$165 million 12-year fixed rate

notes were issued in September by Hysan MTN Limited The notes are guaranteed as to principal and interest by the Company bear

an effective interest rate which is equal to contracted interest rate ranging from 5.1% to 5.38% per annum and are repayable in full in

August 2015 and September 2020 The coupon payments for the HK$100 million 7-year and the HK$165 million 12-year fixed rate notes

are paid on an annual basis whilst the coupon payments for the HK$300 million 7-year fixed rate notes are paid on quarterly basis

The Group has entered into cross currency swaps to hedge against the interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks in relation to the

coupon payments and principal repayment of the US$117 million 2007 US$117 million fixed rate notes under fair value hedge see

note 20b The Group has also entered into forward foreign exchange contracts and net basis swaps to hedge against the foreign

exchange rate risk arising from the coupon payments and principal repayment of the remaining US$65 million fixed rate notes The

forward foreign exchange contracts are accounted for as cash flow hedges see note 20 ai and the net basis swaps are classified as

held for trading see note 20 The Group has also entered into an interest rate swap to hedge against the interest rate risk of HK$300

million fixed rate notes under fair value hedge see note 20b

The net losses of HK$22 million 2007 gains of HK$54 million represented changes in fair value attributable to the hedged interest

rate and foreign exchange rate risks of the US$117 million 2007 US$117 million fixed rate notes under fair value hedge and hedged

interest rate risk of the HK$300 million 2007 nil fixed rate notes under fair value hedge

The Group

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

242 230

36

278 230
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Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

The Group The Company

designated as at FVTPL

held for trading

125 203

95

Derivative instruments under hedge accounting

Available-for-sale financial assets

158 33

1022 2479

Held-to-maturity investments 700

Loans and receivables including cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

held for trading

Derivative instruments under hedge accounting

Amortised cost

1728 1162 13014 12790

3733 3972 13016 12792

10 55

31

4398 3466 90 61

4439 3523 90 61

Accelerated tax Revaluation

depreciation of properties

HIK$ million HK$ million

for the year note 10

Charge to equity for the year

At 31 December 2007

Charge credit to consolidated income statement

for the year note 10

Charge to equity for the year

Effect of change in tax rate

At 31 December 2008

At the balance sheet date the Group has unused estimated tax losses of HK$655 million 2007 HK$400 million of which HK$312

million 2007 nil has not been agreed by IRD available for offset against future profits deferred tax asset has been recognised in

respect of HK$85 million 2007 HK$5 million of such losses No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining

estimated tax losses of HK$570 million 2007 HK$395 million as the utilisation of these estimated tax losses is uncertain These

estimated tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely

At the balance sheet date the Group has deductible temporary differences of HK$49 million 2007 HK$4 million arisen from the

revaluation of properties No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised

The Company does not have any unused tax loss as at balance sheet date

29 Categories of Financial Instruments

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

30 Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year

The Group

At January 2007

Charge to consolidated income statement

Tax losses

HK$ million

Total

HK$ million

244 3106 3349

20 540 560

264 3647 3910

28 13 40

15 208 223

250 3412 14 3648
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31 Share Capital

Number of shares Share capital

2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

Ordinary shares of HK$5 each

Authorised

At January and 31 December

Issued and fully paid

At January

Issue of shares pursuant to scrip dividend schemes

Exercise of share options

Cancellation upon repurchase of own shares

At 31 December

1450000000 1450000000 7250 7250

1037469756 1055137409 5187 5276

3528155 5057681 18 25

116667 1507666

24233000 121

1041114578 1037469756 5206 5187

Issue of shares pursuant to scrip dividend schemes

For the year ended 31 December 2008

On 18 June 2008 and 12 September 2008 respectively the Company issued and allotted total of 3031113 shares and 497042

shares of HK$5 each in the Company at HK$23.10 and HK$21.59 to the shareholders who elected to receive shares in the Company in

lieu of cash for the 2007 final and 2008 interim dividends pursuant to the scrip dividend schemes announced by the Company on 14 May

2008 and 21 August 2008 These shares rank pan passu in all respects with other shares in issue

For the year ended 31 December 2007

On 12 June 2007 and October 2007 respectively the Company issued and allotted total of 3623799 shares and 1433882 shares

of HK$5 each in the Company at HK$21.11 and HK$19412 to the shareholders who elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu of

cash for the 2006 final and 2007 interim dividends pursuant to the scrip dividend schemes announced by the Company on May 2007

and September 2007 These shares rank pan passu in all respects with other shares in issue

Issue of shares under share option schemes

For the year ended 31 December 2008

During the year ended 31 December 2008 options to subscribe for total of 114667 shares and 2000 shares were exercised at the

exercise prices of HK$15.85 and HK$21.25 per share respectively These shares rank pan passu in all respects with other shares in

issue Details of options outstanding and movements during the year are set out in note 38

For the year ended 31 December 2007

During the year ended 31 December 2007 options to subscribe for total of 1350000 shares 77666 shares and 80000 shares

were exercised at the exercise prices of HK$9.22 HK$15.85 and HK$16.60 per share respectively These shares rank pan passu in all

respects with other shares in issue Details of options outstanding and movements during the year are set out in note 38
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31 Share Capital continued

Cancellation upon repurchase of own shares

The Company was authorised at the respective annual general meetings held in 2007 and 2008 to purchase its own ordinary shares not

exceeding 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the then issued share capital of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased sold or redeemed any of the Companys listed securities during the year ended 31

December 2008

For the year ended 31 December 2007

During the year ended 31 December 2007 the Company repurchased its ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange when they were

significantly trading at discount in order to enhance shareholder value The details were set out below

Number of shares of

Month of nominal value of Consideration per share Aggregate

repurchase in 2007 HK$5 each repurchased Highest Lowest consideration paid

HK$ HK$ HK$ miflion

August 871000 19.64 18.94 17

September 22720000 22.00 19.40 480

October 100000 21.00 20.95

November 542000 23.00 22.75 12

24233000 511

The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2007 and the issued share capital of the Company was

reduced by the nominal value thereof The premium paid on repurchase of the shares of HK$390 million was charged to retained profits

Pursuant to section 49H of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance an amount of HK$121 million equivalent to nominal value of the shares

cancelled was transferred from the retained profits of the Company to the capital redemption reserve

Save as disclosed above neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased sold or redeemed any of the Companys listed securities

during the year ended 31 December 2007
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32 Reserves of the Company
The Companys reserves available for distribution to its equity holders as at 31 December 2008 amounted to HK$5794 million 2007

HK$5676 million being its general reserve dividend reserve and retained profits at that date

At January 2007

Premium on issue of shares pursuant to

scrip dividend schemes 79

Premium on issue of shares under

share option schemes

Cancellation upon repurchase of own shares 511 390

Expenses for repurchase of own shares

Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments

Forfeiture of share options

Profit for the year
739

Interim dividend declared for 2007 127 127

Dividends paid during the year note 12 549 549

At 31 December 2007

Premium on issue of shares pursuant to

scrip dividend schemes

Premium on issue of shares under

share option schemes

Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments

Forfeiture of share options

Profit for the year

Dividends paid during the year note 12
___________________________________________________________________________

At 31 December 2008

Note General reserve was set up from the transfer of retained profits

33 Retirement Benefits Plans

With effect from December 2000 the Group set up an enhanced Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme the Enhanced MPF Scheme
defined contribution scheme for all qualifying employees The Enhanced MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund

Schemes Authority under Section 1241 of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes General Regulation

Pursuant to the rules of the Enhanced MPF Scheme the Groups contributions to the plan are based on fixed percentages of members

salaries ranging from 5% of MPF Relevant Income to 15% of basic salary Members mandatory contributions are fixed at 5% of MPF

Relevant Income in compliance with MPF legislation

Total contributions made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$5 million 2007 HK$5 million Forfeited contributions for the year

amounted to HK$3 million 2007 HK$3 million were refunded to the Group

Share

Share options

premium reserve

HK$ million HK$ million

Capital

redemption

reserve

HK$ million

General

reserve

HK$ million

Note

100

Dividend Retained

reserve profits

HK$ million HK$ million

Total

HK$ million

422 5475 76101453 155

79

121

1541 276 100 5576 7499

63 63

761 761

644 644

1606 276 100 5694 7685
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34 Contingent Liabilities

At the balance sheet date there were contingent liabilities in respect of the following

Corporate guarantee to note holders

for issue of floating rate notes

for issue of fixed rate notes

for issue of zero coupon notes

Guarantees to banks for providing financing facilities

to subsidiaries

35 Capital Commitments

At the balance sheet date the Group had the following capital commitments in respect of its investment properties

The Group

2008

Ht$ million

2007

HK$ million

Authorised but not contracted for

Contracted but not provided for

2068 1006

123 134

36 Lease Commitments

As lessee

At the balance sheet date the Company had commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Company

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Company to its subsidiaries for its staff quarters and office premises which

are negotiated and rental are fixed for two years and three years respectively

At the balance sheet date the Group had no commitment under non-cancellable operating lease

The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

550

1985

430

550

1420

430

2965 2400

920 720

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

15

11 21
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2615 2582

Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by the Group from leasing of its investment properties Typically leases are

negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term of one to three years Certain leases include contingent rentals calculated with reference

to turnover of the tenants

37 Related Party Transactions and Balances

Transactions and balances with related parties

The Group has the following transactions with related parties during the year and has the following balances with them at the balance

sheet date

Substantial shareholders Directors

2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

24 26

Amount due to minority shareholder Note 94

The sum of transactions with Directors represented the aggregate gross rental income received under various leases respectively with Directors

of approximately HK$882000 2007 HK$754000 and companies controlled by Directors or their associates in aggregate of approximately

HK$23337000 2007 HK$25199000

The sum represents outstanding loan advanced to non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group Barrowgate Limited Barrowgate by Mightyhall

Limited wholly-owned subsidiary of Jebsen and Company Limited of which Hans Michael JEBSEN is director and shareholdet as shareholders loan

in proportion to its shareholding in Barrowgate for general funding purpose The amount is unsecured interest-free and repayable on demand

The Company has the following balances with its subsidiaries at the balance sheet date

13039

258

36 Lease Commitments continued

As lessor

At the balance sheet date the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

Over five years

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive 1349

The Group

2008 2007

HK$ million HK$ million

1266 1104

1468

10

Gross rental income received from Note

The Group

Notes

94

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Less Allowances on amounts due therefrom

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Details of amounts due from/to subsidiaries are disclosed in note 22

The Company

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

13368

499

12869 12781

59 42
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

37 Related Party Transactions and Balances continued

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management of the Group and the Company during the year was as follows

2008 2007

H$ million HK$ million

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 26 17

Share-based payments

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

31 21

The remuneration of the Directors and key executives is determined by the Emoluments Review Committee and Managing Director

respectively having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends

38 Share-Based Payment Transactions

Equity-settled share option schemes

The 1995 Share Option Scheme the 1995 Scheme

The 1995 Scheme was approved by shareholders on 28 April 1995 and had term of 10 years It expired on 28 April 2005 All

outstanding options granted under the 1995 Scheme will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the provisions of the

1995 Scheme

The purpose of the 1995 Scheme was to strengthen the links between individual staff and shareholder interests

Under the 1995 Scheme options may be granted to employees of the Company or any of its wholly-owned subsidiaries selected by the

Board at its discretion to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 1995 Scheme together with shares issued and

issuable under the scheme is 3% of the issued share capital of the Company excluding shares issued pursuant to the scheme and

any other share option scheme from time to time The maximum number of shares issued under the scheme and other scheme will not

exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time excluding shares issued pursuant to the scheme and any

other share option scheme

The maximum entitlement of each participant is substantially below the limit set out under the scheme rules being 25% of the maximum

number of shares in respect of which options may at any time be granted under the 1995 Scheme For the options granted under the

1995 Scheme currently outstanding the basis for determining the exercise price is the highest of the closing price of the shares as

stated in the Stock Exchanges daily quotations sheet on the date of grant ii the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated

in the Stock Exchanges daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant and iii the nominal

value of the shares Consideration on each grant of option was HK$1 and was paid within 30 days from the date of grant of option with

full payment for exercise price to be made on exercise of the relevant option

The 2005 Share Option Scheme the 2005 Scheme

The Company adopted the 2005 Scheme at its Annual General Meeting AGM held on 10 May 2005 which has term of 10 years and

will expire on May 2015 together with the 1995 Scheme are referred to as the Schemes

The purpose of the 2005 Scheme is to provide an incentive for employees of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries to work with

commitment towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of its shareholders

Under the 2005 Scheme options may be granted to employees of the Company or any wholly-owned subsidiaries including executive

Directors and such other persons as the Board may consider appropriate from time to time on the basis of their contribution to the

development and growth of the Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2005 Scheme and any other share option scheme

of the Company shall not exceed such number of shares as required under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange the Listing Rules currently being 10% of the shares in issue as at 10 May 2005 the date of the AGM approving the 2005

Scheme being 104996365 shares Under the Listing Rules listed issuer may seek approval by its shareholders in general meeting

for refreshing the 10% limit under the scheme The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding

options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2005 Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company must not exceed

30% of the shares in issue from time to time or such number of shares as required under the Listing Rules No options may be granted

if such grant will result in this 30% limit being exceeded
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38 Share-Based Payment Transactions continued

Equity-settled share option schemes continued

The 2005 Share Option Scheme the 2005 Scheme continued

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2005 Scheme must not during any 12-month period exceed such number

of shares as required under the Listing Rules which is 1% of the total shares in issue as at the date of shareholder approval being

10499636 The exercise price shall be at least the highest of the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchanges

daily quotations sheet on the date of grant ii the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchanges

daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant and iii the nominal value of the shares

Consideration on each grant of option is HK$1 and is required to be paid within 30 days from the date of grant of option with full payment

for exercise price to be made on exercise of the relevant option

Grant and vesting structures

Grants made prior to March 2005 had holding period of years and vesting period of years

With effect from March 2005 the Board has approved new grant and vesting structure Grants will be made on periodic basis

Vesting period is years in equal proportion Size of grant will be determined by reference to base salary multiple and job grades clear

performance criterion will be key driver The Board will review the grant and vesting structures from time to time

Movement of share options

The following table discloses movements of the Companys share options held by the Directors and employees during the current year

Balance Changes during the year Balance

Date of Exercise Exercisable as at Cancelled/ as at

Name grant price period 1.1.2008 Granted Exercised lapsed 31.12.2008

HK$

Note

1995 Scheme

Executive Directors

Ricky Tin For TSANG 30.3.2005 15.850 30.3.2005 120000 40000 80000

Note 29.3.2015 Note

Wendy Wen Yee YUNG 30.3.2005 15.850 30.3.2005 96000 96000

Note 29.3.2015

Eligible employees 30.3.2005 15.850 30.3.2005 87667 74667 13000

Note 29.3.2015 Note

2005 Scheme

Executive Directors

Peter Ting Chang LEE 6.3.2007 21.380 6.3.2007 235000 235000

5.3.2017

13.3.2008 21.450 13.3.2008 260000 260000

Note 12.3.2018

Ricky Tin For TSANG 30.3.2006 22.000 30.3.2006 120000 120000

Note 29.3.2016

30.3.2007 21.250 30.3.2007 95000 95000

29.3.2017

31.3.2008 21.960 31.3.2008 100000 100000

Note 30.3.2018

Wendy Wen Yee YUNG 26.6.2006 20.110 26.6.2006 110000 110000

Note 25.6.2016

30.3.2007 21.250 30.3.2007 95000 95000

29.3.2017

31.3.2008 21.960 31.3.2008 100000 100000

Note 30.3.2018

Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG 6.3.2007 21.380 6.3.2007 108000 108000

Note 30.6.2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

Balance

Exercisable as at

period 1.1.2008

Changes during the year Balance

Cancelled/ as at

Granted Exercised lapsed 31.12.2008

2005 Scheme continued

30.3.2006 22.000 30.3.2006

29.3.2016

30.3.2007 21.250 30.3.2007

29.3.2017

31.3.2008 21.960 31.3.2008

Note 30.3.2018

2.5.2008 23.900 2.5.2008

Noteg 1.5.2018

9.9.2008 21.300 9.9.2008

Note 8.9.2018

2.10.2008 20.106 2.10.2008

Note 1.10.2018

178000

95000

85000

Save otherwise stated all options granted have vesting period of years in equal proportions

Ricky Tin For TSANG and Wendy Wen Yee YUNG were appointed as Executive Directors on April 2008

32000

Note

2000 57000

Note Note

14000 164000

Note

95000

85000

Eligible employees are working under employment contracts that are regarded as continuous contracts for the purposes of the Employment

Ordinance

Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG retired from the Board of the Company by rotation as from the conclusion of 2008 AGM held on 14 May 2008 She

remained as Senior Advisor to the Company until 31 December 2008 when she retired from the Company and her outstanding options remain

exercisable until 30 June 2009

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of 12 March 2008 was HK$22100

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of 28 March 2008 was HK$21950

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of 30 April 2008 was HK$22600

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of September 2008 was HK$21300

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of 30 September 2008 was HK$19980

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$22700

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$22.337

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$22950

The options lapsed during the year upon resignations of certain eligible employees

38 Share-Based Payment Transactions continued

Movement of share options continued

Date of Exercise

Name grant price

HK$

Note

99000

132000

Eligible employees

Note

Notes

67000

73000

85000 85000

1297667 903000 116667 103.000 1981000
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Date of Exercise Exercisable

grant price period

HK$

Note

Executive Director

Peter Ting Chang LEE

Note

Eligible employees

Note

7.1.1999 9.220 7.1.2001

6.1.2009

30.3.2005 15.850 30.3.2005

29.3.2015

1350000

401333

1350000

Note

77666 20000

Note Note .0

303667

2005 Scheme

Executive Directors

Peter Ting Chang LEE

Michael Tze Hau LEE

Note

6.3.2007 21.380 6.3.2007

Note 5.3.2017

10.5.2005 16.600 10.5.2005

9.5.2015

30.3.2006 22.000 30.3.2006

29.3.2016

Eligible employees

Note

6.3.2007 21.380 6.3.2007 185000

Note 5.3.2017

6.3.2007 21.380 6.3.2007 108000

Note 5.3.2017

9.8.2005 18.790 9.8.2005 96000

8.8.2015

12.10.2005 18.210 12.10.2005 120000

11.10.2015

185000

Note

96000

Note

120000

Note

30.3.2006 22.000 30.3.2006

29.3.2016

26.6.2006 20.110 26.6.2006

25.6.2016

30.3.2007 21.250 30.3.2007

Note 29.3.2017

325000 106000

Note

219000

Notes

Save otherwise stated all options granted have vesting period of years in equal proportions

Options granted to Peter Ting Chang LEE on January 1999 had holding period of years and vesting period of years

Eligible employees are working under employment contracts that are regarded as continuous contracts for the purposes of the Employment

Ordinance Among the Eligible Employees Ricky Tin For TSANG and Wendy Wen Yee VUNG were appointed as Directors with effect from April 2008

Their options are disclosed as held by Directors in current year

Michael Tie Hau LEE stepped down from the Board of the Company as from the conclusion of 2007 AGM on May 2007

Name

38 Share-Based Payment Transactions continued

Movement of share options continued

The following table discloses movements of the Companys share options held by the Directors and employees in prior year

1995 Scheme

Balance

as at

1.1.2007

Changes during the year

Cancelled/

Granted Exercised lapsed

Balance

as at

31.12.2007

235000 235000

240000 80000 160000

Note Note

188000 188000

NoteD

Pauline Wah Ling YU WONG 108000

110000 110000

335000 13000 322000

Note

2830333 863000 1507666 888000 1297667
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38 Share-Based Payment Transactions continued

Movement of share options continued

Notes continued

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of March 2007 was HK$20500

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant as of 29 March 2007 was HK$21300

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$19600

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$21090

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$21200

The options lapsed during the year upon the stepping down of Michael Tze Hau LEE and resignations of certain
eligible employees

Fair values of share options

The Group has applied HKFRS Share-based Payments to account for its share options granted after November 2002 and vested

after January 2005 In accordance with HKFRS fair value of share options granted to employees determined at the date of grant is

expensed over the vesting period with corresponding adjustment to the Groups share options reserve In the current year the Group

recognised the share option expenses of HK$5 million 2007 HK$4 million in relation to share options granted by the Company of which

HK$3 million 2007 HK$1 million related to the Directors see note with corresponding adjustment recognised in the Groups share

options reserve

The fair values of share options granted by the Company were determined by using Black-Scholes option pricing model the Model The

Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of an option The variables and assumptions used in computing

the fair value of the share options are based on the managements best estimate The value of an option varies with different variables of

number of subjective assumptions Any change in the variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an

option The inputs into the Model were as follows

Date of grant 2.10.2008 9.9.2008 2.5.2008 31.3.2008 13.3.2008 30.3.2007 6.3.2007

Closing share price

at the date of grant HK$19160 HK$21300 HK$23900 HK$21800 HK$21450 HK$21.250 HK$20800

Exercise price HK$20106 HK$21300 HK$23900 HK$21960 HK$21450 HK$21250 HK$21380

Risk free rate Note 2.936% 2.833% 2.668% 2.607% 2.486% 4.192% 4.188%

Expected life of option Note 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years

Expected volatility Note 38.86% 38.19% 35.51% 34.25% 33.03% 29.53% 30.12%

Expected dividend per annum

Note HK$0463 HK$0463 HK$0463 HK$0463 HK$0463 HK$0416 HK$0416

Estimated fair value per

share option HK$6940 HK$8130 HK$8990 HK$7390 HK$6970 HK$7470 HK$7210

Notes

Risk free rate being the approximate yields of 10-year Exchange Fund Notes traded on the date of grant matching the expected life of each option

Expected life of option being the period of 10 years commencing on the date of grant based on managements best estimates for the effects of

non-transferability exercise restriction and behavioural consideration

Expected volatility being the approximate historical volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company in the past one year immediately before

the date of grant

Expected dividend per annum being the approximate average annual cash dividend for the past five financial years
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Financial Risk Management
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Groups major financial instruments include cash and bank balances time deposits held-to-maturity investments amount due from

an associate accounts receivable other receivables available-for-sale financial assets accounts payable accruals rental deposits

from tenants amounts due to minority shareholders borrowings and derivative financial instruments The Companys major financial

instruments include cash and bank balances time deposits other receivables amounts due from/to subsidiaries other payable and

accruals Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes to the financial statements The risks associated with

these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below The management manages and monitors

these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on timely and effective manner

Credit Risk

The credit risk of the Group and the Company are primarily attributable to rents receivable from tenants amounts due from subsidiaries

amount due from an associate derivative financial instruments held-to-maturity investments time deposits and bank balances The

Groups and the Companys maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause financial loss to the Group and the Company due to

failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees issued by the Company are arising from

the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated and Companys balance sheets and

ii the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee issued by the Company as disclosed in note 34 to the financial

statements

For rents receivable from tenants credit checks are part of the normal leasing process and stringent monitoring procedures are in place

to deal with overdue debts In addition the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet

date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts

To mitigate counterparty risk the Group enters into derivative contracts only with sound financial institutions with strong investment-grade

credit ratings limits exposure to each financial institution and monitors each rating regularly

The Groups and the Companys time deposits and bank balances are placed with banks of high credit ratings in Hong Kong The Group

and the Company has set an exposure limit to each single financial institution The Groups listed debt securities are issued by Hong Kong

Monetary Authority or national government with high sovereign credit rating

To minimise the credit risk of amounts due from subsidiaries and an associate the management of the Group and the Company review

the recoverable amount of each individual balance at each balance sheet date to ensure adequate impairment losses are made for

irrecoverable amounts Other than concentration of credit risk on amount due from an associate the Group and the Company have no

significant concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over number of counterparties and tenants
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Non-derivative financial liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals

Rental deposits from tenants

Amounts due to minority shareholders

Unsecured bank loans

Floating rate notes

Fixed rate notes

Zero coupon notes

As at 31 December 2007

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals

Rental deposits from tenants

Amounts due to minority shareholders

Unsecured bank loans

Floating rate notes

Fixed rate notes

Zero coupon notes

Financial Risk Management continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued

Uquidity Risk

The Group and the Company closely monitor their liquidity requirements and the sufficiency of cash and available banking facilities so as

to ensure that the payment obligations are met

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity of the Group and the Company for their non-derivative financial liabilities

The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
and the Company is required to pay The table includes both interest and principal cash flows The interest payments are computed using

contractual rates or if floating based on the prevailing market rate at the balance sheet date For cash flows denominated in currency

other than Hong Kong dollars the prevailing foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date are used to convert the cash flows into

Hong Kong dollars

The Group

As at 31 December 2008

More than More than

Total year years

contractual Within but not but not

Carrying undiscounted year or exceeding exceeding More than

amount cash flow on demand years years years

HK$ million HIK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

320 320 320

388 388 158 88 132 10
327 327 327

920 970 21 85 864

550 557 557

2003 2570 128 129 1648 665

278 430 430

4786 5562 1511 302 2644 1105

278 278 278

339 339 124 104 107
327 327 327

720 809 29 29 751

549 589 22 567

1362 1866 99 99 1668

230 430 430

3805 4638 879 799 2526 434
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Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other payable and accruals

Amounts due to subsidiaries

More than More than

Total year years

contractual Within but not but not

Carrying undiscounted year or exceeding exceeding More than

amount cash flow on demand years years years

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

As at 31 December 2007

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other payable and accruals

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued

Uquidity Risk continued

The Company

As at 31 December 2008

31
59

31 31
59 59

90 90 90

19 19 19

42 42 42

61 61 61
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued

Liquidity Risk continued

The following table details the Groups remaining contractual maturity for its derivative financial instruments The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted net cash inflows outflows on the derivative instruments that settle on net basis and undiscounted gross

inflows outflows on those derivatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed the amount

disclosed has been determined by the prevailing market rate at the balance sheet date For cash flows denominated in currency other

than Hong Kong dollars the prevailing foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date are used to convert the cash flows into Hong

Kong dollars

More than More than

Total lyear 2years
contractual Within but not but not

Carrying undiscounted year or exceeding exceeding More than

amount cash flow on demand years years years

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

Interest rate swaps

Derivative settled gross

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Outflow

Inflow

Cross currency and net basis swaps

Outflow

Inflow

As at 31 December 2007

Derivative settled net

Interest rate swaps

Derivative settled gross

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Outflow

Inflow

Cross currency and net basis swaps

Outflow

Inflow

40 139 28 102

366 282 35 49
368 283 35 50

75

1758 43 36 1679

1856 70 68 1718

41 31

201 83 34 84
206 85 35 86

13

1659 57 52 1550

1707 64 64 1579

At the balance sheet date the Company has no derivative financial instruments

Financial Risk Management continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

The Group

As at 31 December 2008

Derivative settled net
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued

Interest Rate Risk

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on interest rate level and outlook as well as potential impact on the Groups financial

position arising from volatility The Groups policy is to maintain the proportion of borrowings in fixed rates and floating rates within an

appropriate range Accordingly the Group entered into interest rate swaps to hedge the interest rate risk of the Groups floating rate

borrowings including bank loans and floating rate notes and ii cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps to hedge the interest

rate risk of certain amounts of the Groups fixed rate notes The Group reviews the continuing effectiveness of hedging instruments at

least at each balance sheet date and until the hedging instrument expires or is terminated or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for

hedge accounting The Group mainly used regression analysis and comparison of change in fair value of the hedging instruments and the

hedged items for assessing the hedging effectiveness

As at 31 December 2008 about 59.5% 2007 60.1% of the Groups gross debts were effectively on floating rate basis The ratio could

be adjusted with changes to the interest rate trend going forward In addition the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as

the interest income derived from time deposits and bank balances is subject to interest rate changes and ii fair value interest rate risk

in relation to its held-to-maturity investments in fixed-rate debt securities Other than the concentration of interest rate risk related to the

movements in HIBOR the Group has no significant concentration of interest rate risk

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date

and had been applied to both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments that would have affected the profit or loss and equity

change of 50 basis points bps 2007 75 bps was applied to the yield curves at the balance sheet date The applied change of bps

represented managements assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates based on the current market conditions The

decrease in applied change of bps is mainly due to the lower prevailing market interest rates at the balance sheet date

In managements opinion the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect

the exposure during the year

The Group

Increase decrease in Increase decrease in

profit or loss equity

50 bps 50 bps 50 bps 50 bps

increase decrease increase decrease

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

As at 31 December 2008 11 12

75 bps 75 bps 75 bps 75 bps

increase decrease increase decrease

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

As at 31 December 2007
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Financial Risk Management continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued

Currency Risk

The Group aims to minimise its currency risk and does not speculate in currency movements The majority of the Groups and the

Companys assets are located and all rental income are derived in Hong Kong and denominated in Hong Kong dollars As at 31
December 2008 the Group held US$27 million listed debt securities and all of the Groups debts were denominated in Hong Kong dollars

with the exception of the US$182 million 10-year fixed rate notes and the US$26 million bank loan Other than concentration of currency

risk of USD in relation to the US$182 million 10-year fixed rate notes the US$26 million bank loan and the US$27 million listed debt

securities the Group has no other significant currency risk

The Group has entered into appropriate hedging instruments mentioned in notes 20ai and 20b to the financial statements to hedge
against the potential currency risk The Group reviews the continuing effectiveness of hedging instruments at least at each balance sheet

date and until the hedging instrument expires or is terminated or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting The Group
mainly used regression analysis and comparison of change in fair value of the hedging instruments and the hedged items for assessing
the hedging effectiveness

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined assuming that change in exchange rate had occurred at the balance sheet date

and had been applied to both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments that would have affected the profit or loss and equity

change of 650 bps 2007 300 bps was applied to the HKDUSD spot rate at the balance sheet date with the upper and lower

boundaries at 7.75 and 7.85 respectively due to the peg of Hong Kong dollars against US dollars The applied change of bps represented

managements assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates As the HKDUSD spot rate as at the balance
sheet date was close to 7.75 implying greater room for increase in the exchange rate in the coming year the applied change of bps

is therefore increased The forward points the difference between spot rate and the forward rates were assumed the same as the

prevailing market forward points at respective balance sheet date

The Group

Increase decrease in Increase decrease in

profit or loss
equity

650 bps 650 bps 650 bps 650 bps

increase decrease increase decrease

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

As at 31 December 2008

300 bps 300 bps 300 bps 300 bps

increase decrease increase decrease

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

As at 31 December 2007
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued

Equity Price Risk

The Groups available-for-sale investments and held-for-trading investments in listed securities are measured at fair value at each balance

sheet date with reference to the listed share prices Therefore the Group is exposed to equity price risk and the management will monitor

the price movements and take appropriate actions when it is required As at 31 December 2007 the Group had outstanding equity

derivatives The equity derivatives are not qualified as hedging instrument and hence are measured at fair value through profit or loss

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined assuming that change in the corresponding equity prices had occurred at the

balance sheet date and had been applied to the investments that would have affected the profit or loss and equity change of 25%

2007 10% in stock prices was applied at the balance sheet date The applied change of percentage represented managements

assessment of the reasonably possible change in stock prices The increase in applied change of percentage is due to the increased

volatility of stock prices during the year

The Group

Increase decrease in Increase decrease in

profit or loss equity

25% 25% 25% 25%

increase decrease increase decrease

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million I-lK$ million

As at 31 December 2008 246 246

10% 10% 10% 10%

increase decrease increase decrease

HK$ million HK$ million Hl$ million HK$ million

As at 31 December 2007 10 251 251

Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows

the fair value of listed investments traded on active liquid markets and classified as held for trading available-for-sale financial

assets and held-to-maturity investments are determined with reference to the published price quotations

the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities excluding derivative instruments are determined in accordance with

generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions

and

the fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices from independent financial institutions or using discounted

cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates and quoted spot and forward foreign

exchange rates For the Companys share options the fair value is estimated using Black-Scholes option pricing model

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised costs approximate

their fair values except for the carrying amount of HK$2003 million 2007 HK$1362 million fixed rate notes as stated in note 28 to

the financial statements with fair value of HK$2117 million 2007 HK$1543 million
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Financial Risk Management continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Capital Risk Management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to

stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The Groups overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of net debt to adjusted capital ratio For this purpose the Group defines net

debt as borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet less total cash and cash equivalents Adjusted capital comprises all

components of equity adjusted by cumulative deferred tax provided on fair value gain on the investment and owner-occupied properties

attributable to equity holders

The management reviews the Groups net debt to adjusted capital ratio regularly and adjust the ratio through the payment of dividends

the issue of new share or debt the repurchase of shares and the redemption of existing debt

The net debt to adjusted capital ratio at the year end was as follows

Borrowings

Less Held-to-maturity debt securities

Time deposits

Cash and bank balances

Net debt

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

Add Groups share of cumulative deferred tax on properties revaluation

Adjusted capital

Net debt to adjusted capital

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements

The Group

2008

HK$ million

2007

HK$ million

Unsecured bank loans 920 720

Floating rate notes 550 549

Fixed rate notes 2003 1362

Zero coupon notes 278 230

3751 2861

700

964 478

51

2036 2377

31469 31652

3191 3420

34660 35072

5.9% 6.8%
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Five-Year Financial Summary
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Results

Turnover

Property expenses

Gross profit

Investment income

Other gains and losses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Change in fair value of investment properties

Share of results of associates

Release of negative goodwill of associates

Reversal of impairment loss recognised

in respect of investments in securities

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Minority interests

Profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company

Underlying profit for the year

Recurring underlying profit for the year

Dividends

Dividends paid

Dividends proposed

Dividends per share HK cents

Earnings per share HK$ based on

Profit for the year

basic

diluted

Underlying profit for the year basic

Recurring underlying profit for the year basic

Performance Indicators

Net debt to equity

Net interest coverage times

Net assets value per share HK$

Adjusted net assets value per share HK$

Net debt per share HK$

Year end share price HK$

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

restated

1638 1368 1268 1250 1154

217 208 240 237 259

1421 1160 1028 1013 895

63 98 147 38 27

146 302 201 25 15

134 106 111 103 96
155 175 163 214 162

212 3131 2576 4226

590 452 120 241 39

63

1719 4862 3798 5176 783

745 558 856 140

1718 4117 3240 4320 643

124 168 141 199 34

1594 3949 3099 4121 609

1201 1158 1012 1005 609

1066 950 755 641 586

644 549 474 420 381

562 498 422 369 315

68.00 60.00 50.00 45.00 40.00

1.53 3.75 2.94 3.92 0.58

1.53 3.75 2.94 3.92 0.58

1.16 1.10 0.96 0.96 0.58

1.03 0.90 0.72 0.61 0.56

5.9% 6.8% 7.9% 10.7% 24.9%

10.2x 7.8x 6.9x 4.6x 5.5x

30.23 30.51 26.37 23.42 19.59

33.29 33.81 29.12 25.76 21.33

1.96 2.29 2.31 2.75 5.32

12.52 22.25 20.35 19.20 16.35

Hysan Annual Report 2008 133



Five-Year Financial Summary continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Assets and Liabilities

Investment properties

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Time deposit cash and bank balances

Other assets

Total assets

Borrowings

Taxation

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Minority interests

Shareholders funds

Adjusted shareholders funds

underlying profit for the year profit adjusted for groups share of unrealised fair value changes on investment properties net of deferred tax

Recurring underlying profit for the year underlying profit adjusted for aggregate of realised gain or loss on disposal of investment properties and

available-for-sale investments impairment reversal recovery and prior year tax provision

Net debt to equity borrowings less cash and cash equivalents divided by adjusted shareholders funds

Net interest coverage gross profit less administrative expenses before depreciation divided by net interest expenses

Net assets value/Adjusted net assets value per share shareholders funds/adjusted shareholders funds divided by number of issued shares at year

end

Net debt per share borrowings less cash and cash equivalents divided by number of issued shares at year end

Adjusted shareholders funds shareholders funds adjusted for cumulative deferred tax provided for fair value changes on properties

Note

The figures for 2004 have been restated to reflect the prior year adjustments arising from reclassification of certain investment properties of the Group

to property plant and equipment as result of the application of HKAS 40 Investment Property ii recognition of deferred taxation in respect of revalued

investment properties in accordance with HKSICINT-21 Income Taxes Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets and iii reclassification of

leasehold interests in land to prepaid lease payments under operating leases according to HKAS 17 Leases

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

HItS million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

restated

35850 35711 32473 29815 27917

2340 1601 1272 1147 855

1022 2479 1745 1256 1018

1015 484 385 1402 22

1309 615 378 371 335

41536 40890 36253 33991 30147

3751 2861 2821 4301 5603

3999 4180 3574 3077 2332

1076 1001 950 960 815

8826 8042 7345 8338 8750

32710 32848 28908 25653 21397

1241 1196 1080 986 831

31469 31652 27828 24667 20566

34660 35072 30729 27134 22399

Definitions
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Report of the Valuer

To the Board of Directors

Hysan Development Company Limited

Dear Sirs

Annual revaluation of investment properties as at 31 December 2008

In accordance with your appointment of Knight Frank Petty Limited to value the investment properties in Hong Kong owned by Hysan

Development Company Limited and its subsidiaries we are pleased to advise that the market value of the investment properties as at

31 December 2008 was in the approximate sum of Hong Kong Dollars Thirty Five Billion Eight Hundred Fifty Million Only i.e HK$35850

million

The investment properties have been valued individually on market value basis by reference to comparable market transactions and

on the basis of capitalisation of the net income with due allowance for the reversionary income and redevelopment potential without

allowances for any expenses or taxation which may be incurred in effecting sale

Yours faithfully

Knight Frank Petty Limited

Hong Kong 20 February 2009
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Schedule of Principal Properties
As at 31 December 2008

Address Lot No

Percentage

Category held by

Use of the Lease the Group

The Lee Gardens

33 Hysari Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Bamboo Grove

74-86 Kennedy Road

Mid-Levels

Hong Kong

Lee Gardens Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Leighton Centre

77 Leighton Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Lee Theatre Plaza

99 Percival Street

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

sunning Piaza

10 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

sunning Court

Hoi Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

One Hysan Avenue

Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

AlA Plaza

18 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

10 111 Leighton Road

111 Leighton Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

11 500 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Sec DD of IL 29 Sec of IL 457

Sec MM of l.L 29
the R.P of Sec of IL 29

and the R.P of IL 457

IL 8624

The R.P of Subsec of Sec of IL 29
Subsec of Sec of IL 29

and the RE of Sec of IL 29

The R.F of Subsec of Sec of IL 29

Subsec of Sec of IL 29

and the R.E of Sec of IL 29

Sec FE of IL 29 and

the R.P of Marine Lot 365

The property the Site of the former Hennessy centre is currently under redevelopment The Site has registered site area of approximately 47738

square feet Demolition work for existing basement and sub-structure work are currently underway The redevelopment has projected gross floor area

of around 710000 square feet and is expected to be completed in 2011

Investment Properties

Commercial Long lease 100%

Residential Medium-term 100%

lease

Sec of IL 29 Commercial Long lease 65.36%

Sec and of IL 457

the RE of Sec and of IL 457

Subsec of Sec and of IL 457

Subsec of Sec of IL 457 and

Subsec and

the R.P of Sec of IL 461

Sec and the R.P of l.L 1451 Commercial Long lease 100%

IL 1452 the R.R of IL 472 and 476 Commercial Long lease 100%

Commercial Long lease 100%

Residential Long lease 100%

The R.P of Sec GG of I.L 29 Commercial Long lease 100%

Sec of IL 457 and Sec LL of IL 29 Commercial Long lease 100%

Sec KK of l.L 29 Commercial Long lease 100%

Commercial Long lease 100%
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ShareholdingAnalysis

Other corporate shareholders

Individual shareholders

Total

433130735

561255967

46727876

41.60

53.91

4.49

Share Capital

As at 31 December 2008

Number of

Ordinary shares Nominal Value

HK$HK$

Authorised share capital 7250000000 1450000000

Issued and fully paid-up capital 5205572890 1041114578

There was one class of ordinary shares of HK$5 each with equal voting rights

Distribution of Shareholdings

as at 31 December 2008 as per register of members of the Company

Number of of Number of of the issued

Size of registered shareholdings shareholders shareholders shares share capital

Note

5000 or below 2578 68.89 4781921 0.46

5001 50000 995 26.59 15262447 1.47

50001 100000 91 2.43 6808391 0.65

100001 500000 55 1.47 11359998 1.09

500001 1000000 0.08 2298394 0.22

Above 1000000 20 0.54 1000603427 96.11

Total 3742 100 1041114578 100

Types of Shareholders

as at 31 December 2008 as per register of members of the Company

Number of of the issued

Type of shareholders shares held share capital

Note

Lee Hysan Company Limited Lee Hysan Estate Company Limited and their subsidiaries

1041114578 100
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Shareholding Analysis continued

Location of Shareholders

as at 31 December 2008 as per register of members of the Company

Number of of the issued

Location of shareholders shares held share capital

Note

1035412143 99.45

4299846 0.41

1132138 0.11

63556 0.01

206895 0.02

Hong Kong

United States and Canada

United Kingdom

Singapore

Others

Total

Note

The percentages have been compiled based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2008 i.e 1041114.578 ordinary

shares

1041114578 100
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Shareholder Information

Financial Calendar

Full year results announced 10 March 2009

Ex-dividend date for final dividend 12 May 2009

Closure of register of members 14 to 18 May 2009

Annual General Meeting
18 May 2009

Record date for final dividend 18 May 2009

Dispatch of scrip dividend circular and election form on or about 20 May 2009

Dispatch of final dividend warrants definitive share certificates on or about June 2009

2009 interim results to be announced 11 August 2009

subject to change

Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of final dividend of

HK54 cents per share Subject to shareholder approval the final

dividend will be payable in cash with scrip dividend alternative

to shareholders on the register of members as at Monday

18 May 2009 The scrip dividend alternative is conditional upon

the granting by the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited of the listing of and permission to deal in the

new shares to be issued pursuant thereto

circular containing details of the scrip dividend and the form of

election will be mailed to shareholders on or about Wednesday

20 May 2009 Shareholders who elect for the scrip dividend in

lieu of the cash dividend in whole or in part shall return the form

of election to the Companys Registrars on or before Wednesday

June 2009

Definitive share certificates in respect of the scrip dividend

and cheques for those shareholders who do not elect for scrip

dividend will be dispatched to shareholders on or about Tuesday

June 2009

The register of members will be closed from Thursday 14 May 2009

to Monday 18 May 2009 both dates inclusive for the purpose of

determining shareholders entitlements to attend and vote at the

Annual General Meeting to be held on 18 May 2009 the AGM
and the proposed final dividend during which period no transfer

of shares will be registered In order to qualify for attending and

voting at the AGM and the proposed final dividend all transfer

documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must

be lodged with the Companys Registrars not later than 400 p.m

on Wednesday 13 May 2009

Share Listing

Hysans shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited It has sponsored American Depositary Receipts ADR

Programme in the New York market

Stock Code

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 00014

Bloomberg 14HK

Reuters 0014.HK

Ticket Symbol for ADR Code HYSNY

CUSIP reference number 449162304

Shareholder Services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration please

contact the Companys Registrars

Tricor Standard Limited

26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queens Road East

Wanchai Hong Kong

Telephone 852 2980 1768

Facsimile 852 2861 1465

Holders of the Companys ordinary shares should notify the

Registrars promptly of any change of their address

The Annual Report is printed in English and Chinese language and

is available on our website at www.hysan.com.hk Shareholders

may at any time choose to receive the Annual Report in printed

form in either the English or Chinese language or both or by

electronic means Shareholders who have chosen to receive the

Annual Report using electronic means and who for any reason

have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the Annual Report

will promptly upon request be sent printed copy free of charge

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the language

or means of receipt of the Annual Report by notice in writing to

the Companys Registrars at the address above The Change

Request Form may be downloaded from the Companys website

at www.hysan.com.hk

Investor Relations

For enquiries relating to investor relations please email to

investor@hysan.com.hk or write to the Company at

Investor Relations

Hysan Development Company Limited

49/F The Lee Gardens 33 Hysan Avenue

Hong Kong

Telephone 852 2895 5777

Facsimile 852 2577 5153

Our Website

Press releases and other information of the Group can be found

at our Internet website www.hysan.com.hk



Hysan Development Company Limited

49/F The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue Hong Kong

T852 2895 5777 852 2577 5153
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Keyfiguresataglance Qi Qi Change

2009 2008

Sales 482.3 595.2 19.0%

New orders cumulative including Lifecycle Service 414.5 607.3 31.7%

Orders on hand at 31 March including Lifecycle Service 769.6 903.0 14.8%

Capital expenditures 22.0 15.7 40.1%

Employees at 31 March

Worldwide 10273 9853 4.3%

Germany 8206 7942 3.3%

Earnings per share 0.17 0.98

EBITDA 8.2 57.1 85.6%

EBIT 5.9 45.4

EBT 4.0 45.6

Consolidated earnings 5.1 30.7

Cashflowgross 9.0 42.4 78.8%



Dear shareholders and friends of KRONES

One year ago we declared confidently in our first quarterly report for 2008 that de

mand for our products is not heavily dependent on economic cycles Although the

global economy was on course for recession even then the years of growth KRONES

had been enjoying continued throughout the first three months of 2008 what even

highly acclaimed economists were unable to prophesy twelve months ago is now

certainty the current economic crisis is on scale far exceeding the kind of nor

male downturn against which our business model would undoubtedly have proved

resilient what we are witnessing is de facto collapse of the global economy which

naturally has made our customers in the food and beverages industry wary about

investing what projects there are in the pipeline moreover are proving difficult

to finance because of the banks reluctance to provide loans

The figures for the first quarter of 2009 show all too clearly that the economic

crisis has now reached KRONES as well Sales in the months January to March 2009

were down 19% on the previous year at 482.3m while new orders fell nearly 32%

to 414.5m so that we have had to close the first quarter with an EBT of4.om

The Executive Board began its counteroffensive by adopting whole raft of

measures back in the fourth quarter of 2008 The restructuring already in
progress

reflects the need for swift action But we are also working on strengthening our

companys long-term standing These short-term measures will therefore be fol

lowed by still more structural changes in the months to come

We cannot prevent the global crisis but thanks to our solid finances and an excellent

credit rating we stand every chance of being able to emerge from this crisis as one

of the winners

/tf4
Volker Kronseder Hans-JUrgen Thaus

Chairman of the Deputy Chairman of the

Executive Board Executive Board



Economic environment

The global economy is shrinking

2009 will likely see the industrialised nations in deep recession Blame for the Turmoil on the financial markets

poor economic prospects can be laid on the crisis in the financial markets which is
has plunged the global economy

into serious crisis

having huge knock-on effect on the real economy The International Monetary

Fund IMF expects the global economy to shrink by 0.5% to 1.0% in 2009

Whether the stimulus packages adopted in various countries will have an impact at

all remains to be seen But the important indicators leave little room for hope that

the global economy will pull out of its tailspin in the near future Industrial produc

tion in the USA fell continuously throughout the first quarter so that by March in

dustrial capacity was at its lowest since 1967 IWF economists expect gross domestic

product GDP in the USA to fall by 2.6% in 2009 And the outlook in Europe is even

worse with the IMF predicting decline of 3.2% for the eurozone

The global economic collapse has hit Germany especially hard because of the

dominance of its export industry The first quarter of 2009 saw GDP shrink by more

than two percent compared with the same period last year The IFO Business Climate

Index one of the most important early warning systems is still falling and most

economic institutes expect Germanys GDP to drop by more than 4% for the year as

whole

Orders for machinery in decline

After five consecutive years of growth the German machine construction industry

is now facing dramatic slump in 2009 New orders from both Germany and abroad

have been in decline for months In February 2009 the volume of new orders was

whole 49% down on the previous year Domestic business plummeted 45% while

demand from the rest of the world dropped to half last years level The three-month

period from December 2008 to February 2009 period that tends to be less suscep

tible to short-term fluctuations saw year-on-year fall in orders of 44% The 7% de

cline in production forecast in early February by the German Engineering Federation

vDMA had to be corrected within matter of weeks The VDMA now expects produc

tion to fall by between 10% and 20% in the course of this year
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New orders received by German machinery and industrial equipment manufacturers

rmany

of world
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Price-adjusted index basis 2005 100
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Source VDMA April 2009
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Sales

Quarterly sales 19% down on last year

The global downturn weighed heavily on KRONES performance in the first quarter of

2009 At 482.3m sales in the months January to March 2009 were 19% below those

reported for Qi 2008 Whereas in the first quarter of 2008 we profited from both an

exceptionally vigorous machinery sector and buoyant demand for lines for beverage

production and bottling KRONES was hit hard by the sharp fall in investment activi

ty in the period under review

Above all the market for single machines has become very competitive and in

the first three months of the year KRONES chose to forego sales without adequate

margins

While sales of new machines went into decline the first quarter saw continued

growth in our service business indicating that our major strategic expansion of this

area is paying off The focus is on regions in which we have sold large numbers of

new machines in recent years such as Africa and Russia

KRONE5 Group sales in han 31 March Aftera long period of

sustained growth KRONE5 sales

595.2
fell year-on-year in Qi 2009

505.0
4823

451.6

iI1Ii
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Sales by region

From January to March 2009 our sales in Germany rose by 34.1% year-on-year

to 88.4m previous year 65.9m result that is attributable mainly to invoice

timing

That our European sales fell 47.6% from 293.6m in Qi 2008 to 153.9m in the

period under review has to do with the ailing economy in Western Europe The eco

nomic collapse in parts of Eastern Europe also had negative impact on our sales

Sales in the rest of the world on the other hand increased by 1.8% from 235.7m

in Qi 2008 to 24o.om in Qi 2009 While we continued to grow in regions such as

Asia South America and Africa sales by KRONES in North America shrank
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New orders and orders on hand

Orders intake well below last years level

One knock-on effect of the global economic crisis was slowdown in investment In many regions the economic

activity on the part of our customers in Qi 2009 From January to March 2009
downturn accelerated in the first

KRONES orders intake fell 31.7% year-on-year from 6o7.3m to 414.5m Average
quarter 012009 This put

dampener on investment
activity

order volume decreased at the same time owing to the difficulty of financing large-
by KRONEScustomers

scale projects at present There was no demand at all for green field projects i.e

projects in which KR0NEs as the general contractor oversees the construction of

an entire beverage production plant

The sharpest fall in orders in the first quarter of 2009 was felt by KRONES in those

regions in which the economic downturn actually worsened in the first few weeks of

the year including both Eastern and Western Europe The order situation in China

and Africa on the other hand is comparatively good

Orders on hand have fallen

KRONES began the year 2009 cushioned by orders on hand worth 837m This

level fell in the first three months of the year and by 31 March had reached 769.6m

previous year 903.Om

KR0NES Group new orders in KRONES Group orders on hand in

Jan31 March at 31 March 903.0

798.8
769.6

686.0
727.5

607.3

488.5

1111
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

KRONES has more than 10000 employees

At the end of the first quarter of 2009 KRONES employed 30273 people worldwide

of which 8206 were in Germany This represents decrease of 60 compared with

31 December 2008 KRONES was training 438 young people as at 31 March 2009
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Earnings

KRONES reports loss in first quarter

KR0NE5 earnings before taxes in the first quarter of 2009 deteriorated year-on-year

from 45.6m to 4.Om due to the sharp fall in sales Although we have already

implemented extensive cost-reduction measures in the first quarter these will not

be felt in full until later in fiscal 2009 Personnel costs which remain high were

the main contributory factor in the unsatisfactory quarterly figures

As we firmly believe that our markets will grow again in the long term we intend to

retain our permanent staff This is having an additional dragging impact on earnings

in the difficult economic climate In the medium and long term however it is cru

cial to have sufficiently qualified personnel in the company

--

KRONE5 slipped into negative
KR0NE5 Group earnings after taxes in Cm

territory due to sharp drop in sales

lJan31 March
in thefirst quarter of 2009

Following after-tax earnings of 30.7m in the first quarter of 2008 KRONES posted

loss after tax of 5.lm in the three months from January to March 2009 Earnings

per share declined from 0.98 to 0.37

iRONE5 Group earnings per
share in ianIl March

0.98

.72

0.55
0.60

0.17

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

KRONE5 Group earnings before taxes EEl in Cm

Jan31 March 45.6

36.1

29.1
30.5 30.7

fl.9

II iiili
2005 2006 2007 2008 20092005 2006 2007 2008 2009

4.0
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KRONES Group earnings structure in

2009 2008 change

lJan3lMar jan31 Mar

Sales revenues
482.3 595.2 19.0%

Changes in inventories of finished goods

and work in progress
26.5 5.4

Total operating revenue 455.8 600.6 24.1%

Goods and services purchased 234.2 310.5 24.6%

Personnel expenses
160.0 160.8 0.5%

Other operating income expenses

and own work capitalised
53.4 72.2 26.0%

EBITDA
8.2 57.1 85.6%

Depreciation amortisation and write-downs

on non-current assets 14.1 11.7 20.5%

EBIT
5.9 45.4

Net financial income expense
1.9 0.2

EBT
4.0 45.6

Taxes on income 1.1 14.9 92.6%

Consolidated earnings
5.1 30.7

The abridged income statement shows that the drop in sales in the quarter under The unchanging high personnel

report impacted heavily on KRONES earnings due to the high level of fixed costs
costs had significant negative

impact on KRONES earnings in

largely incurred in human resources Strategic reasons led us to refrain from corn-
the reporting period

pulsory redundancies despite the poor business situation This and the fact that we

did not introduce short-time working in the reporting period meant that personnel

expenses in the period January to March 2009 were at i6o.om almost as high as

in the first quarter of 2008 i6o.8m The personnel expenses ratio i.e the ratio

of personnel expenses to the total operating revenue of 455.8m worsened from

26.8% to 35.1%

At 234.2m expenses
for goods and services purchased declined 24.6% on the

previous year which was more than proportionately The eservices purchasede item

of the expenses for goods and services purchased includes expenses for temporary

workers With KRONES having made only limited use of temporary workers in the

first quarter of 2009 the cost of purchased
services fell by some i8m compared

with the previous year
The ratio of goods and services purchased to total operating

revenue slipped from 51.7% to 51.4%

At 53.4m the balance of other operating income and expenses and own work

capitalised improved i8.8m Here we see the first effects of our savings measures in

response to the increasingly difficult business environment
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10 Cash flow

Consolidated cash flow statement in

2009 2008 Change

lJan31 Mar lJan31 Mar inCm

EDT 4.0 45.6 49.6

Cash flow from operating activities 54.7 22.8 31.9

Cash flow from investing activities 24.8 15.2 9.6

Free cash flow 79.5 38.0 41.5

Cash flow from financing activities 20.0 26.7 6.7

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 59.5 11.3 48.2

Change in cash and cash equivalents arising

from exchange rates 0.4 0.2 0.6

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 108.4 53.8 54.6

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 48.5 42.7 5.8

KR0NE5 cash flow from operating activities operative cash flow deteriorated Our cashflow sufferedfrom the

31.9m year-on-year in the first quarter of 2009 to 54.7m This can be attributed sharp decrease in earnings

both to the drop of nearly 5om in pre-tax earnings combined with higher tax pre

payments and to the fact that the advance payments received decreased around 21%

for business reasons That we were able to achieve sizeable reduction in our inven

tories and trade receivables in the first quarter had positive impact on the opera

tive cash flow

KRONE5 invested 22.om previous year 15.7m in property plant and equipment

and intangible assets in the first quarter Capital expenditures for intangible assets

rose because KRONE5 is spending more on research and development in preparation

for edrinktece the global industrys most important trade fair in September 2009

In the period under report we also boosted our indirect and direct stake in the sub

sidiary KO5ME from 70% to ioo% Free cash flow i.e operative cash flow less capital

expenditure came to 79.5m in the first quarter of 2009 previous year 38.om

KRONE5 started share buyback programme in January 2009 By the end of March

2009 the company had bought 20.2m worth of treasury shares on the stock market

To optimise its financing position the company drew on 4o.7m in credit lines pre

vious year 27.2m by the end of the first quarter Taking into account changes due

to exchange rates KRONE5 had cash and cash equivalents of 48.5m previous year

42.7m at 31 March 2009

KRONE5 Group capital expenditures for
intangible

assets and property plant and equipment in Jan31 March

22.0

17.2
17.6

15.7

14.0

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
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Balance sheet structure
11

KRONES Group asset and capital structure in

31Mar2009 31Dec2508 31Dec2007 310ec2006

Non-current assets 537 534 475 430

of which property plant and equipment

intangible assets and financial assets 490 482 422 374

Current assets 1180 1291 1209 1042

of which cash and equivalents 49 108 54 58

Equity 760 790 708 629

Total debt 957 1035 976 843

Non-current liabilities 143 144 155 147

Current liabilities 814 891 821 696

Total 1717 1825 1684 1472

The decline in business brought the balance sheet total of the KRONES Group down KRONES has solid balance sheet

to 1716.9m by the end of March 2009 from the 1752.2m recorded the previous
structure At the end ofMarch 2009

its equity ratio was 44.3%

year The balance sheet total slipped nearly 6% compared with the total at the bal

ance sheet date for 2008

Property plant and equipment intangible assets and financial assets amounted to

490.2m at the end of the first quarter 31 December 2008 482.Om At 389.8m

property plant and equipment account for the lions share The more than 40% in

crease in intangible assets to 84.9m compared with the balance sheet at 31 March

2008 reflects above all the development costs incurred by KRONE5 for the develop

ment of new products in preparation for the drinktece trade fair in September

2009 At the end of the first quarter of 2009 the company had total non-current

assets of 536.gm 31 December 2008 534.3m

KRONES ran down inventories and trade receivables in the first three months of

2009 That liquid assets decreased nearly 6om compared with the 2008 balance

sheet date is due partly to the share buyback programme implemented by the

company By 31 March KRONES had acquired shares totalling 2o.2m in value on

the stock market Current assets stood at ii8o.om 31 December 2008 1290.8m

at the end of the quarter under report

At 31 March 2009 the non-current liabilities of KRONE5 largely provisions for pen

sions and other provisions amounted to 142.5m 31 December 2008 144.lm The

main individual items in the current liabilities of 814.3m are advance payments

received and other liabilities and accruals

At the end of the first quarter of 2009 KRONFS had 76 oim in equity which was

down 2o.2m due to the share buyback programme now in place The equity ratio

was 44.3% The very sound capital structure of KRONES is good foundation for

surviving and exploiting opportunities during the economic downturn

MANAOEMENT REPORT KRONE5 IN FIGIJRE5



Report from the segments

Sales by segment Jan to 31 March 2009

Machines/lines

forproductilling

and decoration

Machines/lines

for beverage production/

process technology

7.2% 34.8m

Machines/lines for

the low output range

K05ME

Share of consolidated sales totalling 482.3m

Segment revenues

Sales by segment Jan to 31 March 2008

Machines/lines

for product filling

and decoration

83.6% 497.6m

Machines/lines

for beverage production/

process technology

13.0% 77.4m

Machines/lines for

the low output range

K05ME
34% 20.2m

Share ofconsolidated sales totalling 595.2m

From January to March 2009 KRONES core segment amachines and lines for

product filling and decoratione suffered 13.4% drop in sales on the previous year

down from 497.6m to 43o.8m The segments sales in the reporting period were

achieved largely with machines for producing plastic bottles Par bottles and

the associated filling lines In the first quarter the segment accounted for 89.3%

previous year 83.6% of consolidated sales

At C34.Sm sales in the segment machines and lines for beverage production

process technologye were 55.0% lower in the first quarter of 2009 than in the

previous year In the first quarter of 2008 KRONES had profited from lively demand

for brewhouses The number of realised projects declined sharply in the first three

months of the current fiscal year due to invoice timing After 13.0% in the same

quarter of 2008 this segment contributed only 7.2% to consolidated sales in the

first quarter of 2009

Sales in floNEs smallest segment machines and lines for the tow output range

K0SMEe shrank 17.3% KOSME thus performed better in the first quarter than the

market as whole which suffered much greater drop in volume The segments

share of consolidated sales climbed to 3.5% from 3.4% in the same quarter of the

previous year

Our core segment saw the smallest

drop in sales in the first quarter

MANAGEMENT REPORT REPORT FROM THE SEGMENTS



Segment earnings

Pre-tax earnings in the segment emachines and lines for product filling and Al three KRONE5 segments moved

decorations declined 44.7m year-on-year to stand at o.9m in the first quarter of
into the red in the quorter under

2009 Earnings were negatively impacted both by the strain on price quality from
report

the weakness of the sector and by the lower utilisation of production capacity In

the first quarter the EBT margin i.e earnings before tax relative to segment sales

dropped from 9.0% to 0.2% compared with the same period last year

The collapse of sales in the segment smachines and lines for beverage production

process technologys which was also due to invoice timing had severe effect on

quarterly results with pre-tax earnings falling 4.lm from 1.4m to C2.7m In the

quarter under review the EST margin fell
year-on-year

from i.8% to 7.8%

Last year KRONE5 optimised all processes
and workflows in the segment smachines

and lines for the low output range K05MEs These efforts had positive effect

in the first quarter of 2009 Although sales were well down on the previous year

pre-tax earnings improved by comparison with the first quarter of 2008 rising

from o.5m to o.4m The EST margin was 2.4% previous year 2.5%

Product filling and decoration 2008

Jan31 Mar

ERIT in Cm 28 444

ERT inCm 447

eimargin
In/ O2 90

Beverage production/process tech nology 2009 2008

Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar

ERIT in Cm 3.0 1.3

ERT in Cm 2.7 1.4

EBT margin in 7.8 1.8

KO5ME 2009 2008

lJan31 Mar lJan31 Mar

ER1T
in Cm 0.1 0.3

ERT in Cm 0.4 0.5

margin in 2.4 25
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14 TheKRoNEsshare

Share prices under pressure
in first quarter

The financial crisis and worsening economic data ensured that stock markets began

the year in downbeat mood The DAX fell almost 25% to about 3650 points by the

beginning of March Optimistic comments from some bank directors on business

trends in their institutions combined with the fact that for the first time in 40 years

the us central bank the FED wants to buy American government bonds and flood

the market with liquidity triggered sharp recovery
in prices The DAX closed on 31

March 2009 at 4085 points 15.1% down on the start of the year

As banking and insurance stocks have little weight in the MDAX it was unable to gain

from the sMarch risee led by the financial industry slumping 21% in the first quar

ter The KRONES share fared little worse from January to March 2009 At nearly 24

our share was trading 22.8% lower at the end of the quarter than at the start of the

year In addition to the general weakness of the stock markets and disappointing

figures from the entire machine construction industry the price was also hit by the

prospects for the current fiscal year

The KRONES shore come
The KEONES share January31 March 2009

under pressure in the
first

12.00 quoder The price Jell

obout os heovily os the

31.00

MOAX
30.00

29.00

28.00

27.00

26.00

25.00

24.00

23.00

22.00

21.00

KRONES share MOAX indexed

Share buyback programme started

The Executive Board firmly believes that the KRONES share price does not adequately

reflect the companys earnings power and future prospects Using the authority

given to it by the general meeting of i8 June 2008 it therefore decided on 21 January

2009 to acquire up to io% of the equity capital 3159307 shares on the stock market

The consideration per share excluding ancillary purchase costs must be not less

than 22.61 and not more than 27.64 At 23 April 2009 1197000 shares had been

bought back at an average price of 25.91 The current status of the share buyback is

published regularly on our website at http//krones.de/en/investor_relations/

8352.htm

January February March
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Outlook

KRONES expects difficult fiscal 2009

The unprecedented general economic situation makes it impossible to offer KRONE5 is combating the effects

of the economic crisis with an
reliable prediction for consolidated earnings in 2009 We can only assume that the

extensive action plan under the

world financial and economic crisis will continue to have significant impact on
name Conversion

KRONE5 sales and earnings as the year progresses Should our customers reluctance

to invest continue for longer at the level we are now experiencing and should sales

collapse as the result we will no longer be able to exclude the possibility of negative

consolidated earnings for 2009 We expect our markets to recover in 2010

In the fourth quarter of 2008 the Executive Board had already begun to counteract

the drop in earnings expected from the global economic crisis by implementing an

extensive action plan under the name Conversions These measures include the

termination of more than 800 temporary and fixed-term contracts as well as even

more flexible working hours and insourcing measures We are also utilising natural

fluctuation planning extensive short-time working and re-examining planned

investments These short-term measures will be followed in the months ahead by

structural changes which we are in the process of planning This is intended to

enable KRONE5 to recover better and more quickly from the economic trough than

its competitors and to continue expanding its leading role The
very

solid net worth

and financial position of the group is key safety factor in the global crisis We ex

pect to see our markets return to growth in the long term Our products and services

in the food and drink segment put us very close to consumers enabling us to

profit indirectly from the growth in the worlds population and rising global

prosperity

In September 2009 Munich will host drinktec the most important worldwide

industry trade fair for KRONES KRONE5 will use this show which is only held every

years as an opportunity to convince customers of the benefits of our innovative

capacity and solutions expertise at this difficult time The company expects to

return very quickly to its usual strength after the economic crisis is over

MANAGEMENT REPORT OUTLOOK



16 Consolidated balance sheet

Assets Mar2009 31 Dec 2008

inrn tnrn inm inm

Intangible assets 84.9 79.8

Property plant and equipment 389.8 386.7

Financial assets 15.5 15.5

Property plant and equipment intangible assets and financial assets 490.2 482.0

Deferred tax assets 10.0 9.3

Trade receivables
_____________

17.8 24.8

Current tax receivables 12.4 12.1

Other assets 6.5 6.1

Non-current assets
___________

536.9 534.3

Inventories 559.2
__________

568.6

Trade receivables 490.2 529.0

Current tax receivables 4.2 5.1

Other assets 77.9 79.7

Cash and cash equivalents
--____________________________________

48.5 108.4

Current assets
_____________________________________ __________

1180.0 1290.8

Total 1716.9 1825.1

KRONES GROUP CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTs CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET



Equity and liabilities 31 Mar 2009 31 Dec 2008

inm inm inm inm

_________________________________
760.1 790.0

__________ ________________________
75.9 74.5

_________ ___________ ________________________
14.0 14.7

_____________________ _______________________
40.8 40.7

_____________________ _________
0.6 0.6

_____________________
0.0 0.1

____________
5.1 7.1

6.1 6.4

_______________________________________________________________
142.5 144.1

__________
116.5 121.4

14.8 17.2

40.7 0.1

228.5 288.7

133.1 160.4

__________
18.3 37.1

262.4 266.1

__________________________________________________
814.3 891.0

1716.9 1825.1

The decrease in equity and liabilities of 20.2m at 31 March 2009 results from the share
buyback programme now in

place

Equity

Provisions for pensions

Deferred tax liabilities

Other provisions

Liabilities to banks

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Other liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Other provisions

Provisions for taxes

Liabilities to banks

Advance payments received

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Other liabilities and accruals

Current liabilities

Total

KRONE5 GROUP CON5OLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL 5TATEMENT5 CON5OLIDATED BALANCE SHEET



18 Consolidated income statement

2008 change

j.4.Mir Jan31 Mar

inCm in%

Saes revenues 482.3 595.2 19.0

Changes in inventories of finished go_ods
and work in progress 26.5 5.4

Total operating revenue 455.8 600.6 24.1

Goods and services purchased
234.2 310.5 24.6

Personnel_expenses
160.0 160.8 0.5

Other operating income expenses and own work capitalised 53.4 72.2 26.0

Depreciation amortisation and write-downs on non-current assets 14.1 11.7 20.5

EBIT
_________- --

5.9 45.4

Net financial income expense
1.9 0.2

Earnings before taxes 4.0 45.6

Taxesonincome 1.1 14.9 92.6

Consolidated earnings
5.1 30.7

Profit loss share of minority interests
0.0 0.2

_______

Profit loss share of shareholders of KRONES Group 5.1 30.9

Earnings per share diluted/basic in 0.17 0.98

KRONE5 GROUP CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coNsoLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT



Consolidated cash flow statement

2009 2008

1Jan3Mar lJan3lMar

nm inm

Earnings before taxes 4.0 45.6

Depreciation and amortisation 14.1 11.7

Decrease previous year increase in provisions 3.4 20.8

Deferred tax item changes recognised in income 1.4 2.6

Interest expenses and interest income 1.3 0.1

Proceeds and losses from the disposal of non-current assets 0.0 0.1

Other non-cash income and expenses 0.2 1.5

Decrease increase in inventories trade receivables and other assets

not attributable to investing or financing activities 76.4 76.9

Decrease in trade payables and other liabilities

not attributable to investing or financing activities 114.2 15.2

Cash generated from operating activities 33.6 12.9

Interest paid 0.4 1.2

Income taxes paid and refunds received 20.7 8.7

Cash flow from operating activities 54.7 22.8

Cash payments to acquire intangible assets 10.4 5.4

Proceeds from the disposal of intangible assets 0.0 0.1

Cash payments to acquire property plant and equipment 11.6 10.3

Proceeds from the disposal of property plant and equipment 0.0 0.7

Cash payments to acquire financial assets 0.0 1.0

Cash payments to acquire shares in associated enterprises 3.1 0.0

Interest received 0.3 0.7

Cash flow from investing activities 24.8 15.2

Acquisition of treasury shares 20.2 0.0

Proceeds from new borrowing 40.6 27.1

Cash payments to pay lease liabilities 0.4 0.4

Cash flow from financing activities 20.0 26.7

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 59.5 11.3

Change in cash and cash equivalents arising from exchange rates 0.4 0.2

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 108.4 53.8

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 48.5 42.7

KRONES GROUP CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT



20 Consolidated statement of changes inequity

Parent company
Minority Group

interest equity

Capital Capital
Retained Currency Other Group Equity Equity

stock reserves earnings differences reserves profit

in equity
__________ ________

inm inrn inm inm lnm inm inm inm inm

At 31 December 2007 40.0 103.7 409.3 5.7 0.7 158.4 706.4 1.6 708.0

Consolidated net income 01 2008 30.9 30.9 0.2 30.7

Currency differences 4.7 4.7 4.7

Hedge accounting ______
1.3 1.3 1.3

At 31 March2008 40.0 103.7 409.3 10.4 2.0 189.3 733.9 1.4 735.3

Dividend payment 0.70 per share 22.1 22.1 22.1

Consolidated net income months 2008 76.1 76.1 0.2 75.9

Allocation to retained earnings ________
67.4 67.4 0.0 0.0

Currency differences 1.4 1.4 1.4

Hedge accounting 0.5 0.5 0.5

At 31 December2008 40.0 103.7 476.7 9.0 1.5 175.9 788.8 1.2 790.0

Consolidated net income 012009 5.1 5.1 0.0 5.1

Treasury shares 20.2 20.2 20.2

Currency differences 0.4 0.4 0.4

Changes in the consolidated group 2.6 2.6 1.2 3.8

Hedge accounting 0.4 0.4 0.4

At 31 March 2009 40.0 83.5 474.1 9.4 1.1 170.8 760.1 0.0 760.1

KRONES GROUP CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY



Statement of income and expenses reported in the group equity

2009 2008

Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar

inm inm

16.7 20.2

0.1 0.3

0.4 0.5

2.4% 2.5%

2009 2008

Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar

inm inm

482.3 595.2

45.4

4.0 45.6

-0.8% 7.7%

2009 2008

Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar

inm inm

Consolidated earnings 5.1 30.7

Difference from currency translation 0.4 4.7

Derivative finnciaI instruments 0.4 1.3

Total income and expenses reported directly in the equity 0.8 3.4

Total income and expenses reported in the equity 5.9 27.3

of which
minority_interests

0.0 0.2

of which KRONE5 Group interests 5.9 27.5

KRONES group segment reporting

Machines and lines Machines and lines Machines and lines KRONES Group

for product filling and for beverage production for the low output

decoration process technology range K0SME

2009 2008 2009 2008

Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar

inm inm inm innl

Sales revenues 430.8 497.6 34.8 77.4

EBIT 2.8 44.4 3.0 1.3

EBT 0.9 44.7 2.7 1.4

margin 0.2% 9.0%

Employees at 31 Marche

Consolidated group

9023 8465

7.8% 1.8%

583 533 518 487 10124 9485

KRONE5 GROUP CONSOLIOATEO INTERIM FINANCiAL 5TATEMENT5 5EGMENT REPORTING 5TATEMENT OF INcoME ANO EXPENSE5 REPORTEO IN THE GROUP EQUITY



22 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General disclosures

Legal basis

The consolidated financial statements of KRONES AG KR0NEs GROUPu for the period ended 31 March

2009 have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards IFRss of the

International Accounting Standards Board lAso London applicable on the reporting date including the

interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee IFRIC as adopt

ed by the European Union No early application was made of IFRS5 that had not yet entered into force or

their interpretations list of these standards and interpretations and of standards being applied for the

first time is on page 30

Minority interests in group equity are stated on the balance sheet as special item within equity Profit

or loss shares attributable to minority interests are recognised on the income statement as part of consoli

dated earnings The shares of consolidated earnings allocated to equity holders of the parent company

and to minority interests are presented separately

Minority interests have been added to the statement of changes in equity

The following explanatory notes comprise disclosures and remarks that under IFliSs must be included as

notes to the consolidated financial statements in addition to the balance sheet income statement state

ment of changes in equity and cash flow statement

The nature of expense method has been used for the income statement The Groups reporting currency

is the euro

Consolidated group

Besides KRONES AG the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2009 include all

material domestic and foreign subsidiaries in which KRONES AG holds more than 50% of the voting rights

Smefin S.R.L Roverbella Italy was acquired in fiscal 2009 and consolidated along with KRONFS 0.0.0

Moscow Russian Federation and KRONES Thailand Co Ltd Bangkok Thailand

KRONES AG holds direct ioo% stake in these companies The acquisition of Smefin S.R.L Roverbella

Italy means that KRONES AG holds an indirect and direct ioo% stake in KOSME S.R.L Roverbella Italy

The first-time consolidation of the new shares was effected at the time of acquisition

complete presentation of investment holdings will be published in the electronic Federal Gazette

elektronischer Bundesanzeiger
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Consolidation principles

The separate financial statements of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are

prepared in accordance with uniform accounting policies They were all prepared as of the reporting date

of the consolidated financial statements

For companies that were acquired after January 2004 acquisition accounting is performed in accordance

with IFRS Business combinationss under which all business combinations must be accounted for us

ing the Ipurchase method of accounting whereby the acquired assets and liabilities are to be recognised

at fair value

Any amount by which the cost of acquisition exceeds the interest in the fair values of assets liabilities and

contingent liabilities is recognised as goodwill and subjected to regular impairment tests Negative good

will is immediately recognised in profit and loss Goodwill arising before January 2004 is still recognised

in reserves

Shares in the equity of subsidiaries that are not held by the parent company are reported as Iminority

interests

Inter-company receivables liabilities provisions revenues and expenses between consolidated compa

nies are eliminated in the consolidation process

This also applies for inter-company profits from deliveries effected or services rendered between Group

companies provided the amounts from these transactions are still held by the Group at the reporting date

Currency translation

The functional currency for KRONE5 AG is the euro

The financial statements of the consolidated companies that are denominated in foreign currency are

translated on the basis of the functional currency concept lAs 21 using modified closing rate method

Because the subsidiaries operate primarily independently in the economic environment of their respec

tive countries the functional currency is always the relevant local currency for each subsidiary In the

consolidated financial statements assets and liabilities are thus translated at the closing rate as on the

reporting date while income and expenses from the financial statements of subsidiaries are translated

at average annual rates

Any exchange differences resulting from these different rates in the balance sheet and income statement

are recognised directly in equity Exchange differences resulting from the translation of equity using his

torical exchange rates are also recognised directly in equity

In the annual financial statements of KRONE5 AG and its subsidiaries receivables and liabilities in foreign

currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the time of the transaction and exchange differences

are recognised in profit or loss at the closing rate Non-monetary items in foreign currencies are stated at

historical cost

Exchange rate differences compared with the previous year arising from acquisition accounting are recog

nised directly in equity in other retained earnings

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GSNERAL DISCLOSURES
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The exchange rates of those currencies that have material impact on the Groups financial statements

have moved against the euro as follows

Closing
rate

Averag rate

32Mar2009 310ec2008 2009 2008

us dollar uso 1.333 1.398 1.308 1.498

British pound GBP 0.930 0.959 0.910 0.757

Swiss franc CHF 1.518 1.488 1.498 1.601

Danish krone OKK 7.448 7.452 7.452 7.454

Canadian dollar c`o 1.669 1.717 1.625 1.505

Japanese yen iev 131.100 126.400 122.265 157.732

Brazilian real BRL 3.099 3.257 3.043 2.612

Chinese renminbi yuan CNV 9.101 9.536 8.955 10.745

Mexican peso MXN 18.881 19.259 18.796 16.205

Ukrainian hryvnia UAH 10.656 10.692 10.750 6.937

South African rand ZAR 12.680 13.170 13.010 11.309

Kenyan shilling KES 106.830 108.660 107.719 104.245

Nigerian niara NGN 196.070 189.650 194.667 177.834

Thai baht THU 47.210 48.450 46.570 45.806

RUB 45.150 42.420 44.482 36.284Russian rouble

Accounting policies

The annual financial statements of KRONES AG and its domestic and foreign subsidiaries have been

prepared using uniform accounting policies in accordance with lAS 27

Some discretion has been used in preparing the consolidated financial statements particularly in terms of

measurement of non-current assets inventories receivables pension provisions and provisions because

their preparation requires some critical estimates and forecasts

Intangible assets

Purchased and internally generated intangible assets excluding goodwill are recognised pursuant to lAS

38 if it is sufficiently probable that the use of the asset will result in future economic benefit and the cost

of the asset can be reliably determined They are stated at cost and amortised systematically on straight-

line basis over their estimated useful lives The amortisation of intangible assets is carried out over use

ful life of between three and five years and recognised under aDepreciation and amortisation of intangible

assets and property plant and equipmente

Research and development costs

Development costs of the KRONES Group are capitalised at cost to the extent that costs can be allocated

reliably and the technical feasibility and future economic benefit as result of their use are probable

According to lAS 38 research costs cannot be recognised as intangible assets and are therefore recognised

as an expense in the income statement when they are incurred
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Goodwill

No goodwill was acquired in Qi 2009

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment of the KRONF5 Group are accounted for at cost less scheduled depreciation

on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives The cost of internally generated plant and equip

ment comprises all costs that are directly attributable to the production process and an appropriate por

tion of overheads Borrowing costs are not recognised as cost

revaluation of property plant and equipment pursuant to 1A5 i6 was not carried out

Scheduled depreciation is based on the following useful lives which are applied uniformly throughout

the group

Useful life
In years

Buildings
l4to 50

Technical equipment and machines to 18

Furniture and fixtures and office equipment
to 15

In figuring the useful lives the different components of an asset with significantly different costs were

taken into account

Government grants are only recognised if there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attaching to

them will be complied with and the grants will be received

Apart from grants related to income which are recognized in their full amount in profit or loss grants

related to assets are deducted in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset on the balance sheet and

recognised in profit and loss by way of reduced depreciation charge in the subsequent periods

Leases

Leases in which the KRONa5 Group as the lessee bears substantially all the risks and rewards incident to

ownership of the leased asset are treated as finance leases pursuant to lAS 17 upon inception of the lease

The leased asset is recognised as non-current asset at fair value or if lower at the present value of the

minimum lease payments The leased asset is depreciated systematically using the straight-line method

over the shorter of its estimated useful lifes or the slease terms Obligations for future lease instalments

are recognised as sother liabilitiese

In the case of operating leases the leased assets are treated as assets belonging to the lessor since the

lessor bears the risks and rewards

Financial instruments

Financial instruments under lAS 39 used by KRONES consist of the following

Financial assets

Financial instruments held for trading derivative financial instruments

Available-for-sale financial instruments

Financial receivables and liabilities
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For the measurement categories the carrying amounts correspond to the fair values

Because there is no active market for the financial assets they are recognised at amortised cost

The fair values and carrying amounts are based on market rates and observable ongoing market

transactions

Transactions against cash settlement are accounted for using the settlement date Derivative financial

instruments are accounted for using the trade date

Net gains and losses include impairments and measurement changes for derivative financial instruments

and are explained in the notes to the relevant measurement categories

Pursuant to lAS 39 the classes under IFRS also include cash proceeds and liabilities from finance leases

in addition to the categories listed above

Disclosures about risk reporting as specified under IFRS are included in the risk report within the

consolidated management report

Financial assets

Financial assets other than securities are recognised at cost less impairment losses Non-current securities

are classified as available for sales and recognised at fair value directly in equity No assets are classified

as Iheld to maturitys

Moreover the sfair value options provided for under lAS 39 is not applied to any balance sheet items

within the KRONES Group

Derivative financial instruments

The derivative financial instruments used within the KRONE5 Group are used to hedge against currency

risks from operating activities

The primary category of
currency risk at KRONES is transaction risks arising from exchange rates and cash

flows in foreign currencies These currencies are primarily the us dollar and Swiss franc

Within the hedging strategy ioo% of items denominated in foreign currencies are generally hedged

The primary hedging instruments used for this are forward exchange contracts and occasionally swaps

including currency swaps

The strategy objective is to minimise currency risk by using hedging instruments that are viewed as highly

effective and thus both hedging the exchange rate and achieving planning security

The derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date Gains and losses

from the measurement are recognised as profit or loss on the income statement unless the conditions for

hedge accounting are met
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The derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is applied comprise forward currency

contracts and currency swaps
whose changes in fair value are recognised either in income Ifair value

hedgeu or in equity cash flow hedge In the case of cash flow hedges to mitigate currency risks from

existing underlying transactions changes in fair value are initially recognised directly in equity and

subsequently transferred to the income statement when the hedged item is recognised in the income

statement The derivative financial instruments are measured on the basis of the relevant commercial

banks forward rates

They are derecognised only when substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are transferred

Receivables and other assets

Receivables and other assets with the exception of derivative financial instruments are assets that are

not held for trading They are reported at amortised cost Receivables with maturities of over one year that

bear no or lower-than-market interest are discounted Impairments are recognised to take account for all

identifiable risks The indicators used for this are the ageing of the receivables and the customers business

situation

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value Cost includes those costs that are directly

related to the units of production and an appropriate portion of fixed and variable production overheads

The portion of overheads is determined on the basis of normal operating capacity Selling costs general

administrative costs and borrowing costs are not included in the costs of inventories For inventory risks

arising from increased storage periods or reduced usability write-downs are made on the inventories

For the sake of convenience in measuring materials and supplies the FiFo and weighted average cost

formulas are applied

Construction contracts for specific customers

Construction contracts for specific customers that are in progress are recognised according to the degree

of completion pursuant to lAS 11 opercentage-of-completion methods Under this method contract rev

enue is recognised in accordance with the percentage of physical completion of the lines and machines at

the balance sheet date The percentage
of completion corresponds to the ratio of contract costs incurred

up to the balance sheet date to the total costs calculated for the contract The construction contracts are

recognised under trade receivables

Deferred tax items

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the balance-sheet oriented liability method This

involves creating deferred tax items for all temporary differences between the tax and wits balance sheet

carrying amounts and for consolidation procedures affecting income

The deferred tax items are computed on the basis of the national income tax rates that apply in the indi

vidual countries at the time of realisation Changes in the tax rates are taken into account if there is suffi

cient certainty that they will occur Where permissible under law deferred tax assets and liabilities have

been offset
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Provisions for pensions

Provisions for pensions are calculated using the llprojected unit credit method pursuant to lAS 19 Under

this method known vested benefits at the reporting date as well as expected future increases in pensions

and salaries are taken into account with due consideration to relevant factors that will affect the benefit

amount which are estimated on prudent basis The provision is calculated on the basis of actuarial valu

ations that take into account biometric factors

Actuarial gains and losses are only recognised as income or expenses if they exceed io% of the obligations

These are recognised over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees

Other provisions

Other provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation to third party as result of past

event an outflow is probable and reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made Meas

urement of these provisions is computed at fully attributable costs or on the basis of the most probable

expenditures needed to settle the obligation

Provisions with residual term of more than one year are recognised at the present value of the probable

expenditures needed to settle the obligation at the reporting date

Financial liabilities

For initial recognition in accordance with lAS 39 financial liabilities are measured at the cost that is equiv

alent to the fair value of the consideration given Transaction costs are included in this initial measure

ment of financial liabilities After initial recognition all financial liabilities are measured at amortised

cost

Sales revenues

With the exception of those contracts that are measured according to lAS 11 sales revenues are recognised

in accordance with the criteria laid out under lAS i8 when the significant risks and rewards of ownership

are transferred when price is agreed or can be determined and economic benefit from the sale of goods

is sufficiently probable

Sales revenues are reported less reductions

Segment reporting

Intrasegment transfers are conducted under the same conditions as transfers among third parties

Intersegment revenues are negligible
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Share holdings

Name and location of the company
Share in capital held by

KRONES AG Ifl

neusped Neutraublinger Speditions-GmbH Neutraubling Germany 1qp12_

KIC KR0NES Internationale Cooperations-Gesellschaft mbH Neutraubling Germany 100.00

ecomac Gebrauchtmaschinen GmbH Neutraubling Germany ______
100.00

MAINTEC Service GmbH Collenberg/Main Germany _______

S.A KRONES N.y Louvain-la-Neuve Belgium
100.00

KRONES Nordic ApS Holte Denmark 100.00

KRONES S.A.R.L Lyon France 100.00

KRONES uK LTD Bolton UK 100.00

KOSME LTD Burton on Trent Staffordshire UK 100.00

KRONES S.R.L Garda vR Italy
100.00

KOSME S.R.L Roverbella Italy
100.00

Smefin S.R.L Roverbella Italy
100.00

KRONES Nederland b.v Boskoop Netherlands
______

KOSME Gesellschaft mbh Sollenau Austria 100.00

KRONES Spólka z.o.o Warsaw Poland 100.00

KRONES Portugal Equipamentos lndustriais Lda Barcarena Portugal 100.00

KRONES 0.0.0 Moscow Russian Federation

KRONES Romania Prod SRI. Bucharest Romania 100.00

KRONES AG Buttwil Switzerland

KRONES Iberica S.A Barcelona Spain
100.00

KRONES S.R.O Prague Czech Republic
100.00

KRONES Ukraine LLC Kiev Ukraine 100.00

MAINTEC Service eood Sofia Bulgaria

MAINTEc Service Ges.m.b.H Dorf an der Pram Austria

KR0NES Surlatina S.A Buenos Aires Argentina
100.00

KRONES DO BRAZIL LTDA So Paulo Brazil 100.00

KRONES S.A So Paulo Brazil ________P22_

KRONES Machinery Taicang Co Ltd Taicang China
_____________________________

KRONES Trading Taicang Co._Ltd._Taicang_China
100.00

KRONES Beijing Machinery Co Ltd Beijing China 100.00

KRONES Asia Ltd Hong Kong China
_________-_________________

100.00

KR0NES India Pvt Ltd Bangalore India
100.00

KRONESJapafl Co Ltd TokyoJapan
100.00

KRONES Machinery Co Ltd Brampton Ontario Canada

KRONES cs Center East Africa Limited Nairobi Kenya
100.00

KR0NES Andina Ltda Bogota Columbia 100.00

KRONES Korea Ltd Seoul Korea
--__________________________

100.00

KRONES Mex S.A de cv Mexico City Mexico 100.00

KR0NES LCS Center West Africa Limited Lagos Nigeria
100.00

KRONES Southern Africa Prop Ltd Johannesburg South Africa 100.00

KRONES Inc Franklin Wisconsin USA
100.00

Maquinarias KRONES de Venezuela S.A Caracas Venezuela 100.00

KRONES Thailand Co Ltd Bangkok Thailand 51.00

Beverage Consulting and Engineering Co Ltd Bangkok Thailand

direct and indirect shareholdirig
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30 The Supervisory Board and Executive Board

Following fulfilment of the requirements for application of the German Codetermination Act

gesetzj of 1976 in 1987 the Supervisory Board was extended from six to twelve members Pursuant to of the

articles of association six members are elected from among the shareholders in accordance with the German Stock

Corporation Act 96 and 101 Six members are elected by the employees pursuant to 11 and Sentence

No of the Codetermination Act

Supervisory Board Executive Board

Dr Lorenz Raith

Chairman

LEISTRITZ AG

MOLL AG

PRLIFTECHNIK AG

HEITEC AG

Werner Schrbdl

Chairman of the Central

Works Council

Deputy Chairman

Ernst Baumann

Member of the Executive

Board of BMW AG until

30 November 2008

Herbert Gerstner

Member of the Works

Council

Dr Klaus Heimann

Director of the Youth

Training and Qualification

Policy Division of IG METALL

MAN AG

Dr Jochen Klein

Chairman of the advisory council

of DOHLER HOLDING GMBH

DbHLER GRUPPE

HOVER-GRUPPE

Prof Dr Ing Erich Kohnhauser

MAX AICHER STAHL AG

Norman Kronseder

KRONSEDER FAMILY OFFICE

BAYERISCHE FUTTERSAATBAU

GMBH

Dr Alexander Nerz

Attorney

Anton Schindlbeck

Head of sales for LC5

Jurgen SchoIz

authorised representative

and treasurer of the IG METALL

administrative office in

Regensburg

Josef Weitzer

Chairman of the Works Council

Member of the Board of Directors

of Sparkasse Regensburg

Volker Kronseder

Chairman

Personnel Management

and Social Affairs

Group Communication

KRONES INC USA

Hans-Jurgen Thaus

Deputy Chairman

Finance Controlling

Information Management

and Process Management

KURTZ GMBH

KRONES INC USA

Rainulf Diepold

Marketing and Sales

Werner Frischholz

Materials Management

and Production

Christoph Klenk

Research and Development

Engineering and Product

Divisions

WINKLERDiJNNEBIERAG

Pursuant to 81 of the articles

of association six members are

elected from among the share

holders in accordance with the

German Stock Corporation Act

96 and 101 Six members

are elected by the employees

pursuant to 11 and 71
Sentence No of the Codeter

mination Act

Other Supervisory Board seats

held pursuant to 125

Sentence of the German

Stock Corporation Act

Elected by the employees

In addition each of the Group

companies is the responsibility

of two members of the

Executive Board

Standards and interpretations

The following standards and interpretations the application of which is not yet mandatory

do not apply to the consolidated financial statements of KRONES AG

IFRIC 15 sAgreements for the Construction of Real Estates

IFRIC 16 eHedges Of Net Investment In Foreign Operatione

IFRIC 17 eDistribution Of Non-Cash Assets To Owners
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